
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting:   Thursday, May 22, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Place of Meeting:     Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89512 

 
 
All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 

 
Time/ 
Item 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 
p.m.  
*1. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Invitation 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

*2. Roll Call 
 

Ms. Dawn Spinola 

*3. Public Comment -  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda -  
May 22, 2014 Meeting 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

5. Approval/Additions/Deletions to Minutes -  
April 24, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

*6. Recognitions -  
A. Introduction of New Employee(s) –  

1. Ashley Tatomer  – Office Assistant II – AHS (4/28/14) 
2. Ruben Estrada-Campos – Bilingual Office Assistant II  - CCHS 

(5/19/14)  

Mr. Matt Smith 
Mr. Kevin Dick 

 
 
 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512 

P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328-2410 • Fax   775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health 

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

 
Leslie Admirand 

Deputy District Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Matt Smith, Chair 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Denis Humphreys, OD 

Sharon Zadra 
George Hess, MD 
David Silverman 

Julia Ratti 
 
 
 

 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

B. Introduction of Independent Contractor Working on Community Health 
Assessment – Heather Kerwin 
 

C. Years of Service –  
1. Julio Peck-Garcia 10 years, hired 4/26/2004 
2. David Kelly 10 years, hired 5/03/2004 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Consent Agenda -  
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any 
exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 

A. Air Quality Management Cases 

1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board 

           a.   Nevada Recycling & Salvage LLC – Case No. 1156 Citation No. 
5222 

           b.   Reno Buick GMC Cadillac - Case No. 1155 Citation No. 5408 

           c.   Roger Baylocq Case No. 1157 Citation No. 5223 

B.  Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements:   

1. Approval of Grant Number 99T08401 from the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) for funding in the amount of $96,034 
($43,200 available for drawdown) for the period 4/1/14 through 
3/31/15 for the Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution Control 
Program, IO 10021. 

2. Approval of Amendment #1 to the Interlocal Contract with the State of 
Nevada, Department of Motor Vehicles, for the DMV Excess Reserve 
Grant Program (IO 11077) to extend the contract period through June 
30, 2015. 

3. Retroactive approval of District Health Officer acceptance of Notice of 
Subgrant Award from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in 
the amount of $63,773 for the budget period Date of Execution through 
June 30, 2014 (BP1) in support of the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness Program. 

4. Approval of Subgrant Amendment #4 from the Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health in the amount of $697,173 for the budget period July 
1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 (BP2) in support of the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness 
Program; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 

5. Acceptance of “Washoe County, Nevada Air Quality Trends (2004-
2013)”. 

 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Erin Dixon 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Erin Dixon 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Patsy Buxton 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Patsy Buxton 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

8. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority -  
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for April, 2014 
*B.  Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since April, 2014 
 

Mr. Jim Gubbels 

9. Approval of the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for 
Ambulance Service 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Ms. Brittany Dayton 

10. Approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services 
Oversight 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Ms. Brittany Dayton 

11. Approval of the Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for April, 
2014 
 

Ms. Eileen Stickney 

12. Fiscal Year 15 Budget Update with possible direction to staff 
  

Ms. Eileen Stickney 

*13. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Administrative Health Services Officer –  

Staff reports are Agenda Items #10 and #11. 
B. Director, Air Quality Management -  

EnviroFlash, April Air Quality Index, RTC Electric Buses, Earth Day 
Celebrations, Planning and Monitoring, Permitting & Enforcement. 

C. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services -  
Divisional Update – Insight, Affordable Care Act, Data/Metrics, Program 
Reports.  
Program Update – Sexual Health, Immunizations, Tuberculosis Prevention 
and Control Program, Family Planning/Teen Health Mall, Chronic Disease 
Prevention Program, Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health, WIC. 

D. Director, Environmental Health Services -  
Food Program, Institutions Program, Land Development Program, 
UST/LUST Program, Vector-Borne Disease Program, Waste Management 
Program, General Environmental and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan 
Review. 

E. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness –  
Communicable Disease – Influenza, Middle East Respiratory Syndrome 
Coronavirus (MERS-CoV), Public Health Preparedness. 

F. District Health Officer -  
REMSA/EMS, Fundamental Review, Budget, Permit Software Project, 
Community Needs Assessment, Quality Improvement Initiative, Staffing, 
Other Events & Activities and Health District Media Contacts. 
 

 
Ms. Eileen Stickney 

 
 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 
 

Mr. Steve Kutz 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Robert Sack 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Randall Todd 
 
 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*14. Board Comment -  
Limited to Announcements or Issues for Future Agendas 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

15. Emergency Items - 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*16. Public Comment - 
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 

Mr. Matt Smith 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

 
17. 

 
Adjournment 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe 
County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County 
Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting 
materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the 
requirements of NRS 241.020. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
mailto:dspinola@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


WASHOE COUNTY 
DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING MINUTES  
 
Members Thursday, April 24, 2014 
Matt Smith, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair  
Dr. Denis Humphreys  
Sharon Zadra Washoe County Administration Complex 
Julia Ratti Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. George Hess 1001 East Ninth Street 
David Silverman Reno, NV 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Washoe County District Board of Health met in regular session on Thursday, April 24, 2014, in 
the Health Department South Conference Room, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada.   

1. Determination of Quorum 

Chair Smith called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m.  Commissioner Jung led the pledge to the flag. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Roll Call 

The following Members and staff were present: 

Members present: Chair Matt Smith 
Vice Chair Kitty Jung 
David Silverman 
Dr. George Hess 
Julia Ratti 

Members absent:  Dr. Denis Humphreys  
Sharon Zadra 

Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Charlene Albee, Division Director, AQM 
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 
Robert Sack, Division Director, EHS 
Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Division Director 
Daniel Inouye, Air Quality Supervisor, AQM 
Phil Ulibarri, Public Information Officer, AHS 
Brittany Dayton, Emergency Medical Services Coordinator, EPHP 
Julie Hunter, Air Quality Specialist I, AQM 
Stacy Hardie, Public Health Nurse Supervisor, CCHS 
Kelli Seals, Health Educator II, CCHS 
Steve Fisher, Department Computer Application Specialist, AHS 
Amber English, Environmental Health Specialist, EHS 
Krista Hunt, Environmental Health Specialist, EHS 
Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, AHS 
Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, AHS 
Laurie Griffey, Administrative Assistant 1, AHS 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary, AHS 

 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



3. Public Comment 

As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Smith closed the public comment period. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda 

Dr. Hess moved to approve the agenda for the April 24, 2014, District Board of Health meeting.  
Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which carried five in favor and none against. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Approval of Minutes 

Councilmember Ratti moved to approve the minutes of the March 6, 2014 District Board of 
Health special budget meeting as written.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which carried five in favor 
and none against. 

Commissioner Jung moved to approve the minutes of the March 27, 2014 District Board of 
Health regular meeting as written.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which carried five in favor and 
none against. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Recognitions 
Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Smith  

A. Promotions: 

1. Reclass of Jennifer Howell from Program Coordinator to Health Educator Coordinator retro to 
1/1/14 

Mr. Dick congratulated Ms. Howell.   

B. Years of Service: 

1. Steve Fisher, 10 years, hired 3/22/2004 
2. Amber English, 10 years, hired 4/26/2004 
3. Krista Hunt, 10 years, hired 4/26/2004 

Mr. Dick congratulated each of the employees for their years of service.   

C. Achievements –  
1. Clean Air Excellence Award 

Mr. Dick explained the award has not been granted since 2011, has only been presented three 
times before, and only to major corporations.  It was a great honor for the small Air Quality staff 
to receive the award.  Ms. Hunter had traveled to Washington D.C. to receive the award.  Mr. 
Dick recognized Mr. Ulibarri’s contributions towards development of the project. 

Mr. Dick presented Ms. Albee a Certificate of Senatorial Recognition received from Senator 
Dean Heller’s office for the Keep it Clean campaign. 

Mr. Ulibarri noted that the whole impetus behind the campaign started when Mr. Dick was 
Division Director of Air Quality.  It had taken several years of work and Mr. Ulibarri stated he 
was pleased that Mr. Dick was now the Health Officer and had the opportunity to see the Division 
win the national award.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

7. Proclamations 
Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Smith 

 
April 24, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



A. National Bike Month and Bicycle Safety Month and Bike to Work, School and Fun Week 

Mr. Dick read the proclamation.  

Commissioner Jung moved to adopt the proclamation.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the 
motion which was approved five in favor and none against.  Ms. Hunter accepted the signed 
proclamation on behalf of the AQM Division.  

B. Teen Pregnancy Prevention Month 

Mr. Kutz read the proclamation. 

Mr. Silverman moved to adopt the proclamation.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was 
approved five in favor and none against.  Ms. Hardie accepted the signed proclamation on behalf 
of the CCHS Division.  

C. National Women’s Health Week 

Mr. Kutz read the proclamation. 

Councilmember Ratti moved to adopt the proclamation.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which 
was approved five in favor and none against.  Ms. Seals accepted the signed proclamation on 
behalf of the CCHS Division.  

D. National Emergency Medical Services Week 

Mr. Dick read the proclamation.  

Dr. Hess moved to adopt the proclamation.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which was 
approved five in favor and none against.  The signed proclamation was received by Dr. Todd, Ms. 
Dayton, Jim Gubbels and Klark Staffan of REMSA and attending REMSA Emergency Medical 
Services personnel.  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
8. Consent Agenda 

Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to the 
Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval.   

A. Air Quality Management Cases 
Staff Representative: Mr. Inouye 

1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control Hearing 
Board 

a. Ozburn-Hessey Logistics – Case No. 1146, NOV No. 5397  
b. Tim Carlson – Case No. 1154, NOV No. 5409 

B. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements 

1. Approval of Grant Agreement #A-00905414-0 from the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) for partial funding in the amount of $540,118 for the period 
10/1/13 through 9/30/14 for the Air Quality Management, EPA Air Pollution Control 
Program, IO 10019. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Dixon 

2. Approve Notice of Subgrant Award from the Division of Public and Behavioral 
Health to provide funding in the total amount of $113,000 for the period 03/29/14 
through 03/28/15 (continuing grant) for the Tobacco Prevention and Control Program 
Grant, IO 10010; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

 
April 24, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



3. Approval of amendments totaling an increase of $9,512 in revenue and expense to the 
Ryan White Part B Grant Program (internal order # 11147) FY 14 budget. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

4. Approve Interlocal Agreement between Washoe County Health District and Washoe 
County School District to open Point of Dispensing (POD) sites at Washoe County 
School District facilities in the event of a public health emergency; and if approved 
authorize the Chairman to execute. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

Councilmember Ratti moved to approve the consent agenda.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion 
which was approved five in favor and none against.     

________________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
Presented by Jim Gubbels, President, REMSA 

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for March, 2014 

Mr. Gubbels presented the report.  Priority One compliance was 93 percent and Priority Two 
compliance was 97 percent.  Eight-minute response was 92 percent, 15-minute response was 100 
percent and the 20-minute response was 98 percent.  Average Care Flight bill for the month was 
$7,435, which brought the year-to-date average to $7,915.  The average Ground Service bill for the 
month was $1,069, which brought the year-to-date ground average to $1,067. 

Dr. Hess moved to accept the REMSA operations report for March 2014.  Councilmember 
Ratti seconded the motion which was approved five in favor and none against.   

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since February, 2014 

Mr. Gubbels noted two articles attached to the report.  The first was a feature from the Reno 
Gazette-Journal describing the accomplishments of Cindy Green, a REMSA paramedic and lead 
Education Coordinator.  The second article was regarding three REMSA employees that had received 
Red Cross Real Heroes Awards for acts of heroism performed above and beyond what is required for 
their employment.  The recipients were Elizabeth Gameros, George Reade and Matthew Dixon.   

Mr. Gubbels noted that Kevin Romero had been offered and accepted the position of Vice 
President of Operations.   

Councilmember Ratti stated she had had the opportunity to be a judge for the American Red 
Cross awards, had an opportunity to see the competition and commended REMSA staff for coming 
out on top.  She also commended the work that the American Red Cross does behind the scenes every 
day and thanked them for taking the time to celebrate heroes.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

10. Approval of the Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for March, 2014 
Staff Representative: Ms. Stickney 

Ms. Stickney presented the report.  She noted FY14 was going into the closeout phase.  She stated she 
had nothing in particular to report but was happy to answer any questions. 

Dr. Hess asked about a proposal for a contract for collection services.  Ms. Stickney asked if she 
could address that in the FY15 report as it was a part of that budget.  She noted one item had to do with 
Medicaid, that some staff members would be getting additional training.  Also a specialty clinic had 
helped bring in some additional revenue which showed in the expenditure report.  

 
April 24, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



Dr. Hess moved to accept the report.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which was approved 
five in favor and none against.   

________________________________________________________________________________ 

11. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Update with possible direction to staff 
Staff Representative: Ms. Stickney 

Ms. Stickney presented the report.  She explained that what was provided in the packet was different 
from last month.  The updated information demonstrates where the District expects to be financially and 
explains variances.  The tentative budget has been submitted to the Department of Taxation.  The 
information was updated from what had been presented to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) 
because it included the anticipated General Fund transfer amount.  Barring anything catastrophic, the 
amount should not change, and so is being used for budget planning purposes.  It is not formal until the 
BCC has a public hearing on May 19, 2014.  Once it is adopted by the BCC, the Health District budget 
becomes final and will be submitted on June 1, 2014.   

Ms. Stickney reiterated that the Women, Infants and Children’s program (WIC) had gone over to 
Community and Clinical Health Services (CCHS).  She noted the opening fund balance for FY15 is 
expected to be higher due to vacancies being held open through the end of FY14.   

Ms. Stickney addressed Dr. Hess’ earlier question, explaining there had been a budget item for new 
software for the revenue management system.  Additionally budgeted was the $20,000 for the Community 
Health Assessment and the funding needed for new staff for Vital Statistics and to support regional 
Emergency Medical Services oversight.   

Ms. Stickney explained to the Board that, once the budget is adopted, staff would provide them with 
updated project accounting sheets to provide them with more detail regarding the different budget line 
items.   

Dr. Hess moved to accept the report.  Commissioner Jung seconded the motion which was 
approved five in favor and none against.   

Councilmember Ratti opined the working relationship with the County was far superior than it had 
been in the past.  She personally thanked the County Manager and the BCC and asked Commissioner 
Jung to take that message back to them on her behalf personally, and hopefully as an expression of the 
full Board, that they are grateful for the working relationship and coming to a conclusion that they think 
will work for the citizens of Washoe County.   

Commissioner Jung stated she would do that.  She agreed the relationship and the commitment to the 
District Board of Health had changed tremendously.   

Chair Smith noted it was a great budget and thanked everyone on the Board, the BCC and staff. 

Councilmember Ratti acknowledged there was still challenging work to be done.   

Ms. Stickney opined the Health District was in a good place with the Fundamental Review.  There is 
a path forward and a good foundation to proceed from under Mr. Dick’s leadership.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

12. Affirm that Mr. Kevin Dick was Appointed to the Position of District Health Officer by 
a Vote of the District Board of Health on October 24, 2013; that October 24, 2013 
Constitutes the Annual Evaluation and Merit Anniversary Date for Mr. Dick; that Mr. 
Dick’s Appointment Shall Continue for a Period of One Year from October 24, 2013, 
and Automatically Renew for Successive Periods, as Deemed Appropriate by the Board, 
Based on Satisfactory Performance as per the Employment Agreement entered into by 
Mr. Dick and the Board. 
Presented by Chair Smith 

 
April 24, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



Chair Smith presented the report.   

Commissioner Jung stated for the record she expected they would conduct an annual performance 
review at the Board level and that item would be placed on the agenda by the Health Officer.   

Mr. Dick clarified that he had initiated the review process based on the initial April anniversary date.  
Through discussion with the Chair, it was decided that October was more appropriate.   

Chair Smith moved to approve that Mr. Dick’s annual evaluation and merit anniversary date 
will be October 24, 2013.  Deputy District Attorney Admirand recommended that he move that the 
date be October 24 so that it could carry forward to each year.   

Chair Smith restated his motion to approve that Mr. Dick’s annual evaluation and merit 
anniversary date will be October 24 of each year.  Commissioner Jung seconded the motion.   

Councilmember Ratti asked if the motion should include the clause that stated the contract 
would automatically renew as deemed appropriate by the Board, based on satisfactory 
performance as per the employment agreement entered into by Mr. Dick and the Board.  Ms. 
Admirand confirmed it should.   

Chair Smith amended his motion to include the language as suggested and Commissioner Jung 
stated the seconder agreed.  The amended motion was approved five in favor and none against.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

13. Staff Reports and Program Updates 

A. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness - Communicable Disease – Influenza, Public 
Health Preparedness and Emergency Medical Services.   
Staff Representative: Dr. Todd 

Dr. Todd stated he had nothing to add to the report and was available for questions. 

B. Community and Clinical Health Services - Program Update – Sexual Health, Divisional 
Update, Program Reports.  
Staff Representative: Mr. Kutz 

Mr. Kutz referenced the handout he had provided to the Board members which was a draft Epi-
Newsletter set to go out that covered STD Awareness Month.  Regarding the Affordable Care Act, 
during the prior week a Certified Application Counselor from Social Services had been on site and 
met with three individuals to help them with signing up for Medicaid.  Statewide to date, 
approximately 45,000 individuals who have selected qualified health plans.  

Mr. Kutz stated his supervisors were meeting to find more ways to provide ways to integrate 
clinical services between programs.   

Dr. Hess asked if other resources had been located to take over the home visitation services that 
the Health District would be discontinuing.  Mr. Kutz explained staff had been in discussion with 
Social Services and hospital social workers.  Mr. Dick has been speaking with Assistant County 
Manager Kevin Schiller and Interim Social Services Director Ken Retterath regarding this topic.  

Councilmember Ratti asked if the editorial penned by District Attorney Dick Gammick in support 
of home visitation programs referred to the same programs that were being discontinued.  Mr. Kutz 
stated that his understanding was that the editorial was in reference to the nurse-family partnership 
programs that had been entertained but not implemented a number of years ago.   

Mr. Dick noted he, Mr. Schiller and Mr. Retterath had discussed the program.  The next funding 
opportunity for that will be in 2016.  The concept will be looked at when the opportunity comes 
around to see if the Health District is in a position to be able to apply for and for clients to benefit 
from it.   

Councilmember Ratti asked if Mr. Gammick was aware the Health District would no longer have 
the program.  She was concerned the County may be sending conflicting messages about what 

 
April 24, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



services are available to the public.  Mr. Kutz explained that the medically needy will still be 
receiving services through Social Services.  Additionally, they have a medical unit so they do see the 
medically-fragile children.  The hospital social workers are aware of the situation.   

C. Environmental Health Services - Food Program, Land Development Program, Vector-Borne 
Disease Program, Waste Management Program, General Environmental and EHS Inspection 
Totals. 
Staff Representative: Mr. Sack 

Mr. Sack stated he had nothing to add to the report and was available for questions. 

D. Air Quality Management - Air Quality Management Division, Air Quality Monitoring Activity, 
Planning & Monitoring Activity, Permitting Activity, Compliance/Inspection Activity, Permitting 
& Enforcement Activity, Enforcement Activity 
Staff Representative: Ms. Albee 

Ms. Albee stated she had nothing to add to the report and was available for questions. 

E. Administrative Health Services - No report this month. 
Staff Representative: Ms. Stickney 

Ms. Stickney stated she had nothing to add to the report and was available for questions. 

F. District Health Officer - REMSA/EMS, Fundamental Review, Budget, Permit Software Project, 
Healthy Community Conversation, Community Needs Assessment, Quality Improvement 
Initiative, Staffing, Other Events & Activities and Health District Media Contacts. 
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick 

Mr. Dick presented his report.  He explained progress was being made on developing the 
REMSA franchise agreement (FA) and he hoped to present that to the Board for approval at the May 
meeting as well as the Interlocal agreement for the Regional Emergency Management Services 
(EMS) oversight.   

Mr. Dick provided an overview of the dashboard created for the purpose of displaying progress 
on each of the Fundamental Review goals.  Dr. Hess asked if it would be posted to the website and 
Mr. Dick stated it could be.  His goal was to use it to provide a monthly update and he would provide 
more detailed update information on a quarterly basis.   

Commissioner Jung asked why Item 6, regarding consideration of tiered levels of services for 
EHS programs and services, was noted as being in the Parking Lot or Not Recommended category.  
Mr. Dick replied it was dependent upon discussions with user groups and the regulated community, as 
well as defining true costs and establishing cost recovery methods through fees.  Commissioner Jung 
opined that the Parking Lot and Not Recommended items should be designated separately.   

Dr. Hess asked if the Board members would be receiving an outline of any changes to the current 
FA and EMS Interlocal.  Mr. Dick explained a draft FA had gone to the County and City managers 
and comments were requested by close of business on April 25, 2014 so that the comments could be 
addressed and a final draft document available for a meeting with the EMS Executive Committee on 
Friday, May 2, 2014.  The full EMS working group will also meet that day.  The final agreement will 
be provided to the Board at the May meeting.  Mr. Dick offered to meet with any Board members that 
would like to go over the agreement prior to that.  He will provide the document to the members prior 
to meeting with them individually.   

Councilmember Ratti opined it would be helpful if the sections of the FA could be noted with 
how they aligned with the Tri-Data recommendations.  Mr. Dick agreed it was a good idea and 
committed to attempting to do so.   

Mr. Dick announced Ms. Stickney’s resignation, effective August 8, 2014.  He congratulated her 
and thanked her for her 20 years of service in support of the Health District.  He noted they were 

 
April 24, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



working on a succession plan and that she had chosen the August date because she felt that would be 
the best time of the year to transition the budget process over to whoever takes her place.  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Board Comment 

None. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Emergency Items 

None. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

16. *Public Comment 

None. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

17. Adjournment 

At 1:51 p.m., Councilmember Ratti moved to adjourn.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which 
was approved five in favor and none against.   

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 
   

Kevin Dick  
District Health Officer 

    
 Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary 
 

 
 
 

 
Approved by Board in session on _____________, 2014. 
 
 
 

 

 
April 24, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

 

DATE:    May 22, 2014 

TO:    District Board of Health 

FROM:    Charlene Albee, Division Director, Air Quality Management 

SUBJECT:   Nevada Recycling & Salvage LLC – Case No. 1156 
    Unappealed Citation No. 5222 
 
Recommendation 
 
Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends that Citation No. 5222 be upheld and a fine of $1,300 be levied 
against Nevada Recycling & Salvage LLC for the installation of equipment without submitting an application for an 
Authority to Construct/Permit to Operate.  Installation of equipment without an Authority to Construct Permit is a 
major violation of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 
030.000 Source Permitting and Operation.  This is a negotiated settlement. 
 
Recommended Fine:  $2,583.00     Negotiated Fine:  $1,300.00 
 
Background 
 
On March 26, 2014, Air Quality Management received a complaint from the Environmental Health Services Division 
regarding fugitive dust from the operation of the load out area at the Nevada Recycling & Salvage LLC facility located 
at 1085 Telegraph Street in Reno.  Additionally, information was provided regarding the operation of a diesel fired 
generator within the facility.  On March 27, 2014, Division Director Charlene Albee directed Air Quality Specialist II 
Joshua Restori and Air Quality Specialist II Kristina Craig to investigate the complaint.    
 
Upon arrival, Specialists Restori and Craig met with Jason Pantone, a supervisor at the facility, to conduct a 
complaint investigation.  An inspection of the enclosed load out area resulted in the determination the ‘enclosure’ was 
not being maintained in compliance with Permit to Operate No. A06-0055, specifically Condition No. 2, which 
stipulates: 

 
The operator must implement acceptable methods to prevent airborne particulate matter created as a result 
of this operation.  As necessary, fugitive emissions must be controlled using acceptable techniques such as 
water sprays, enclosures, tarps, etc.    

 
As the equipment was not in operation at the time of the investigation, Specialist Restori issued a warning to Mr. 
Pantone to complete the necessary repairs to the ‘enclosure’ walls around the load out area within 30 days. 

 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

1 of 21 of 81 of 81 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



May 22, 2014 
DBOH/Nevada Recycling & Salvage LLC/ Case 1156 
Page 2 
 
 
Specialists Restori and Craig accompanied Mr. Pantone to the cardboard bailer and associated generator location.   
Mr. Pantone reviewed the equipment associated with the cardboard bailing process; advising it was expensive for the 
facility to connect the necessary electrical power to the building to operate the bailer; therefore, the owner was 
purchasing the diesel-powered generator to operate the bailer.  Specialist Restori determined the generator was a 
492 kW (660 hp) unit which requires a Permit to Operate.  Specialist Restori advised Mr. Pantone the generator was 
not in compliance with the regulations.   
 
Mr. Christopher Biesler, owner of Nevada Recycling and Salvage, arrived and met with Specialists Restori and Craig.  
Specialist Restori identified the repairs, which would have to be completed within 30 days, to the ‘enclosure’ 
surrounding the load out area.  Specialist Restori further advised an application for an Authority to Construct/Permit 
to Operate the 492 kW generator was required to be submitted within 24 hours. 
 
Based on the results of the inspection and file review, Specialist Restori issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 5222 
for a major violation of Section 030.000, Source Permitting and Operation.  The required application for an Authority 
to Construct Permit was submitted to the Air Quality Management Office on March 27, 2014.   
 
Settlement 
 
On April, 4, 2014, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended 
by Specialists Restori and Craig along with Mr. Christopher Biesler.  Sr. Specialist Cerfoglio explained the importance 
of submitting an application for an Authority to Construct/Permit to Operate prior to the installation or modification of 
any equipment.  After reviewing the conditions of the permit and consideration of all the facts presented in the case, 
Sr. Specialist Cerfoglio proposed Citation No. 5222 be upheld with a fine of $1,300.  Mr. Biesler agreed to the 
conditions of the negotiated settlement.  A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties.   
 
Alternatives 
 

1. The Board may determine that no violation of the regulations has taken place and dismiss Citation No. 
5222. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5222 and levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 
per day. 

 
In the event the Board determines to revise the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow 
Nevada Recycling & Salvage to be properly noticed. 

 

  
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 
CA/DC: jbs 

2 of 22 of 82 of 82 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



3 of 83 of 83 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



4 of 84 of 84 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



5 of 85 of 85 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



6 of 86 of 86 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



7 of 87 of 87 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



8 of 88 of 88 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.a.



 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

 

DATE:   May 22, 2014 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:   Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 

SUBJECT:  Reno Buick GMC Cadillac - Case No. 1155 
   Unappealed Citation No. 5408 
    
 
Recommendation 
 
Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5408 be upheld and a fine of $1,032 be levied 
against Reno Buick GMC Cadillac for modification of permitted equipment without submitting an application for an 
Authority to Construct.  Modification of equipment without an Authority to Construct is a major violation of the 
District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.2175 Operations 
Contrary to Permit.  This is a negotiated settlement. 
 
Recommended Fine:  $2,580.00    Negotiated Fine:  $1,032.00 
 
Background 
 
On March 7, 2014, Air Quality Specialist II Suzanne Dugger arrived at Reno Buick GMC Cadillac, located at 900 
Kietzke Lane in Reno, to perform a routine annual inspection.  Specialist Dugger was accompanied by Mr. Greg 
Overby, the Facility Manager.  During the inspection, Specialist Dugger determined the equipment identified on 
Permit to Operate No. E00167A had been removed and replaced.  Upon reviewing the file, Specialist Dugger 
determined there was no record of an application for an Authority to Construct for the new equipment. 
 
Specialist Dugger inquired as to the status of the required application for modification of the permitted equipment.  
Mr. Overby indicated he was unaware of the requirement to permit the new equipment.  Specialist Dugger explained 
to Mr. Overby the requirement to submit an application in accordance with Permit to Operate No. E01167A, Condition 
A which states: 
 

ALTERATIONS:  This permit becomes void upon any change of ownership or address or any alteration of 
permitted equipment.   

 
Additionally, Condition C states: 
 

MODIFICATION OF EQUIPMENT:   Any modification of the equipment other than normal repair and 
maintenance will require a new permit. 

 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

1 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



 

May 22, 2014 
DBOH/Reno Buick GMC Cadillac / Case 1155 
Page2 
 
 
Based on a review of the file and the results of the inspection, Specialist Dugger issued Notice of Violation Citation 
No. 5408 for a major violation of Section 030.2175, Operations Contrary to Permit. 
 
Settlement 
 
On April 9, 2014, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended 
by Specialist Dugger, and Mr. Ken Alexander, General Manager of Reno Buick GMC Cadillac via telephone.  
Specialist Cerfoglio explained the importance of submitting an application for an Authority to Construct Permit prior to 
the installation or modification of any equipment.  After reviewing the conditions of the permit and consideration of all 
the facts presented in the case, Sr. Specialist Cerfoglio proposed Citation No. 5408 be upheld with a fine of $1,032.  
Mr. Alexander agreed to the conditions of the negotiated settlement.  A Memorandum of Understanding was signed 
by all parties. 
 
The required application for an Authority to Construct was submitted to the Air Quality Management Office on March 
10, 2014.  
 
Alternatives 
 

1.  The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the regulations has taken place and 
dismiss Citation No. 5408. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5408 and levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 
per day. 

 
In the event the Board determines a revision to the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow 
Reno Buick GMC Cadillac to be properly noticed. 

 
 
 

  
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 
 
 
CA/DC/jbs 

2 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



3 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



4 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



5 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



6 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



7 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



8 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



9 of 9

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.b.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

 
DATE:   May 22, 2014 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:   Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 

SUBJECT:  Roger Baylocq Case No. 1157 
   Unappealed Citation No. 5223 
 
Recommendation 
 
Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5223 be upheld and a fine of $1,200 be levied 
against Mr. Roger Baylocq for failure to have an asbestos survey performed by a qualified individual and submitted to 
Air Quality Management for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment prior to the 
demolition/renovation of a commercial facility.  Conducting demolition/renovation activities without submitting an 
asbestos survey for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment is a major violation of the 
District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National 
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through 
Section 030.107, Hazardous Air Pollutants.  This is a negotiated settlement.  
 
Recommended Fine:  $3,062.00    Negotiated Fine:  $1,200.00  
 
Background 
 
On April 2, 2014, Air Quality Specialist Kristina Craig notified Air Quality Specialist Joshua Restori of a renovation 
occurring at the former Eagle’s Nest Bar located at 12725 South Virginia Street in Reno, Nevada.  A review of the file 
records determined there was no evidence of an asbestos survey for that address.  Arriving on site, Specialists Craig 
and Restori observed a young man standing outside of the building next to a white Ford pickup truck loaded with 
drywall debris.  Much of the drywall debris contained acoustic ceiling surfacing material which was brown in paint 
color.   
 
Specialist Restori met with the laborer, Ryan, and discussed the renovation activity at the bar.  Ryan stated ‘he was a 
friend of the owner and was hired to remove the ceiling materials to repair a broken pipe’.  Specialist Restori asked 
Ryan if he was aware the drywall, joint compound and acoustic ceiling could contain asbestos and if an asbestos 
survey had been conducted on the materials prior to the disturbance.  Ryan stated he was not aware the materials 
could contain asbestos and he was not aware if testing had been completed.  At that time Specialist Restori issued a 
Stop Work Order for all renovation work until an asbestos survey was conducted and an Acknowledgement of 
Asbestos Assessment was obtained from Air Quality Management.   
 
Specialist Restori contacted Mr. Roger Baylocq, the property owner, to advise him of what had occurred and the 
issuance of the Stop Work.  Mr. Baylocq stated he ‘was only minutes away’ and he ‘would like to meet with Specialist 
Restori on site if possible’.  When Mr. Baylocq arrived on site, Specialist Restori explained the asbestos testing 
requirements and process for submitting the results to Air Quality Management.  Mr. Baylocq stated he ‘understood 
the issue, but was not aware that a survey was required for removing such a small amount of drywall’. 
 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



May 22, 2014 
DBOH/Mr. Roger Baylocq/Case No. 1157 
Page2 
 
 
 
Based on the results of the records review and field inspection, Specialist Restori issued Notice of Violation Citation 
No. 5223 for a major violation of Section 030.2175 (A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification.   
 
On April 3, 2014, Roger Baylocq contacted Specialist Restori to advise he had hired Tom Wise Consulting to conduct 
an asbestos survey sampling of the material, which had been disturbed from the ceiling, and any material that would 
be disturbed in future renovations.  Mr. Baylocq stated the sample results would be available no later than April 9, 
2014. 
 
On April 9, 2014, Mr. Baylocq hand delivered the asbestos survey which had been completed by Wise Consulting 
and Training on April 3, 2014.  The results indicated there was no asbestos detected in the materials disturbed by 
removal of the ceiling over the bar area.  The report did identify 1 – 5% chrysotile asbestos in the mastic under the 
tiles in the kitchen area.  Mr. Baylocq stated this area was not included in the planned scope of work for the 
renovation.   
 
Settlement 
 
On April 23, 2014, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting 
attended by Specialist Restori and Mr. Roger Baylocq.  Sr. Specialist Cerfoglio carefully explained to Mr. Baylocq his 
responsibilities as a commercial property owner to arrange for an asbestos survey and provide notification to Air 
Quality Management prior to any renovation or demolition procedures.  Mr. Baylocq stated he now understands his 
responsibilities and in the future he will comply.  After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, Sr. Specialist 
Cerfoglio recommended Citation No. 5223 be upheld with a fine of $1,200.  Mr. Baylocq agreed to the conditions of 
the negotiated settlement.  A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties. 
 
Alternatives 
 

1.  The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the regulations has taken place and 
dismiss Citation No. 5223. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5223 and levy any fine in the range of 0 to $10,000 
per day. 

 
In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow Mr. 
Baylocq to be properly noticed. 
 
 

 

  
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 
 
CA/DC: jbs 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 

3 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 

4 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 

5 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 

6 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 

7 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 

8 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.1.c. 
 



1 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



2 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



3 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



4 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



5 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



6 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



7 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



8 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.1.



1 of 4

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.2. 



2 of 4

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.2. 



3 of 4

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.2. 



4 of 4

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.2. 



1 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



2 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



3 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



4 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



5 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



6 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



7 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



8 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



9 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



10 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



11 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



12 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



13 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



14 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



15 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



16 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



17 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



18 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



19 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



20 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



21 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



22 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



23 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



24 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



25 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



26 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



27 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



28 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



29 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



30 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



31 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



32 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



33 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



34 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



35 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



36 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



37 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



38 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



39 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



40 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



41 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



42 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.3. 



1 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



2 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



3 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



4 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



5 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



6 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



7 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



8 of 8

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.4.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
  AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION  

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

 WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER  

 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 22, 2014 
 
To:  District Board of Health 
 
From: Charlene Albee, Director 
 Air Quality Management Division 
 
Subject: Acceptance of “Washoe County, Nevada Air Quality Trends (2004-2013)” 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Heath (DBOH) accept the “Washoe County, Nevada Air 
Quality Trends (2004-2013)”. 
 
Background 
 
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) establishes health-based National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards (NAAQS) for six criteria air pollutants including Particulate Matter, Ozone, Carbon 
Monoxide, Nitrogen Dioxide, Sulfur Dioxide, and Lead.  The Air Quality Management Division 
(AQMD) operates and maintains an ambient air monitoring program to determine compliance with 
the NAAQS.   
 
Although there are no statutory requirements to publish an annual report of ambient air monitoring 
data, EPA strongly encourages air quality management agencies to do so.  Each year, the AQMD 
prepares this report, which summarizes the previous year’s monitoring data.  This report also 
summarizes the long-term trend for each pollutant.   
 
Below is a summary of last year’s Air Quality Index (AQI) levels.  Elevated fine particulate matter 
(PM2.5) concentrations from the Rim Fire and strong temperature inversions in December pushed AQI 
levels to the Unhealthy for Sensitive Groups (USG) range or higher 17 times in 2013.  This is the most 
number of days since 2008 when it reached USG or higher on 8 days. 
 
  

1 of 2

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.5. 



May 22, 2014 
DBOH / “Washoe County, Nevada Air Quality Trends (2004-2013)” 
Page 2 

2013 Air Quality Index Summary by Month and AQI Categories 
 

 
 
To conserve resources, the trends report is not included in your Board packet.  It is 44 pages and the 
entire report can be accessed from the AQMD website (www.OurCleanAir.com) under News & 
Events.  A hard copy can be obtained by contacting Mr. Daniel Inouye at dinouye@washoecounty.us 
or (775) 784-7214.   
 
Possible Motion 
 
Should the DBOH accept the trends report, a possible motion could be “Move to accept the “Washoe 
County, Nevada Air Quality Trends (2004-2013)””. 
 
 
 
 

  
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Good 9 10 25 30 18 27 17 8 19 20 8 5
Moderate 22 18 6 - 13 3 14 16 11 11 21 17
USG* - - - - - - - 3 - - 1 9
Unhealthy - - - - - - - 4 - - - -
Very Unhealthy - - - - - - - - - - - -
Hazardous - - - - - - - - - - - -

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35
D

ay
s 

pe
r M

on
th

 

2 of 2

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.5. 

http://www.ourcleanair.com/
mailto:dinouye@washoecounty.us


1 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



2 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



3 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



4 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



5 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



6 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



7 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



8 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



9 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



10 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



11 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



12 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



13 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



14 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



15 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



16 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



17 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



18 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



19 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



20 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



21 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



22 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



23 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



24 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



25 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



26 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



27 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



28 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



29 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



30 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



31 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



32 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



33 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



34 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



35 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



36 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



37 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



38 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



39 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



40 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



41 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



42 of 42

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: May 22, 2014 

DATE:  May 14, 2014  

TO:  District Board of Health  

FROM: Brittany Dayton, EMS Coordinator, Washoe County Health District  
  775-326-6043, bdayton@washoecounty.us 
 
THROUGH: Dr. Randall Todd, Division Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness  

775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service   
 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this agenda item is to present for review and approval the Amended and Restated 
Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service.  

District Board of Health strategic priority by this item: Be assured that mandates are met and needed 
services are delivered. 

BCC strategic objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and healthy communities.  

PREVIOUS ACTION 

On October 22, 1986, the Health District acting on behalf of Reno, Sparks and Washoe County approved 
a resolution authorizing the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA) to operate 
Emergency Medical Ambulance Services on an exclusive basis in defined areas of Washoe County.  

The District Board of Health has received and approved monthly compliance reports submitted by 
RESMA. The Board has also received and approved franchise compliance reports presented by EMS staff 
on an annual basis. 

Finally, the District Board of Health has received regular staff status reports regarding the collaboration of 
the EMS Executive Committee and EMS Working Group.  

BACKGROUND 

On November 27, 1972, the governing bodies of Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County formed the Washoe 
County Health District to provide a broad range of health services for the benefit of said agencies.  

On October 22, 1986, the Washoe County Health District acting on behalf of Reno, Sparks and Washoe 
County approved a Resolution Authorizing the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
(REMSA) to operate Emergency Medical Ambulance Services on an exclusive basis in defined areas of 
Washoe County. 

In August 2012 the District Board of Health was provided a report titled “Emergency Medical Services 
System Analysis” performed by TriData.  The study contains 38 specific recommendations to be 
considered for the improvement of Emergency Medical Services in Washoe County.  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

1 of 28

mailto:bdayton@washoecounty.us
mailto:rtodd@washoecounty.us


Date: May 14, 2014 
Subject: Approval of Ambulance Franchise  
Page 2 of 2  
 

Reno, Sparks, Washoe County, RESMA and the Health District together on October 18, 2012, February 
11, 2013, and June 10, 2013, reviewed and directed changes to the provision of Emergency Medical 
Services through the TriData recommendations. 

Following these concurrent meetings the EMS Working Group conducted several meetings that resulted 
in a Principles of Agreement document for the reworking of a revised franchise agreement.  

On February 10, 2014 Reno, Sparks, Washoe County, REMSA and the Health District held a concurrent 
meeting which directed the development of an updated Franchise agreement between Washoe County 
District Board of Health and REMSA based on the Principles of Agreement.  

Additionally, throughout the process the EMS Executive Committee met bi-monthly to build consensus 
surrounding the inclusion of the TriData recommendations and Principles of Agreement into the 
Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service. This group included the following 
individuals: 

John Slaughter, Washoe County Manager 
Andrew Clinger, Reno City Manager  
Shaun Carey, Retired Sparks City Manager  
Steve Driscoll, Sparks City Manager  
Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Jim Gubbels, President of REMSA 
Robert Chisel, Director of Finance and Administration 
Dr. Randall Todd, Division Director of Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness  
Brittany Dayton, EMS Coordinator 
 
On May 2, 2014 the entire EMS Working Group convened to discuss and review the proposed Amended 
and Restated Franchise Agreement. This meeting including representation from Reno Fire Department, 
Sparks Fire Department, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection 
District, City of Sparks, City of Reno, Washoe County, Washoe County Sheriff’s Office, REMSA and the 
Washoe County Health District.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There will be no additional direct fiscal impact to the Health District associated with the approval of the 
Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health review the proposed Amended and Restated Franchise 
Agreement for Ambulance Service; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute each document 
with an implementation date of July 1, 2014. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION  
 
Move to approve the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service; and authorize 
the Chairman to execute. 
 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

2 of 28



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

The table below includes the TriData recommendations, Principles of Agreements as well as the 
location of the recommendation and/or Principles in the proposed REMSA franchise agreement, if 
applicable.  

No. TriData Recommendation and Principles of Agreement 
Franchise 

Article 

1 

Gerlach VFD should consider the possible benefits for charging fees for 
EMS transportation. Alternatively, they could make an agreement with 
REMSA for partial reimbursement. 

 Not Addressed  To be addressed by policy direction from the WC/BCC 

 

 

N/A 

2 

All Emergency Dispatch Centers within Washoe County should begin to 
collect data on arrival at patient side. They should also collect data on 
the time that either CPR is started or an AED is deployed. 

Principles of Agreement 3.b.  pg. 17 [of the February 10  staff report] 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I.C.1.  pg. 22 
6.1 

3 

Reno EComm (and successor organizations) and the Departments with 
volunteer fire services should develop a technological solution to 
decrease the impact of dispatch delays. 

 

To be addressed by policy direction from the WC/BCC or WC Fire 
District Board 

 

N/A 

4 

Review the incident reporting procedures between REMSA and all Fire 
Protection Districts and implement a unique identifier that allows for 
the reporting, integration, and analysis of an entire incident and not 
just the respective department’s performance. 

Principles of Agreement 3.a.  pg.17 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I.C.3.  pg. 22 

 

5.2 and 
6.1 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

3 of 28



5 

Create a lead EMS Agency, under the District Board of Health (and 
County Health Officer) to provide oversight over the entire EMS system, 
while maintaining the organizational identity of the individual provider 
services. This system should include a county EMS Manager, EMS 
Medical Director, and sufficient staff to provide regulation and oversight 
of access, clinical care, administration, quality management, education 
and training, disaster management, and evaluation. All organizations 
from PSAPs to healthcare systems that provide EMS in Washoe County 
should be part of the county-wide system. 

Medical Direction will be provided by the Medical Director of each 
agency in accordance with NRS 450B.  DBOH oversight will provide for 
the coordination and integration of medical direction for the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services System.    

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I.  pg. 20 

N/A 

6 

Create a lead EMS Agency, under the District Board of Health (and County 
Health Officer) to provide oversight over the entire EMS system, while 
maintaining the organizational identity of the individual provider services. 
This system should include an EMS Manager, EMS Medical Director, and 
sufficient staff to provide regulation and oversight of access, clinical care, 
administration, quality management, education and training, disaster 
management, and evaluation. All organizations from PSAPs to healthcare 
systems that provide EMS in Washoe County should be part of the 
county-wide system. Alternatively, oversight could be provided by 
another Washoe County public safety agency. 

Medical Direction will be provided by the Medical Director of each 
agency in accordance with NRS 450B.  DBOH oversight will provide for 
the coordination and integration of medical direction for the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services System.    

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1.  20 

 

N/A 

7 

Under no circumstances should the county, any city, or any fire 
protection district agree to provide an EMS contractor a government 
subsidy, or stipend to provide service. 

Principles of Agreement 1.j.  pg. 14 

 

2.8 

8 

The DBOH should be given the authority to, and appoint an EMS 
Medical Director with oversight and authority over the quality of care 
for the entire system. The EMS Medical Director would report to the 
District Health Officer, and could be a classified or contracted 
employee. 

Medical Direction will be provided by the Medical Director of each 
agency in accordance with NRS 450B.  DBOH oversight will provide for 
the coordination and integration of medical direction for the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services System.    

N/A 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

4 of 28



Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I.A.1.b.  pg. 20 

 

9 

Work to assure the passage of legislation or administrative regulation 
providing legal protection to all constituents participating in local EMS 
quality management programs. 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1. c.  pg. 20  

 

N/A 

10 

Accept the listed qualifications for the position of County EMS Medical 
Director. 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1.  pg. 20  

  Subject to recruitment of the position.  will require a detailed    
Washoe County Job Description 

 

N/A 

11 

Rename the PMAC as the EMS Medical Director Task Force to be 
chaired by the County EMS Medical Director. The task force would be 
advisory in nature. 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1.  pg. 20 and 
Section I. B. 1.  pg. 21 

 

The consensus of the group is the Regional Emergency Medical Services 
Oversight Program will provide for the coordination and integration of 
medical direction for the Regional Emergency Medical Services System 
and may use the PMAC, which is a private not-for-profit entity, to 
provide some consultative information as requested. 

 

N/A 

12 

Within the Washoe County District Board of Health (or selected lead EMS 
agency), create a data management program to generate valid, reliable, 
accurate, and timely information to describe the entire EMS event for the 
county and provide real time feedback to response agencies and the 
community. Cooperate with other public health and public safety and 
community resources to produce injury and illness surveillance reports 
that can be used to focus EMS efforts. 

Principles of Agreement 2.b.  pg. 16 

Principles of Agreement 3.a., b., c.  pg.17 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. C. 1.  pg. 22 

 

5.2 and 
6.1 

13 

Combine 9-1-1/dispatch centers into one central county-wide resource 
so that all data is collected in one central location with singular 
methodology. Alternatively, develop a virtual consolidation between 
dispatch centers using a universal CAD or type of CAD for the county. 

Principles of Agreement 2.b.ii.  pg. 17 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. C. 1.  pg. 22 

5.2 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

5 of 28



14 

Implement a countywide EMS Records Management System that links 
CAD and dispatch data, and provides the necessary information so that 
system managers can make informed decisions about the EMS system 
based on fractile response data. 

Principles of Agreement 2.b.ii.  pg. 16 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. C. 2.  pg.22 

 

 

5.2 

15 

Implement an Automatic Vehicle Locator (AVL) program throughout the 
county and adopt closest forces principles. 

Principles of Agreement 2.c.  pg.17 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1. g.  pg. 21 
5.2 

16 

Place all EMS Communications on the 800MHz radio system. 

Principles of Agreement 2.a.  pg. 16 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. C.  pg. 22 

 

 

5.1 

17 

Section 1 should be redesigned to prohibit any REMSA board 
appointee, or their employer organization from being associated with 
RASI or any successor franchisees. All consumer board members 
should be directly appointed by the DBOH. 

Principles of Agreement 1.l.iii.  pg. 16 

Principles of Agreement 1.m.  pg.16 

 

3.1 and 
3.2 

18 

If REMSA continues to use market analysis, it should include intra-model 
and extra-model comparisons. No more than seven years should elapse 
without conducting a full competitive bid. 

Principles of Agreement 1.k.  pg. 15 

 

 

4.1.a-f 

19 

Require REMSA or the contracted agency to post a surety bond, or 
secure an irrevocable line of credit for at least $1,000,000. The franchise 
agreement should also include a clause that upon declaration of default 
by the District Health Officer or DBOH, either REMSA or any service 
contractor cannot bring legal action to delay the DBOH’s access to the 
funds. 

Principles of Agreement 8.  pg. 18 

Remains under discussion  Suggested re-opener language to develop 
the details related to the possible business failure of REMSA and 
continuity of operations and access to the operational assets. 

 

15.1 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

6 of 28



20 

The eight minute and 59 second response time requirement should be 
required for all calls classified by the PSAP as Charlie, Delta, or Echo 
(Priority 1 or 2). 

Principles of Agreement 4.a.  pg. 17 

 

7.1 and 
7.2 

21 

The downgrading of call priority classifications may only be done by the 
PSAP, PDAP, or on scene first responder. If the District Health Officer 
wishes to allow REMSA or the contracted agency the privilege of 
downgrading call classifications, it must occur prospectively (prior to 
ambulance dispatch), and include an explanation within the call 
software. The District Health Officer should monitor compliance and 
disqualify those downgrading without good reason or documentation. 
The DBOH annual franchise report should contain a summary of 
downgrade requests and determinations. 

Principles of Agreement 6.a.ii.  pg. 18 

Principles of Agreement 7.b.  pg. 18 

 

5.3, 7.4 
and 12.1 

22 

Response time compliance should be based on the entire population 
instead of sampling. 

Principles of Agreement 7.b.  pg. 18 

 

5.2 and 
7.4 

23 

Determine ambulance response time fines based on both the act of 
lateness and degree of lateness. Assess a $100.00 penalty for being late 
and an additional $15.28 (as per CPI changes) per minute to a maximum 
of $250.00. 

Principles of Agreement 7.c.  pg. 18 

Agreement that no change to penalties is needed. 

 

*The EMS Working Group Executive Committee determined that the 
penalty amount was not a significant driver of compliance.  Also, 
REMSA has a robust system of quality assurance and is appropriately 
evaluating the circumstances surrounding late arrivals and 
implementing corrective actions as necessary. 

 

N/A* 

24 

Funds collected for EMS contract performance standard violations 
should be used to offset system wide EMS oversight costs incurred by 
the Washoe County DBOH. 

Principles of Agreement 1.h.  pg. 14 (possible primary fiscal resource) 

Principles of Agreement 7.c.  pg. 18 (possible secondary fiscal 
resource) 

 To be addressed by policy direction from the WC/BCC as a possible 
budgetary issue. 

  Not incorporated. Not a stable or significant source of funds for this use. 

2.6 and 
7.8 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

7 of 28



25 

Remove the arbitration clause from Section 11. If ADR is considered, 
professional mediation is the method of choice. The District Board of 
Health should have the ultimate decision power over ambulance rate 
regulation. 

Principles of Agreement 9.a.  pg. 18 

14.1 

26 

Require REMSA to submit their annual report to the DBOH within 90 
days of the fiscal year end. 

Principles of Agreement 6.b.i.  pg. 18 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1. f.  pg. 21 

 

Not feasible.  Requires year-end financial close-out and financial audit. 
Remains at 180 days. 

 

12. 2 

27 

Cities within Washoe County should consult their legal services to provide 
guidance on the implications of REMSA Franchise Agreement Section 30. 
EMS agencies must understand that there may be no single answer to 
their concern. 

Principles of Agreement 8.  pg. 18 ( Suggested re-opener language to 
develop the details related to the possible business failure of REMSA and 
continuity of operations and access to the operational assets. 

 

Not addressed by EMS Working Group. 

 

N/A 

28 

Restructure REMSA to assure greater separation of the public utility 
oversight group (REMSA), and the contractor (RASI). 

Principles of Agreement 1.l.iii.  pg. 16 

Principles of Agreement 1.m.  pg.16 

 

3.1 and 
3.2 

29 

The County Commissioners should authorize the District Health Board (or 
other lead agency) to create a countywide EMS oversight authority. The 
District Health Officer (or designated department head) would be 
responsible for day-to-day oversight. The DHOH would need a staff to 
accomplish this oversight. 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I.  pg. 20 

 

N/A 

30 

The chosen lead agency should appoint an EMS Staff that includes: an 
EMS Manager, EMS Medical Director, EMS Information Specialist, EMS 
Quality Manager, and EMS Education and Training Manager. 

Principles of Agreement 5.  pg. 18 

 

REMSA will provide education services.  No Education staff.  Other 
staffing may be reduced from recommendation to control costs. 

11.1–
11.4* 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

8 of 28



* The EMS Working Group Executive Committee determined that it 
would be acceptable to modify the TriData staffing recommendation.  
REMSA will provide educational services as addressed in Article 11. 

  

 

31 

The designated Washoe County EMS agency should enter into an 
agreement with REMSA for the provision of county-wide EMS Education 
and Training. Granting of function privileges  would remain under 
control of the local agency and its medical director. Local agencies could 
“opt-out” of or augment REMSA provided education and training. 
Regulatory oversight of the education and training processes would be 
the responsibility of the Washoe County EMS Manager and EMS Medical 
Director. REMSA could provide these services cost-free in exchange for 
EMS first responder services being provided by Cities and Fire Districts. 

Principles of Agreement 5.  pg.18 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1. c.  pg. 20 

 

Providing education in exchange for first responder services is not 
feasible under the law. 

 

11.4 

32 

REMSA should continue to be the primary EMS transport provider for its 
current areas. NLTFPD and Gerlach Volunteer Fire Company should also 
be permitted to continue its current operation as prescribed by law or 
policy. 

Principles of Agreement 1.b.  pg. 13 

 

2.2 

33 

Truckee Meadows/Sierra should continue to be served by REMSA. The 
current levels of first responder care should continue. After data are 
analyzed, a decision can be made to consider what level of care is 
necessary in the new Truckee Meadows/Sierra FPD. Washoe County 
officials should encourage agencies that may possess the necessary data 
to forward it to the TriData project manager for analysis. 

Principles of Agreement 1.b.--> pg. 13 

Action taken by WC/BCC as Fire District Board to increase TMFPD 
personnel to Paramedic 

 

2.2 

34 

At the current time, evidence is lacking to support first responder 
upgrade to paramedic. Current EMTs and EMT-Is should provide the 
maximum care available for their current level of certification. 

Action taken by WC/BCC as Fire District Board to increase TMFPD 
personnel to Paramedic. 

 

 

N/A 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

9 of 28



 

35 

REMSA should discontinue using the statement that their service is 
provided at no cost to the citizens. 

Principles of Agreement 1.j.  pg. 14 

 

2.8 

36 

Municipal first responders should be reimbursed by REMSA for providing 
first responder services. 

Principles of Agreement 1.i.   pg. 14 (Supply Exchange and 
Reimbursement. 

 

2.7 

37 

The Reno Fire Department, IAFF, and the volunteer service should work 
out any issues assure that the closest, qualified unit will be sent to a 
medical emergency. 

Principles of Agreement 4.b.  pg. 17 

Resolution for Inter-Local Agreement Section I. A. 1. e.  pg. 20 

 

7.3 

38 

The Reno Fire Department should not suspend responding to EMS calls, 
even during high volume fire responses. If reduced response is 
necessary, EMS first response could be limited to Priority D or E level 
calls. 

To be determined by policy direction from the Reno City Council. 

 

N/A 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

10 of 28



 

  
AMENDED AND 

RESTATED FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT 

FOR 
AMBULANCE SERVICE 

 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

11 of 28



1 
 

This AMENDED AND RESTATED FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (Agreement) dated as 
of _____________, 2014, modifies and/or restates the provisions of the Amended And Restated 
Franchise Agreement:  Organizational, Performance and Operational Criteria For the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Authority dated January 21, 2005, and is entered into by and 
between the Washoe County Health District, a Special District created pursuant to Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Chapter 439 (DISTRICT) and the Regional Emergency Medical  
Services Authority, a Nevada Non-Profit Corporation (REMSA) to provide for ambulance 
services within the defined franchise area upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, with 
reference to the following recitals: 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, in August of 1986, Washoe County, the cities of Reno and Sparks amended 
their Interlocal Agreement creating the Washoe County Health District conferring upon the 
DISTRICT the authority to exercise the power granted to Washoe County and the cities of Reno 
and Sparks pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes to displace or limit competition in the grant of 
any franchise for ambulance services; and 

  
WHEREAS, in 1986, DISTRICT granted REMSA the right to provide both emergency 

and non-emergency ambulance service by ground and rotary wing units on an exclusive basis 
within the Washoe County Health District except for ground unit operation in Gerlach and the 
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District as memorialized in a Resolution Authorizing the 
Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority to operate Ambulance Services on an 
Exclusive Basis dated October 22, 1986 and Memorandum of Understanding, Grant of Exclusive 
Franchise dated May 5, 1987; and 

 
WHEREAS, REMSA has provided continuous emergency and non-emergency 

ambulance service within the Franchise Service Area pursuant to the Organizational, 
Performance And Operational Criteria for the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority, 
adopted by the DISTRICT on October 22, 1986 and subsequently amended:  9/87, 1/88, 12/89, 
2/90, 6/90, 3/91, 3/92, 8/93, 11/93, 7/96, 9/00, 8/03 and 1/05; and 
 
 WHEREAS, DISTRICT oversight of REMSA’s operation of a Regional Emergency 
Medical Services System must be conducted comprehensively in order to evaluate and seek 
continuous improvement in system performance, patient outcomes and compliance with law and 
regulation  thus requiring periodic updates to the Franchise Agreement Organizational, 
Performance and Operational Criteria (the “Franchise”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, DISTRICT and REMSA desire to update the Franchise and have worked 
cooperatively with Washoe County and the cities of Reno and Sparks;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE FOREGOING RECITALS WHICH ARE 
INCORPORATED HEREIN, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

12 of 28



2 
 

ARTICLE 1 
DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1. Definitions:  As used herein, the following terms shall have the following designated 
meanings: 

 
ALS means the Advanced Life Support level as defined in NAC 450B under “Advanced 

Medical Care”. 
 
DISTRICT means the governing body of the Washoe County Health District created 

pursuant to NRS 439.369, et.seq.  
 
District Health Officer means the District Health Officer appointed by the Washoe 

County DISTRICT pursuant to NRS 439.400. 
 
Effective Date shall mean July 1, 2014. 
 
EMS shall mean emergency medical services. 
 
Franchise Service Area includes all of Washoe County with the exception of the Gerlach 

volunteer ambulance service area and the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District. 
 
EMT shall mean emergency medical technician as set forth in NAC 450B. 
 
Franchise shall mean the articles contained in this document. 

 
 
 ILS means the Intermediate Life Support level as defined in NAC 450B under 
“Intermediate Medical Care”.  
 
 NRS means the Nevada Revised Statutes. 
 
 NAC means the Nevada Administrative Code. 
 
 Paramedic shall have the meaning ascribed to it in NAC 450B. 
 
 

ARTICLE 2 
GRANTING OF EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 

 
2.1. Exclusive Market Rights:  REMSA is awarded exclusive market rights (911 and “Routine 
Transfer”), to contract for and through a contractor to provide both emergency and non-
emergency ambulance service by ground on an exclusive basis within the Franchise Service 
Area, regardless of whether the patient's destination is inside or outside Washoe County subject 
to the following exceptions: 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

13 of 28



3 
 

(a)  Long-distance, inter-facility transports which originate outside the Franchise Service 
Area. Other firms may compete with REMSA on a retail basis for the sale of inter-facility 
ambulance transports that originate outside of the Franchise Service Area and terminate 
in the service area; 
 
(b)  Disaster Mutual Aid. Ambulances providing assistance during disaster incidents 
involving the Franchise Service Area may operate within the Franchise Service Area 
when requested to do so by REMSA; 
 
(c)  Mutual Aid. REMSA may employ the use of "mutual aid" as appropriate in 
fulfillment of its obligations hereunder; and 
 
(d)  Federally-Operated Ambulances.  Any ambulance owned and operated by an agency 
of the federal government (such as military) may operate within the Franchise Service 
Area. 

 
2.2. Franchise Service Area:  The service area includes all of Washoe County with the 
exception of the Gerlach volunteer ambulance service area and the North Lake Tahoe Fire 
Protection District.  
 
2.3. Level of Care: 
 

(a)  ALS Transport:  All ambulances rendering emergency 911 services pursuant to this 
agreement shall be staffed at a minimum with one paramedic and one EMT as defined in 
NAC Chapter 450B. 
 
(b)  ILS Transfer or Transports:  Ambulances rendering ILS services for inter-facility 
transfers or transport shall be at a minimum with one Advanced EMT as defined in NAC 
Chapter 450B.   
 
All transports or transfers of sick or injured persons whose condition may require medical 

observation or care at the paramedic scope of practice level, including patients who require 
transport or transfer on a stretcher, by ground ambulance units must be accomplished at the ALS 
level.  Patients whose condition is stable and require simple observation and/or care within the 
Advanced Emergency Medical Technician (AEMT) scope of practice level during an inter-
facility transfer or non-urgent transport on a stretcher by ground may be accomplished at the ILS 
Level.    

 
2.4. Term:  REMSA shall be entitled to the exclusive right to operate ground ambulance 
services within the Franchise Service Area for sixteen (16) years from July 1, 2014 until June 30, 
2030 (the “Term”).  During the initial Term, a review of operations shall be conducted during the 
tenth year.  If operations are determined to meet the performance standards of this agreement, a 
mutually agreed upon operating extension of six (6) years may be granted for the period starting 
on July 1, 2030 and terminating on June 30, 2036.  If operations are determined by the 
DISTRICT to meet the performance standards of this agreement, a second mutually agreed upon 
operating extension of six (6) years may be granted for the period starting on July 1, 2036 and 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

14 of 28



4 
 

terminating on June 30, 2042. 
 
2.5. Periodic Review:  REMSA and the DISTRICT shall evaluate and discuss the terms of 
this Franchise after year ten (10) (2024) and year sixteen (16) (2030) (if an initial extension is 
granted) and amend the agreement as may be mutually agreed upon by both parties and after 
formal action by the DISTRICT. 
 
2.6. Oversight Fee:  REMSA shall pay an Oversight Fee of 12.5% of the total costs per year 
for the DISTRICT’s Regional Emergency Medical Services Oversight Program.  This fee is to 
help cover costs associated with oversight of REMSA performance.  Payments shall be made 
upon receipt of an invoice from the DISTRICT. 
 
2.7. Supply Exchange and Reimbursement:  REMSA shall develop and offer a supply 
exchange/reimbursement agreement with the county and city fire service functions. 
 
2.8. No Obligation for Subsidy:  The granting of this exclusive right to operate ambulance 
services does not carry any obligation on the part of the District Board of Health, the Cities of 
Reno and Sparks and Washoe County for any type of monetary subsidy.  Costs for REMSA must 
be borne by REMSA, which is self-supporting. 
 
 

ARTICLE 3 
GOVERNING BODY 

 
3.1. REMSA Board of Directors:  The governing body of REMSA (the “REMSA Board”) 
shall consist of the following: 
 

(a)  One (1) representative from Renown Regional Medical Center; 
(b)  One (1) representative from Saint Mary’s Regional Medical Center; 
(c)  One (1) representative from Northern Nevada Medical Center; 
(d)  One (1) consumer representative appointed by the above three hospital 
representatives; 
(e)  One (1) representative from the legal profession; 
(f)  One (1) representative from the accounting profession; and 
(g)  One (1) consumer representative. 

 
 The last three (3) representatives set forth above are to be appointed by the DISTRICT. 
 
 The DISTRICT Health Officer shall be Ex-Officio.  
 
 The composition of the REMSA Board may be modified if mutually agreed upon by the 
REMSA Board and the DISTRICT. 
 
 Any contract, transaction or renewal of such relationship involving a member of the 
REMSA Board shall be reviewed and approved by a majority of the disinterested members of the 
REMSA Board to assure that such contract or transaction is bona fide, at arm’s length and in the 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

15 of 28



5 
 

best interests of REMSA. 
 
  
3.2. Board Member Separation:  No employee or board member of the ambulance service 
contractor contracted by REMSA may serve as a member of the REMSA Board of Directors. 
 
3.3. Meetings:  The REMSA Board shall meet at least six times per calendar year to conduct 
operations and fiscal oversight and to develop, monitor and amend the policies and procedures 
for REMSA in the provision of ambulance services.  

 
 

ARTICLE 4 
 AMBULANCE SERVICE CONTRACTS, COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND 

MARKET SURVEY 
 
4.1 Market Survey and Competitive Bidding:  During the Terms of the Franchise Agreement, 
unless REMSA otherwise issues a competitive bid for the provision of its ground ambulance 
services, REMSA shall undertake market surveys initially in year seven (7) of the agreement and 
every six (6) years following that to ensure that the services provided by REMSA’s contractor(s) 
optimize the quality and experience of care and achieve economic efficiency.  Such market 
surveys shall be completed during the years 2021 and 2027.  Additional market studies shall 
occur at six (6)-year cycles.  REMSA shall follow the following procedures with respect to the 
market study: 
 
 (a)  REMSA shall recommend an independent entity approved by the DISTRICT with 
expertise in emergency medical services and in high performance EMS systems (the 
“Consultant”) to collect and analyze data and prepare a written study report. 
 
 (b)  REMSA shall recommend for review a number of EMS market areas agreed to by the 
DISTRICT.  The selected market areas shall exhibit market characteristics reasonably similar to 
those of the Franchise Service Area, or if not similar, different in ways for which adjustments 
can be made to achieve fairness in cost comparison. 
 
 (c)  REMSA shall cause the Consultant to use intra-model and extra-model comparisons 
in the market study to the extent that reliable data can be obtained to estimate the quality of 
patient care, response time reliability, economic efficiency and other benchmarks of the market 
study and such data can be reasonably compared to REMSA’s data. 
 

(d)  If, based on the market study, the REMSA Board and the DISTRICT determine that 
the market areas selected for comparison are receiving equal or better service at a cost 
substantially lower than that being offered by REMSA’s contractor, taking into account relevant 
differences in market conditions, a competitive bid shall be conducted.  Or, following the 
completion of a market study, the current contractor may be provided an opportunity to develop 
and submit for approval by the REMSA Board and the DISTRICT a performance improvement 
plan addressing any identified corrective actions and opportunities for performance improvement 
or system enhancements prior to a competitive bid. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

16 of 28



6 
 

 
(e)  If REMSA and the DISTRICT determine that the market study reveals that the 

performance of REMSA’s contractor is reasonably competitive on service and cost, adjusted to 
account for relevant differences in market characteristic, no competitive bid will be required. 
 
 (f)  During the term of this Franchise Agreement, if it is deemed necessary by REMSA, 
or is deemed necessary as a result of a Market Study result as outlined above, REMSA shall 
undertake a competitive bid process to select its ground ambulance service contractor and may 
enter into a multi-year agreement with that contractor for the provision of service under this 
Franchise Agreement.  The multi-year contract with REMSA’s contractor may be for a period of 
not more than ten (10) years total and may consist of six-year earned extensions.  A waiver of the 
aforementioned time periods may be considered by the DISTRICT for extraordinary 
circumstances outside the control of REMSA and its contractor, for example economic 
conditions and health care reimbursement policy changes.  
 

 
ARTICLE 5 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
5.1. Radio:  REMSA shall establish 800 MHz communications capabilities with the current 
911 system requirements and transition in the future to maintain compatible communications 
with 911 systems as technologies evolve as defined by the DISTRICT. 
  
5.2. Dispatch:  REMSA is the community emergency medical dispatch center for the 
Franchise Service Area.  REMSA will be responsible for coordinating all EMS service radio 
traffic for patient reports to the area hospitals and will record these transactions. 
  
 REMSA’s dispatch center must also maintain a secondary emergency communication 
system and must include operational drills on the backup system conducted at least on an annual 
basis. All dispatch system equipment must be consistently maintained in good working order. 
REMSA shall provide documentation of compliance to the District annually.   
 
 REMSA shall furnish at its own expense a system status management (SSM) based 
computer aided dispatch (CAD) system.  When the Washoe County/Reno PSAP and Sparks 
PSAP Tiburon CAD systems are installed and upgraded the REMSA CAD system shall at a 
minimum, be capable of interfacing in real time with the Washoe County/Reno and Sparks CAD 
systems (henceforth public safety CADS); contributing to a complete electronic record of 
response times from all dispatch activities. 
 
 REMSA shall furnish and maintain at its own expense its share of a two-way interface 
between the public safety CADs and REMSA’s CAD.  This interface shall at a minimum provide 
for the instantaneous and simultaneous transmission of call-related information and unit status 
updates between the public safety CADs and REMSA’s CAD.  At a minimum, this interface 
shall facilitate: 
 
 (a)  CAD call creation and forwarding to one or more agencies; 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

17 of 28



7 
 

 (b)  Real-time resource availability and status changes of all participating agencies; 
(c)  The capability of communicating between PSAPs and field units in which mobile 
data terminals (MDTs) are installed; and 

 (d) The ability to view run-time information for all calls. 
 
 Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL).  REMSA shall furnish and maintain at its own 
expense its share of a two-way interface between the public safety CADs and REMSA’s CAD 
which provides two-way communication and visualization of AVL information regarding 
REMSA ambulance locations and EMS vehicles in order to allow for the closest EMS responder 
to respond within each response agency’s jurisdiction. 
 
5.3.  Change of Priority:  Once a priority has been assigned to a call, REMSA shall not 
upgrade or downgrade that priority unless the patient information has changed by the calling 
party, or unless requested by the PSAP or an on-scene first responder. 

 
  

ARTICLE 6 
DATA AND RECORDS MANAGEMENT 

 
6.1. Data and Records:  REMSA shall work with the 911 system and utilize the CAD to CAD 
interface to obtain and utilize combined identifiers which will be used to analyze EMS responses 
and PSAP data. 
 
 REMSA shall provide additional response data and records as requested by the District 
Health Officer to support the DISTRICT’s oversight role and assist in continuously improving 
the quality of the regional EMS system. 
  
 REMSA shall make available electronic patient care records as requested by the District 
Health Officer.  
 
 

ARTICLE 7 
RESPONSE COMPLIANCE AND PENALTIES 

 
7.1. Response Zones:  The franchise area shall be divided into response zones A through E as 
specified in the map included as a part of this agreement in Attachment A.  This map identifies 
the response zones effective July 1, 2014.  The response zone map may change during the period 
of the agreement due to annual review and as mutually agreed to by REMSA and the District.  
The response zones will have response time compliance standards for all presumptively defined 
life threatening calls (Priority 1 Calls) as follows: 
 

Zone A – REMSA shall insure that 90% of all presumptively defined life threatening 
calls (Priority 1 Calls) have a response time of eight (8) minutes and 59 seconds or less within 
the combined Zone A areas. 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

18 of 28



8 
 

Zones B, C, and D – REMSA shall insure that 90% of all presumptively defined life 
threatening calls (Priority 1 Calls) collectively have a response time of; fifteen (15) minutes and 
59 seconds or less for the combined Zone B areas, twenty (20) minutes and 59 seconds or less 
for the combined Zone C areas, and thirty (30) minutes and 59 seconds or less for the combined 
Zone D areas. 

 
Zone E – These response areas are considered Wilderness/Frontier and REMSA shall 

respond to calls in these areas, which may require extraordinary measures, as quickly as possible. 
 
 For the purpose of calculating the compliance to these standards, all Priority 1 responses 
within the separately defined response zones (except Zone E) will be counted. REMSA shall be 
deemed as being in compliance when; 1) REMSA arrives on the scene of a Priority 1 call within 
the designated time frame for that response zone, or 2) when upon arrival at the dispatched 
location of a Priority 1 call there is no patient due to a false alarm or good intent call, or 3) when 
being dispatched to the wrong location of a Priority 1 call due to mis-information from a calling 
or transferring party. All responses which are cancelled before arrival on scene shall not be 
counted in the compliance calculations. 
 
 A “life threatening call” shall be considered those defined as priority one by the medical 
dispatch protocol. 
 
 “Response time” means that time period measured from receipt of information by the 
REMSA dispatch facility on the patient location, the patient condition and a telephone call back 
number to that point in time when the assigned ALS ambulance unit reports to the dispatch 
facility that it is on scene, which is when such vehicle arrives at the incident location.  
 
7.2. Response Determinants:  The REMSA Medical Director and the Fire Departments’ 
Medical Director(s) shall jointly review Emergency Medical Dispatch determinants and set 
priorities for the system on an annual basis. 
 
7.3. Zone Map:  REMSA shall provide, and the DISTRICT shall maintain a current response 
zone map, which is annually reviewed and approved by the DISTRICT.  The response zone map 
will be made publically available through the DISTRICT’s web site. 
 
7.4. Response Time Reporting:  REMSA shall submit response time data to the DISTRICT on 
a monthly basis to assure compliance with the response time standards.  The DISTRICT shall 
conduct monthly reviews of REMSA response time data to assure compliance.  Response time 
data shall include response time zones and address or latitude and longitude coordinates where 
the vehicle has arrived at the incident location. 
 
7.5. Penalties:  For each and every call resulting in a patient transport that does not meet the 
required response time and for which there are not extenuating circumstances either approved by 
the District Health Officer, or which meet exception criteria established by REMSA and 
approved by the District Health Officer, a penalty of $17.83 per minute (or portion thereof) shall 
be assessed for each call that does not meet the required response time, up to a maximum of 
$150.00 per call. Effective July 1, 2015, REMSA shall increase its penalty amounts for all 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

19 of 28



9 
 

established late responses each year by an amount equal to one-hundred percent (100%) of the 
annually allowed consumer price index U.S {West-Size Class B/C All Urban Consumers 
Medical Care Item (December 1997=100)} (“CPI”) increase when compared to the same data 
period for the previous year.  
  
7.6. Exemptions:  Response time exemptions shall be reported monthly to the District Health 
Officer.  Disputes between REMSA and its ambulance contractor(s) arising over an exemption 
shall be forwarded to the District Health Officer. The District Health Officer shall review the 
dispute and make a determination which shall be final and binding upon both parties. 
 
 An exemption to response time penalties may be granted by the District Health Officer, 
or designee, when adherence to response time requirements under extreme weather conditions 
would jeopardize public safety or the safety of ambulance personnel.  Other exemptions and 
exemption criteria may also be provided to REMSA upon approval of the DISTRICT.  Existing 
exemptions granted by the District Health Officer shall remain in effect unless changed or 
rescinded by the District Health Officer or the DISTRICT. 
 
7.7. Penalty Fund:  These penalties shall be placed in a separate restricted account of REMSA 
and shall be used to help defray the costs of educational or community programs, or for other 
purposes subject to prior written approval by the District Health Officer. The penalty fund shall 
be solvent at the end of REMSA’s fiscal year.  
 
7.8. Health Officer Approval:  Penalties and the use of the penalty fund are all subject to 
approval by the District Health Officer. 
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
PATIENT BILLING 

 
8.1. Average Patient Bill:  The DISTRICT shall approve the amount of the maximum average 
patient bill for ground ambulance transport commencing and terminating within the franchise 
area of Washoe County to be charged by REMSA, from time to time, upon written application 
by REMSA. Such maximum average patient bills approved by the DISTRICT shall be 
automatically adjusted thereafter for any change in the CPI for the preceding year without further 
DISTRICT action. The District Health Officer shall inform REMSA at least annually in writing 
with regard to the CPI adjustment amount as determined above. REMSA shall be responsible for 
determining and setting, from time to time, the various rates, fees and charges which comprise 
the patient’s bill for ground ambulance transport and within ten (10) days of such determination, 
REMSA shall provide the District Health Officer in writing a current schedule of rates, charges 
and fees for ground ambulance transport within the franchise area of Washoe County. Such 
schedule of rates, charges, and fees determined by REMSA shall not cause the average patient’s 
bill for ground ambulance transport within the franchise area to exceed the amount of the 
maximum average patient bill then in effect as approved by the DISTRICT. 
 
8.2. Increase Beyond CPI:  If REMSA desires an increase to the average patient bill beyond 
the annual CPI adjustment, REMSA shall present a financial impact statement and other 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

20 of 28



10 
 

supporting documentation to justify such an increase. In addition, the DISTRICT may request 
relevant additional information to determine the necessity of the increase. The DISTRICT must 
either approve or reject REMSA’s requested increase within ninety (90) days after receipt of all 
requested information. If the DISTRICT does not act within the ninety (90) day period or if the 
DISTRICT rejects the rate increase request, REMSA, at its discretion, may submit the matter for 
professional mediation for resolution pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
8.3. Overage in Bill Amount:  In the event the maximum average patient bill exceeds the 
maximum average patient bill in effect for a particular franchise year, REMSA shall offset such 
overage against any allowable CPI adjustment for transports in the subsequent franchise year as 
follows: 
 
 (a) The authorized average bill for the current franchise year will be subtracted from the 

cumulative average bill for the current franchise year. ($498 actual average bill - $491 
authorized average bill = $7 adjusted dollar amount). 

 
 (b) The adjusted dollar amount will be subtracted from the authorized CPI adjusted 

average bill for the next franchise year. ($508 authorized CPI adjusted average bill - $7 
adjusted dollar amount = $501 adjusted average bill.) 

 
 The ensuing franchise year CPI adjustment will be added to the previous year’s 
authorized CPI adjusted average bill. 
 
8.4. Third Party Reimbursement:  In setting and adjusting such rates, charges, and fees for 
ground ambulance transport within the franchise area, REMSA shall utilize its best efforts to 
maximize third party reimbursement and minimize transported patients’ out-of-pocket expense 
as insurance and governmental reimbursement laws, regulations and procedures change, from 
time to time. 
 
8.5. Prepaid Subscription Program:  Unless otherwise prohibited by law, REMSA shall 
maintain a voluntary prepaid ambulance subscription membership program within the franchise 
area of Washoe County to defray the uninsured portion of medically necessary ambulance 
transport within the franchise area of Washoe County. REMSA shall establish the limit for the 
number of times this service may be used by an individual in a membership year and shall report 
the terms of this service to the DISTRICT on a yearly basis. 
 
8.6. Billing:  REMSA is responsible for all billing of patients and third party payers for 
ambulance services provided or REMSA may allow a contractor to do so.  
 
8.7. Accounting Practices:  REMSA shall conform to all generally acceptable accounting 
practices (“GAAP”) and shall have an annual, independent financial audit prepared according to 
generally accepted auditing standards (“GAAS”).   
 
8.8. Audit:  REMSA will provide a copy of the financial audit to the District Health Officer 
within 180 days of the close of its fiscal year and a copy of the Internal Revenue Service Form 
990 to the District Health Officer within fourteen (14) days of its submission to the Internal 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

21 of 28



11 
 

Revenue Service. The independent auditing firm will be selected by REMSA and such firm must 
be subject to peer review. In addition to the normal scope of the independent audit, the 
independent auditing firm will perform “agreed upon procedures” on the average bill and on 
specific franchise issues as agreed to by REMSA and the District Health Officer.  

 
 

ARTICLE 9 
PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT 

 
9.1. Dispatch Personnel Training:  All personnel within the REMSA dispatch facility shall be 
trained at the emergency medical technician or paramedic level. All medical dispatch personnel 
shall maintain certification as Emergency Medical Dispatchers (EMD) from the National 
Academy of Emergency Medical Dispatchers. New dispatch personnel shall receive training 
during their first six (6) months of employment. REMSA shall provide documentation of 
compliance to the DISTRICT annually.  
 
9.2. Dispatch Accreditation:  REMSA shall maintain the National Academy of Emergency 
Medical Dispatchers accreditation of the Accredited Center of Excellence. 
 
9.3. Personnel Licensing and Certification:  All Attendants, Emergency Medical 
Technicians/Paramedics and Emergency Medical Dispatchers involved in providing emergency 
medical services under this Franchise Agreement shall be properly trained, licensed, and/or 
certified in accordance with the requirement of the NRS, Chapter 450B. 
 
9.4. ICS Training:  REMSA field staff and field management personnel shall be trained in the 
National Incident Management System/Incident Command System (NIMS/ICS) protocols at the 
100, 200 and 700 levels.  All field personnel will be trained on the Washoe County Multi 
Casualty Incident Plan (MCIP), and field management staff will have additional training to the 
ICS 300 level. 
 
 During a declared emergency or emergency training exercises, REMSA shall participate 
in the operations section of the emergency operations center (EOC) and shall be trained in and 
utilize the National Incident Management System/Incident Command System  (NIMS/ICS) 
protocols through the ICS 400 level or as may be designated in the future by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  
 
9.5. Ambulance Markings:  All ambulance units, either directly operated by REMSA or by a 
REMSA contractor, shall be marked with REMSA identity rather than the individual identity of 
any ambulance service contractor. 
 
9.6. Ambulance Permits and Equipment:  All Ambulance units shall be permitted, equipped 
and operated in accordance with NRS 450B.   
 
9.7. Field Supervisor Staffing:  REMSA shall insure that a field supervisor is on each shift. 
Such supervisor shall facilitate integration of REMSA ambulance units with public safety 
personnel, may assist REMSA units and personnel on scene and generally function to insure the 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

22 of 28



12 
 

efficient operation of REMSA ambulance services on each shift, including disaster situations.  
 
9.8. Medical Director:  REMSA shall appoint a physician(s) to be the medical director(s) 
(Medical Director) in accordance with the requirements in Nevada Revised Statutes and the 
Nevada Administrative Code. REMSA shall submit the medical director(s) curriculum vitae 
(CV) to the District Health Officer at the time of appointment. 
 
 

ARTICLE 10 
QUALITY ASSURANCE 

 
10.1. Personnel:  REMSA shall designate an individual(s) to be responsible for the internal 
coordination of its medical quality assurance issues. 
 
10.2. Review:  Each calendar month REMSA shall conduct quality assurance reviews of 
ambulance runs from among at least five percent (5%) of the previous month’s ALS calls. Those 
reviews should involve, if possible, the ambulance personnel who participated on those cases and 
shall be conducted by the designated REMSA coordinator(s) of medical quality issues. A 
summary of those quality assurance review activities shall be included in the required monthly 
operations report forwarded to the DISTRICT. 
 
 

ARTICLE 11 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND PUBLIC EDUCATION 

 
11.1. CPR Courses:  REMSA shall offer cardiopulmonary resuscitation (“CPR”) courses at 
least monthly to the public. 
 
11.2. Community Health Education:  At least annually, REMSA shall conduct a multimedia 
campaign, using radio, television, printed media, social media, online education, or promotional 
displays to educate the public. The education focus will be based on a current needs assessment 
in the community to provide citizens with information on medical access, safety and/or health 
promotion.  REMSA shall report on these activities to the DISTRICT.  The Health District may 
assist and participate in such activities. 
 
11.3. Clinical Skills:  REMSA, upon recommendation of its designated coordinator(s) of 
medical quality issues, REMSA’s Medical Director or the District Health Department, shall 
facilitate opportunities for clinical skill experience for specific prehospital care personnel 
through the clinical services of its participating hospitals. 
 
11.4. Fire EMS Training:  REMSA shall provide quarterly training for regional EMS first 
responders at cost to be paid by the other EMS responders’ jurisdiction, governing board or 
agency.  Training will be determined based on recommendations of the Regional Emergency 
Medical Services Advisory Board as approved by the DISTRICT.  REMSA shall provide 
documentation of compliance to the DISTRICT annually. 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

23 of 28



13 
 

ARTICLE 12 
REPORTING 

 
12.1. Monthly Reports:  REMSA shall provide the DISTRICT a monthly report on operational 
activities which shall include: 
  
 (a) Response Time Reporting, 
 (b) CAD Edits and Call Priority Reclassifications, 
 (c) Comments and Complaints, 
 (d) Investigations and Inquiries 
 (e) The Average Patient Bill, and 
 (f) Education and Training Activities.   
 
 The reports shall be in a format agreed upon by the DISTRICT. In addition to REMSA’s 
regional fractile response time compliance reporting requirements, REMSA shall also provide 
response time information on Priority 1 and on Priority 2 calls within each jurisdictional area 
(Reno, Sparks, County) separately for informational purposes.  This reporting format may use 
“average response times” to allow for reporting compatibility with the system first responder 
agencies in each jurisdictional area. 
 
12.2. Annual Reports:  REMSA shall report annually to the DISTRICT its compliance with 
these organizational, performance and operational criteria within one hundred eighty (180) days 
of the end of REMSA’s fiscal year. REMSA will also be monitored by the Health District for 
compliance, and monitoring data will be provided to the District Health Officer. 
 
 The District Health Officer shall report on REMSA’s annual performance to the 
DISTRICT within ninety (90) days of the beginning of each calendar year. The District Health 
Officer will periodically report to Reno, Sparks and Washoe County and the DISTRICT on that 
compliance. 
 
 

ARTICLE 13 
FAILURE TO COMPLY/REMEDIES 

 
13.1. Failure to Comply with Agreement:  This exclusive right of REMSA to operate 
ambulance services within the defined service area shall continue during the term of this 
agreement unless the DISTRICT takes action to rescind this exclusive operating right for the 
material and adverse failure of REMSA to comply with this Franchise. Failure to comply with 
the response time requirement as evaluated annually may result in the loss by REMSA of the 
authority to operate the ambulance service on an exclusive basis. 
 
 
13.2. Notice of Noncompliance:  Unless a substantial and immediate threat to the public health 
requires the DISTRICT to assume control and operation of the ambulance equipment as provided 
for in this franchise designation, the DISTRICT shall notify REMSA in writing of REMSA’s 
failure to comply.  Such notice shall allow REMSA to (1) contest the failure or to (2) correct the 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

24 of 28



14 
 

failure or at DISTRICT’s discretion, to provide a written plan to correct the failure.  The length 
of the response period shall be dependent upon the extent to which public health and safety is 
endangered, as determined by the DISTRICT.   
 
13.3. Failure to Correct/ Rescission of Agreement:  If REMSA fails to correct the failure within 
the allowed response period, the DISTRICT shall notify REMSA of its intent to rescind this 
exclusive operating right and the reasons therefore. 
 
13.4. Alternate to Rescinding Agreement:  As an alternative to rescinding the exclusive 
operating right, the DISTRICT may assess REMSA a financial penalty of up to ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000) for each documented instance of noncompliance that is deemed material and 
adverse following findings and a report of the District Health Officer. The report of the District 
Health Officer must be provided to REMSA.  The District Health Officer shall schedule the 
report as an agenda item of the DISTRICT at a meeting of the DISTRICT held not less than 
thirty (30) days thereafter. REMSA may appeal the findings of the District Health Officer at the 
meeting of the DISTRICT by filing a notice of appeal with the District Health Officer not less 
than fifteen (15) days before the meeting of the Board. Any written documentation regarding the 
appeal which REMSA desires to submit must be submitted to the District Health Officer not less 
than seven (7) days before the meeting. At the meeting the Board will review the findings and 
report of the District Health Officer and REMSA’s appeal if any. If the Board concludes the 
report is accurate, it may impose the penalty set forth above. Any financial penalty assessed shall 
be remitted to the District Health Department for use in support of the District Health 
Department EMS program activities. 
 
 

ARTICLE 14 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 
14.1 Agreement to Mediate Disputes:  In the event that any dispute arises between the parties 
in relation to this Agreement, or out of this Agreement, and the dispute is not resolved by 
negotiation, the parties agree to submit the dispute to mediation.  The parties further agree that 
their participation in mediation is a condition precedent to any party pursuing any other available 
remedy in relation to the dispute.  
 

Any party to the dispute may give written notice to the other party of his or her desire to 
commence mediation, and a mediation session must take place within thirty (30) days after the 
date that such notice is given. 
 

The parties must jointly appoint a mutually acceptable mediator. If the parties are unable 
to agree upon the appointment of a mediator within seven (7) days after a party has given notice 
of a desire to mediate the dispute, each party shall appoint an independent person, solely being 
responsible for that person’s costs, and then those two (2) persons shall promptly appoint a 
jointly selected, qualified mediator, the costs for whom shall be equally shared by the parties. 
The two persons who appoint the mediator shall have no further role. 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

25 of 28



15 
 

 The parties further agree to share equally the costs of the mediation, which costs will not 
include costs incurred by a party for representation by counsel at the mediation.  
 
 

ARTICLE 15 
FINANCIAL ASSURANCE/CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS 

 
15.1.  Financial Assurance/Continuity of Operations:  REMSA shall furnish and maintain a 
performance security with the DISTRICT in the amount of three million dollars ($3,000,000) in the 
form of a designated reserve amount in the equity statement of the REMSA financials.  This 
performance security may be utilized by the DISTRICT in the event of a substantial and immediate 
threat to the public health that requires the DISTRICT to assume the control and operation of the 
ambulance service. 
 
 Any and all successors and assigns to REMSA under any future franchise designation, 
license or substitute thereof shall be required to utilize the central facility established by REMSA 
to house, service, and maintain its offices, communications center, emergency vehicles, supplies, 
equipment and related items utilized within the EMS system developed under REMSA’s 
franchise and to assume all the financial responsibility related thereto as part of its obligations as 
successor to REMSA. Such obligations to be assumed by the successor also include assuming 
any and all obligations under any lease agreement of the central facility, performance or security 
bond arrangements, ground  ambulance provider or service agreements, occupancy agreements, 
lockbox arrangements, equipment leases such as the three-way lease, communications equipment 
leases, computer and office equipment leases, and other on-going obligations of REMSA as 
franchisee necessary or expedient to maintain the EMS system developed under REMSA’s 
franchise. Any equipment or property owned by REMSA and utilized within the EMS system 
shall be purchased by such successor for cash on such terms mutually agreeable to REMSA and 
such successor. If REMSA and such successor cannot agree on the terms of purchase, the matter 
shall be submitted to mediation pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 16 
INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
16.1. Insurance:  REMSA shall maintain medical professional and commercial general liability 
insurance of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million 
dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.  Automobile liability will also be at a combined single limit of 
one million dollars ($1,000,000), Workers compensation and employer's liability will be at one 
million dollars ($1,000,000).  Evidence of insurance coverage will be submitted to the District on 
an annual basis, and the DISTRICT shall be listed as an additional insured. 
 
16.2. Indemnification:  The parties agree to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the other party, 
its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from any loss or liability, financial or otherwise 
resulting from any claim, demand, suit, action, or cause of action based on bodily injury including 
death or property damage, including damage to property, caused by the omission, failure to act, or 
negligence on the part of the party, its employees, agents, representatives, or Subcontractors arising 
out of the performance of work under this Agreement. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

26 of 28



16 
 

 
16.3. Limitation of Liability:  The DISTRICT will not waive and intends to assert any available 
remedy and liability limitation set forth in Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised Statutes and applicable 
case law. 
 
 

ARTICLE 17 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
17.1. REMSA Contracts with Other Entities:  In the event that REMSA enters into service 
agreements with any other political entity, such service agreements shall be negotiated in such a 
way that the new system would fund its share of the costs of providing the service and shall not 
deplete or negatively impact the provision of service with the designated franchise area described 
herein. 
 
17.2. Governing Law; Jurisdiction: This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the 
parties hereto shall be governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Nevada.  
The parties consent to the jurisdiction of Nevada district courts in Washoe County for the 
enforcement of this Agreement. 
 
17.3. Assignment:  Neither party shall assign, sublet or transfer any interest or service in this 
Agreement, or which arises out of this Agreement, without the written consent of the other party 
 
17.4. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement or its application is held invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected. 
 
17.5. Entire Agreement/Modification: This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the 
parties.  No change, termination or attempted waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing by each of the parties.   
 
17.6. Benefits:  This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the parties hereto.  It 
shall confer no benefits, direct or indirect, on any third persons, including employees of the 
parties.  No person or entity other than the parties themselves may rely upon or enforce any 
provision of this Agreement.  The decision to assert or waive any provision of this Agreement is 
solely that of each party. 
 
17.7. Notice:  All notices and demands required under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed to have been duly given, made and received when delivered or deposited in the 
United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage pre-paid, addressed as follows: 
  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

27 of 28



17 
 

Washoe County Health District REMSA 
District Health Officer Attn: 
P.O. Box 11130 
Reno, NV  89520  

450 Edison Way 
Reno, NV 89502 

 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year below 
noted. 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
 
By:         
Title:         
Dated:        

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Clerk 
 

REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES AUTHORITY 
 
By:         
Title:         
Dated:        
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

28 of 28



I580S
B
 F

Y

I5
8
0
N

B
 F

Y

I-8
0 E

I-8
0 W

US-50

North-South Fwy S

North-South Fwy N

U
S

-3
9
5
 S

U
S

-3
9
5

 N

Mount Rose Hwy

R
e

d
 R

o
c
k
 R

d

N
V-

28

N Virginia St

NV-79

W
u
n
o
to

o
 R

d

NFD 100 Rd

Mill St

Toll R
d

G
o

n
i 
R

d

V
is

ta
 B

lv
d

E
a

s
tl
a

k
e

 B
lv

d

W 4th St

A
m

y
 R

d

S McCarran Blvd

S
 V

irginia S
t

Geiger Grade Rd

Kings Canyon Rd

P
y
ra

m
id

 L
a
ke

 R
d

W 7th St

A
n

te
lo

p
e

 V
a

lle
y
 R

d

S
p

a
rk

s
 B

lv
d

G St

C
ou

nt
y 

R
d 

20
1

Lo
us

et
ow

n 
R

d

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

w
y
-2

9
3

NFD 049 Rd

W
ilcox Ranch Rd

Whiskey Springs Rd

C
 S

t

Lemmon Dr

M
a

in
 S

t

Eagle Canyon Dr

N
V

-3
4
1

Brunswick Canyon Rd

Disc Dr

E 5th St

L
e

o
n

 D
r

Snyder Ave

M
a

t t
e

rh
o

rn
 B

l v
d

NFD 0
41 T

rl

Lakeshore Blvd

N McCarran Blvd

Greg St

Appian Way

Lone Tree Ln

E Greg St

Cartwright Rd

E 4th St

O
ld U

S
 H

ighw
ay 395 N

H
un

te
r L

ak
e 

R
d

P
e
a
vi

n
e
 R

d

Mayberry Dr

Sharrock Rd

Wedekind Rd

N
F
D

 0
38

 R
d

Silver Lake Rd

S
u

tr
o

 S
t

L
in

e
h

a
n

 R
d

O
s
a

g
e

 R
d

Tahoe Blvd

Argosy Rd

Kings Row

P
lu

m
a

s
 S

t

G
ra

s
s
 V

a
lle

y
 R

d

B
 S

t

64
5/

64
5 

A

Argonaught Way

Ophir Grade

N
e

il  R
d

Old Clear Creek Rd

Echo Ave

S
te

a
d

 B
l v

d

NFD 051 Rd

La Posada Dr

NFD 047 Rd

W
il d

 H
o

rs
e

 R
d

Quilici Rd

L
o

n
g

 V
a

ll e
y
 R

d

Vassar St

C
ou

nt
y 

H
w

y-
29

5

S
 C

u
rr

y
 S

t

Oregon Blvd

Lear Blvd

Prater Way

Dayton Valley Rd

D
ouble R

 B
lvd

V
e

te
ra

n
s
 P

k
w

y

Old Hwy 40

Deodar Way

Tanks Rd

Canyon W
ay

La Mancha Dr

Twin Springs Rd

Franktown Rd

Om
ni D

r

H
il l

 L
n

E Nye Ln

River R
d

S
cott R

d

Oddie Blvd

Ir
o

n
w

o
o

d
 R

d

S
u

n
 V

a
lle

y
 B

lv
d

M
o

y
a

 B
l v

d

Zolezzi Ln

V
ista T

rl

P
e

a
k
 R

d

Industrial P
kw

y
Axe Handle Rd

Stirr
up D

r

H
ighlands D

r

S
ky

lin
e 

B
lv

d

Fir Dr

3rd
 S

t

Am
eric

an
 F

la
t R

d

Enca
nto

 D
r

Idlewild Dr

Alamosa Dr

L
o
n
g
le

y 
L
n

California Ave

E 9th St

S
a

g
e
 F

la
t 

R
d

Bravo Ave

I St

Pembroke Dr

W
in

n
e
m

u
cca

 R
a
n
ch

 R
d

P
yr

am
id

 L
ak

e 
H

w
y

Los Altos Pkwy

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

Euskera Dr

Dolores Dr

Serenity Pl

S Verdi Rd

Greenbrae Dr

Y
u

k
o

n
 D

r

L
e

s
a

k
a

 R
d

Koontz Ln

Marle
tte

 Lake R
d

S M
ead

ow
s 

Pkw
y

Baring Blvd

W Moana Ln

York Way

Ash Canyon Rd

N
O

 2
5
0
 C

o
u
n
ty

 R
d

U
S-395

S
 E

d
m

o
n

d
s
 D

r

C
a

lla
h
a
n
 R

d

Joy Lake Rd

S
u

l li v
a

n
 L

n

Douglas Dr

S
id

e
h

ill
 D

r

E Long St

Mira Loma Dr

Canyon Park
E 2nd St

L
 S

t

H
ig

h
 S

t

S
 R

o
ck

 B
lv

d

Quaking Aspen Rd

P
a

s
tu

re
 V

ie
w

 R
d

Las Brisas Blvd

B
ro

k
e

n
 S

p
u

r 
R

d

E Plumb Ln

O
c
c
id

e
n

ta
l 
G

ra
d

e

N
 S

ie
rra

 S
t

A
lu

m
 R

o
ck

 R
d

P
ro

sp
ec

t H
ill
 R

d

A
ir

p
o

rt
 R

d

Jumbo Grade Way

Clean Water Way

N
 H

ills B
lvd

W
h

ite
 L

a
k
e

 P
k
w

y

F
 S

t

Carat Ave

W 2nd St

L
o

c
u

s
t 

S
t

County
 H

wy-
160

V
a

lle
y
 R

d

B
a

c
o

n
 R

in
d

 R
d

Cold Springs Dr

D
ixon

 L
n

C
e

n
te

r D
r

W 7th Ave

Kleppe Ln

H
u

b
b

le
 D

r

S
k
y V

ista
 P

k
w

y

S
 S

a
lim

a
n

 R
d

N
O

 1
0

2
 C

o
u

n
ty

 R
d

E 7th Ave

C
oun

try C
lu

b D
r

A St

A
irw

a
y D

r

Bedell Rd

L
a

k
e

s
id

e
 D

r

Sitka St

Manzanita Ln

Ja
mes A

ve

K
ie

tz
k
e

 L
n

Marsh Ave

Virgil Dr

Peri Ranch Rd

Columbia H
ill 

Rd

L
y
o

n
 L

n

Scorpion Rd

Freeport Blvd

M
ira

 L
o

m
a

 R
d

Dragstrip Rd

G
ol

df
ie

ld
 R

d

Quartz Ln

Topsy Ln

H
o

w
a

r d
 D

r

Northgate Dr

Ramp

Flint Dr

Nye Dr

L
a

k
e

 S
h

o
re

 D
r

Goldstone Rd

Je
nn

ife
r 
S
t

Kuenzli St

Dandini Blvd

E 8th Ave

H
u
n
g
ry

 V
a
lle

y
 R

d

B
u
n
k
e
r 

H
ill

 M
in

e
 R

d

Nectar St

Boarry Dr

D
e
e
rl
o
dg

e
 R

d

E 4th Ave

C
o
u
n
ty

 H
w

y-
2
0
4

B
u

llfro
g

 R
d

S
ilv

e
r 

S
a

g
e

 D
r

Barrel Springs Rd

Fo
ot

hi
ll 

R
d

Foster Dr

Trail Dr

Fai
rv

ie
w D

r

Tyner W
ay

E
rin D

r

Y
o

ri
 A

v
e

County 
Hwy-

202

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 S
t

Y
o

u
n

g
s
 R

d

R
a
ls

to
n
 S

t

Ski W
ay

Prairie Rd

Arrowhead Dr

Beckwourth Dr

C
ou

nt
y 

H
w

y-
20

1

Bellevue Rd

NO 282 C
ounty 

Rd

Navarra Dr

E
m

p
ir
e
 R

d

E
states R

d

G
ro

s
h

 A
v
e

Sch
aad L

n

M St

Wayside Rd

Alexander Lake Rd

Clark Dr

Bain Spring Rd

Indian Ln

R
o

b
b

 D
r

O
ve

rla
nd

 R
d

E William St

Hoge Rd

N
O

 3
3
7
 C

o
u
n
ty

 R
d

Spring Dr

S
 R

o
o

p
 S

t

Morgan Mill Rd

W
este

rn
 S

kie
s D

r

Y
e

llo
w

 T
a

il 
R

d

W
 C

al
le

 d
e 

la
 P

la
ta

L
i ll

a
rd

 D
r

Timberline Dr

D St

Mount Rose St

Palisade Rd

E 6th St

E 9th Ave

Ridgeview Dr

Lakes Blvd

Colorado St

B
renda W

ay

Detar Pl

Simons Dr

E M
ustang R

d

Conestoga Dr

N
 D

e
e
r R

u
n
 R

d

Tranquil Dr

W
a

s
h

in
g

to
n

 S
t

Chickadee Dr

Shadow Ln

W
hite Pine Dr

Highland Ranch Pkwy

C
o
rd

o
b
a
 B

lv
d

Leo Dr

Combs Canyon Rd

Plateau R
d

Sha Neva Rd

Big Dog Rd

Chieftan Rd

F
a

w
n

 L
n

Voltaire Canyon Rd

R
id

g
e
 R

N
O

 49 C
ounty R

d

S Sutro Ter

C
arson R

iver R
d

W Huffaker Ln

B
e
rn

o
u
lli

 S
t

Seneca Dr

Norton Dr

N
 L

o
m

p
a

 L
n

Mario Rd

E Prater Way

Utah St

Fantasy Ln

Baccarat Rd

Ryland St

E Glendale Ave

Stampede Rd

Dorff Ln

A
ve

n
id

a
 d

e
 L

a
n
d
a

M
e

x
ic

a
n

 D
a
m

 R
d

Valle Verde Dr

C
le

a
r A

c
re

 L
n

Sazarac Rd

W
ilb

u
r 

M
a

y 
P

k
w

y

College Pkwy

Jacks Valley Rd

Pedlar Rd

B
a
k
e
r 

D
r

Ventana Pkwy

Boron Ln

Q
u
ilici R

a
n

c
h

 R
d

G
e

n
tr

y
 L

n

Leilani Ln

N
FD

 0
42

 T
rl

B
ridge S

t

Fre
ds

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
R
d

Cau
gh

lin
 P

kw
y

Loop Rd

Bellhaven Ln

Canyon Dr

Las B
risas R

d

E York Way

C
a

m
p

o
 P

o
c
o

 R
d

Hobart Rd

Bryan St

E
 P

atrician D
r

F
a
irvie

w
 B

lvd

C
a

rre
ra

 R
d

Jennifer Lee Ln

Alena Way

Piute Creek Rd

Calle de la Plata

Musket Rd

B
lu

e
ja

c
k
e

t  
R

d

R
icci R

d

NFD 041 Rd

Belford Rd

C
o

u
n

t y
 H

w
y
- 2

0
0

M
a

rke
t S

t

Bronze Hill Rd

Right Hand Canyon Rd

Cygnet Dr

C
h

o
c
o

la
t e

 D
r

Ja
yb

ir
d
 R

d

Y
e

a
rl

in
g

 R
d

Ruby Hill Rd

E Grove St

Trademark Dr
C

ounty H
w

y-161

Monroe St

Barranca Dr

Leroy St

S
p

e
a

rh
e

a
d

 W
a

y

Hillside DrK
it K

a
t D

r

Paris Ave

B
ig

e
lo

w
 D

r

Selmi Dr

A
n

itra
 D

r

Drake W
ay

S
e

v
e

rn
 D

r

P
io

n
e
e
r 
D

r

Ala Tierra Vista Rd

Ember Dr

Mineral Flat Rd

W 3rd St

Everett Dr

B
ra

n
t 

S
t

Tholl Dr

Ormsby Ln

A
lto

 V
a

lle
y
 C

t

Village Pkwy

D
ry

d
e

n
 D

r

Mistletoe St

Desert W
ay

Rio Poco Rd

N
o

rt
h

g
a

te
 L

n

Welcome Way

American Flats Rd

Six Mile Canyon Rd

Como Rd

Beaumont Pkwy

E Parr Blvd

Sandhill Rd

D
ri
ve

w
a
y

L
y
m

b
e

ry
 S

t

E
d
is

o
n
 W

a
yH

o
lc

o
m

b
 A

v
e

Cactus Canyon Rd

E Robinson St

Canyon Rd
S
ky

 C
an

yo
n 

D
r

William Brent Rd

Silver Oak Dr

Fieldcreek Ln

Alaska St

Incline W
ay

Akard Dr

Rhodes Rd

W
a

rre
n

 W
a

y

S
a
lk R

d

Calcite Dr

P
a

rk
 L

n

Andrew Ln

G
re

y
 V

a
n

 R
d

Io
n

 D
r

F
o

re
s
t 

S
t

Serpentine Rd

Martin Ln

D
ir
t 
R

d

Butti Way

J
a

c
k
ra

b
b

it
 R

d

Placerville Dr

Wildrose Rd

P
a

h
 R

a
h
 D

r

Buckeye Rd

W
in

g
fie

ld
 H

ills R
d

Hells Bells Rd

Bel
m

ar
 D

r

Thumbs Up Rd

Im
us Rd

White Fir St

Summit Ridge Dr

P
ik

e
 S

t

A
le

xa
n
d
e
r 

W
a
y

S
 H

il ls
 D

r

Maestro Dr

H
o

c
k
b

e
rr

y
 R

d

John Henri Ct

W
ed

ge
 P

kw
y

P
in

io
n

 H
ill

s
 D

r

2nd St

Marsh Rd

Denio Dr

Sagittarius Dr

D
o

ri
 W

a
y

Madrid Dr

V
o

y
a

g
e

 D
r

River Vista Dr

Fargo W
ay

Dickerson Rd

O
a

k
 S

t

N
 R

o
o

p
 S

t

E I St

Henness Pass Rd

N
ico

le
 D

r

Del Monte Ln

R
e

b
e

l 
C

a
u

s
e

 R
d

P
re

y 
M

e
a
d
o
w

 R
d

E
 S

t

Mt Zion Rd

Bullion Rd

Arkansas St

G
o
ld

 C
a

n
y
o

n
 R

d

P
la

ta
 M

es
a 

D
r

Army Aviation Dr

H
ig

h
la

n
d
 R

d

Crain St

Pagni Ln

M
og

ul
 R

d

W
a
s
so

u
 R

d

W
e
s
t S

t

Citro
n St

Delia Dr

R
 S

t

Cory Dr

Globe Rd

Combination Rd

N
 T

im
b

e
rl in

e
 D

r

Bucks Way

N
orthridge A

ve

St Andrews Dr

E 1st Ave

Ives Ave

Vista Clara Ct

Sagehen Ln

La
ke

vi
ew

 R
d

Benedict Dr

Sky Tavern Rd

K
e

rn
ite

 S
t

W 6th St

J
a

s
p

e
r 

L
n

Carville Dr

Masters Dr

McClella
n D

r

Encanto C
t

Waltham W
ay

Great F
alls

 Loop

El Molino Dr

E
 A

rrow
creek P

kw
y

E
 H

id
d
e
n
 V

a
lle

y D
r

Talus Way

4t
h 

S
t

Rim Rock Dr

C
ro

s
s
o

v
e

r 
R

d

Lausanne Dr

Cash Dr

Ponderosa Ave

Edm
ands 

Dr

Staverville Rd

NO 284 C
ounty R

d

Hymer Ave

B
ra

v
o

 S
t

Filbert Rd

Aircenter Cir

W Arrowcreek Pkwy

Jean Way

W
 H

idden Valley D
r

Knob Hill Dr

E
lk

h
o

rn
 L

n

L
o

s
 A

rb
o

le
s
 L

n

Gault Way

Lotus St

Elmcrest Dr

C
in

d
y
s
 T

rl

O
ld

 V
irg

in
ia

 R
d

E Huffaker Ln

Putnam Dr

Sheep Camp Dr

Egyptian Dr

T
h

o
m

a
s
 C

re
e

k
 R

d

Britt Rd

Bare
back

 D
r

Stokes Dr

Lands End Dr

Adobe Dr

Mark Way

Flanders Rd

Goodwin R
d

Melody Ln

B
ig

h
o

rn
 D

r

Corso St

C
o
u
n
ty

 H
w

y-
2
9
4

E
a
g
le

 C
a
n
yo

n
 R

d

Eaton Rd

M
e
sa

 R
d

Gooseberry Dr

Apollo Dr

Riverdale Cir

Warrior Ln

N
F

D
 0

3
9

 R
d

C
ie

lo
 V

is
ta

 D
r

Atoma Rd

Gentry Way

H
w
y-28

Aja Pl

S
c
h

u
l z

 D
r

A
ffo

n
s
o

 D
r

L
ivery R

d

W 2nd Ave

Hawken Rd

B
ih

le
r 

R
d

R
u
d

d
y 

W
a

y

Outlaw Ln

Longspur Way

M
u

ld
o

o
n

 S
t

Tiro
l D

r

E
va

ns
 C

re
ek

 D
r

McCarran Ranch Rd

Raggio Park

Tiller Dr

O
ld

 O
p
h
ir
 R

d

B
o
rd

e
a
u
x D

r

T
e

le
g

r a
p

h
 S

t

Tunnel St

NO 271 County Rd

Alicia Way

Quail Valley Rd

Valley Wood Dr

H
o
m

e
ru

n
 D

r

Damon Rd

F
ro

n
ta

g
e
 R

d

Z
ir
co

n
 D

r

C
ap

ita
l B

lv
d

Golddust Dr

Back Nine Trl

P
rim

io
 W

a
y

S
ie

rr
a

 V
is

ta
 L

n

Clem
ens R

d

P
a

n
t h

e
r 

D
r

Turnberry
 D

r

Big River Dr

Old Ranch Rd

H
id

d
e

n
 C

re
e
k
 R

d

Sheep Dr

Haystack Dr

Panamint Rd

Ten Mile Dr

Macaw Ln

V
o

lta
ire

 S
t

F
u

g
g

le
s
 D

r

In
cl

in
e
 L

a
k
e
 R

d

N Sunridge Dr

County Hwy-159

Partei Rd

E Laramie Dr

Jefferson Dr

Waterford Pl

Mid Rd

Perro Ln

Cemetery Rd

S
ilv

e
r  

H
o

rs
e

 R
d

Graves Rd

S Saddlehorn Dr

S
to

ve
p
ip

e
 R

d

E Queen Way

Magnolia Way

Cham
ey Ext

Y
o
rk

sh
ire

 D
r

Rock Haven Dr

R
io

 V
is

ta
 L

n

Iron Wood

P
h
oe

ni
x 

R
d

Nugget Ave

Grand Canyon Blvd

B
o

y
le

 S
t

Cobalt L
n

Park Pl

Gordon St

Owens Rd

Glendale Ave

Wrangler Rd

Aquamarine Dr

E Gault Way

P
a
la

ce
 D

r

Horizon View Ave

C
h

a
n

tr
y
 F

la
ts

 R
d

Aswan St

R
o
ck

w
e
ll 

B
lv

d

Lindsay Ln

Lake
vie

w D
r

Davis Ln

Lovitt Ln
D

a
vi

d
 A

lle
n

 P
k
w

y

O
h
m

 P
l

Colt Dr

Jacmel Dr

F
o

rtu
n
e

 D
r

D
o
rc

e
y 

D
r

Bellhaven Rd

Chance Ln

C
h

ip
m

u
n

k
 D

r

Joy Ln

Anniversary Rd

E 7th St

M
ar

bl
e 

P
oi

nt
 R

d

Decoy Dr

G
a

lle
r i

a
 P

k
w

y

E Surge St

C
o

n
v
a
ir D

r

Saint James Pkwy

Bennington C
t

Fox Trail Dr

M
a

ry
 L

n

Vermillion Rd

Industry Cir

C
u
lp

e
p
p
e
r 

D
r

NO 340 County Rd

H
em

lock W
ay

G
re

e
n

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 S
t

Kenneth Dr

E
d

it
h

 L
n

H
o

p
e

 L
n

Kresge Ln

Trail Rider Dr

College Dr

Stagg Ln

Silver King D
r

Palmer Dr

Minor Ln

Firenze Dr

Sienna Park Dr

S
p
a
ce

 Te
st R

d

Rampion Way

Maggie Ln

Joyce Ln

Is
p

a
s
te

r 
R

d

17th St

Gallup Rd

Adair Dr

S
a
n
 M

a
rin

o

Barron Way

NO 97 County Rd

Valle de Sol Blvd

Achilles Dr

Lo
m

bar
di

 R
d

Onyo W
ay

Galena Canyon Trl

PPF Way

Pyrite Dr

D
e

l W
e
b

b
 P

k
w

y
 W

Broken Spur Line

Regal D
r

Turner Ct

S
ie

rr
a 

M
an

or
 D

r

Gordonia Dr

Mueska Ct

G
o
ld

 R
a
n
ch

 R
d

A
p
o
llo

 W
a
y

G
a

rn
e

t 
W

a
y

NO 281 County Rd

Alpha Butte Rd

NO 321 County Rd

Sage Canyon Rd

Quinn Dr

Temple Hill Rd

Lepori Way
M

o
rm

o
n
 T

e
a

 W
a
y

Blue Spruce Rd

T
a
g

o
r 

D
r

G
raves Dr

R
e

d
m

o
n

d
 D

r

R
a
vin

e
 C

t

Moonstone Ln

Frisco Way

Sierra Rose Dr

Catalpa Ln

M
a
rt
h
ia

m
 A

ve

Daybreak Dr

Lace
rta

 D
r

Philoree Ln

A
lli
so

n 
D

r

S
o
u
th

w
in

d
 D

r

V
ic

to
ri
a
 R

d

E
n
te

rp
rise

 W
a
y

Amarg
osa

 D
r

B
u

ll 
R

d

Aspen Creek Ct

Skinner Dr

S
a
lo

m
o
n

 C
ir

Bowie Rd

Ellis St

Open Space Trails

Flume Rd

Bullion Hill Rd

R
iver F

low
 D

r

Lake St

Astro Dr

P
V

 F
a

rm
s
 R

d

P
a

s
s
a

 T
e

m
p

o
 D

r

C
o

p
p

e
rf

ie
ld

 D
r

Little Ln

B
elsera C

t

Partridge Ln

K
eystone C

ir

Larkin Cir

Sun Mesa Dr

P
a
rkw

a
y
 D

r

M
a

rra
c
c
o

 D
r

Winery Dr

Long Meadow Dr

Avian Dr

P
a

rla
n

ti  L
n

Morro Ave

Roano
ke

 T
rl

A
rb

or
 L

n

Cabrillo Ln

Valley Dr

Stillwater Dr

Golf Club Dr

Moraine Way

Firt
re

e L
n

Sunridge Dr

Kumle Ln

Red C
orra

l T
rl

Rough Rock Dr

Argonaught C
t

Shawna Ln

E
uskera C

t

Anchorage Dr

Deerfie
ld Rd

W
ild

h
o

rse
 R

d

A
b

ie
s
 R

d

Hillcrest Dr

N
o
rt

h
ru

p
 D

r

Tim
aru

 T
rl

E
lk

cr
ee

k 
T
rl

Sells St

H
olly C

a
nyo

n R
d

Upton Way

Corbett Way

Le
m

on
 R

d

B
lo

ck
a
d
e
 D

r

Jo
sh

ua
 D

r

C
o

a
c
h

 C
t

W
ill

e
y
 L

n

Pile
us R

d

Camellia Dr

Hagar Rd

S
um

m
it 

S
t

Graham Ln

3rd C
rk

C
h

e
ry

l 
L

n

Hobbyhorse Ln

Peach Ct

NFD 49 Rd

E
l 
C

a
b

a
llo

 T
rl

R
id

ge
 F

ie
ld

 T
rl

W Winnie Ln

Calle Myriam

Rampart Ter

Heritage Way

Evan St

Dutch Flat Rd

N
ib

lic
k 

D
r

Chaparral Dr

1
4

th
 S

t

S
o
m

e
rs D

r

Garson Rd

W 8th St

Unn
am

ed
 S

tre
et

Unnamed Street

R
am

p

Ramp

U
nnam

ed S
treet

4WD Road

C St

4WD Road

Unnamed Street

Ramp

US-395

D
rivew

ay

R
a

m
p

Unnamed S
tre

et

Unnamed S
tre

et

Appian Way

Ramp

4W
D
 R

oa
d

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

Unnamed Street

R
a
m

p

Ramp

I St

R
a
m

p

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

Ramp

R
a
m

p

D
ri v

e
w

a
y

R
a
m

p

4WD Road

U
n
n
a

m
e
d

 S
tre

e
t

Unnamed Street

Calle de la Plata

Unnamed Street

E 5th St

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

t r
e

e
t

R
am

p

4WD Road

Ramp

Ramp

Ramp

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

Ramp

4WD Road

S
 M

cC
a
rr

a
n
 B

lv
d

4W
D R

oad

D
ri

v
e

w
a

y

4W
D Road

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d

4W
D R

oa
d

R
a
m

p

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d

Ramp

4WD Road

Ramp

4
W

D
 R

o
ad

Unnamed Street

N
V
-3

4
1

4
W

D
 R

o
a

d

Driveway

4WD Road

R
e
d
 R

o
ck

 R
d

D
rivew

ay

Ramp

Ram
p

Unnamed Street

R
am

p

R
am

p

Tanks Rd

4
W

D
 R

o
a

d

N
F

D
 0

4
1

 R
d

Unnamed Street

NV-341

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
a
m

p

D
rivew

ay

4W
D Road

D St

Ramp

U
nn

am
ed

 S
tre

et

Unnamed Street

Lear Blvd

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

U
n
n

a
m

e
d

 S
tr

e
e

t

4WD Road

4WD Road

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

4W
D

 R
oa

d

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

4
W

D
 R

o
a

d

Unnam
ed S

tre
et

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d Unnamed Street

U
n
n
a
m

e
d
 S

tr
e
e
t

4WD Road

4W
D R

oad

R
a
m

p

Ramp

Unnamed Street

Dirt 
Rd

Ramp

Ramp

Ramp

4
W

D
 R

o
ad

4W
D

 R
oa

d

Ram
p

U
n
n

a
m

e
d

 S
tr

e
e

t

NFD 039 Rd

U
n
n
a
m

e
d
 S

tre
e
t

4WD Road

U
nn

am
ed S

tre
et

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tre
e
t

4W
D R

oad

4WD Road

Eag
le

 C
an

yo
n 

D
r

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d

4WD Road

Ramp

Legend

REMSA_Zone_A

REMSA_Zone_B

REMSA_Zone_C

REMSA_Zone_D

REMSA_Zone_E_Frontier

CAD_Streets

County Lines



M
o
u
n
t 
R

o
se

 H
w

y

U
S

-3
9

5

C
a
lla

h
a
n
 R

d

Joy Lake Rd

NFD 047 Rd

NFD 049 Rd

F
a

w
n

 L
n

Bellhaven Ln

B
o

rd
e

a
u

x
 D

r

Paris Ave

Tannerwood Dr

Goldenrod Dr

W
as

ho
e 

D
r

N
 T

im
b

e
rl

in
e
 D

r

C
h
a
te

a
u
 A

v
e

Lausanne Dr

Douglas Fir Dr

Legend Vis

Wildwood Dr

Napoleon Dr

Old Ophir Rd

Lake Geneva Dr

Mountain Ranch Rd

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

Painted Trl

C
a

s
w

e
ll  

L
n

Cedarwood Dr

Saint James Pkwy

Bennington Ct

Evergreen Hills Dr

C
a

rl
 D

r

Maggie Ln

B
o

n
n

ie
 L

n

Galena Canyon Trl

O
ro

 L
om

a 
R
d

C
h

e
rry

w
o

o
d

 D
r

Blue Spruce Rd

R
e

d
m

o
n

d
 D

r

Granite Ridge Ct

Philoree Ln

Piney Creek Rd

S
ou

th
w

in
d
 D

r

Cross Creek Ln

L
a
 B

ri
a
n
a
 A

v
e

Big Pine Dr

Alpes Way

R
o
a
n
 T

rl

Wintergreen Ln

A
u

s
tr

ia
n

 P
in

e
 R

d

Shawna Ln

County Hwy-40
A

b
ie

s
 R

d

Menagerie Dr

Viola W
ay

Cartier Dr

Nestle Ct

Callahan Ranch Trl

C
u

rt
is

 L
n

W Willis Ln

Rose Rock Ln

W
 P

in
e

w
ild

 R
d

S
t e

p
h

e
n

s
 R

d

R
o

c
k
 F

a
rm

 R
d

Mountain Bluebird Dr

P
a

tti L
n

G
e

b
s
e
r C

t

L
a
to

u
r 

W
a
y

Townsite Rd

S
n

o
w

 F
lo

w
e

r 
D

r

Jefte Ct

Ranch Land Cir

Chambery Cir

E
 J

e
ff
r e

y
 P

in
e

 R
d

Strasbourg Ct

Brushwood Way

Tim
berla

ke
 C

t

Delacroix

M
on

tre
ux

 L
n

Juan Ln

G
re

e
n

 A
s
h

 R
d

Ye
llo

w
 P

in
e 

R
d

Fo
re

t C
ir

Keaton Ct

R
u

e
 d

u
 P

a
r c

Champetre Ct
C

a
rm

e
l 
L

n

Chartre
use C

t

L
a

rr
e

a
 L

n

La
ke

 D
r

W
 J

e
ff
re

y
 P

in
e

 R
d

County Rd-246

Timbercreek Ct

Granite Bay Ct

Chavannes Way

D
ijo

n
 C

ir
Sierra Country Rd

Chatelaine Cir

L
o

b
e

li a
 L

n

Brookmeadow Ln

Yello
w P

ine C
ir

S
a
n
d
 C

h
e
rr

y
 C

t

Cognac Ct

W
 M

ar
ch

m
on

t L
n

J
a

m
il  

C
t

D
ry

 C
re

e
k
 R

d

B
la

ck P
in

e
 C

t

A
n

ti
g

u
a

 C
t

W
in

te
rg

re
e

n
 C

ir

Clarence Jasmine Dr

M
a

n
it
o

u
 L

n

N
a

d
ia

 C
t

Mistral Ct

D
u

n
n
y
b
ro

o
k
 C

t

C
a

rl
 R

d

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Stre
et

US-395

Piney Creek Rd

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tr
e
e

t

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

Legend

REMSA_Zone_A

REMSA_Zone_B

REMSA_Zone_C

REMSA_Zone_D

REMSA_Zone_E_Frontier

CAD_Streets

County Lines



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: May 22, 2014 

DATE:  May 14, 2014  

TO:  District Board of Health  

FROM: Brittany Dayton, EMS Coordinator, Washoe County Health District  
  775-326-6043, bdayton@washoecounty.us 
 
THROUGH: Dr. Randall Todd, Division Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness  

775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services Oversight 
 
 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this agenda item is to present for review and approval the Interlocal Agreement for 
Emergency Medical Services Oversight.  

District Board of Health strategic priority by this item: Be assured that mandates are met and needed 
services are delivered. 

BCC strategic objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and healthy communities.  

PREVIOUS ACTION 

There has been no previous action taken by the District Board of Health concerning an Interalocal 
Agreement for Emergency Medical Services Oversight beyond the REMSA franchise agreement.  

BACKGROUND 

In August 2012 the District Board of Health was provided a report titled “Emergency Medical Services 
System Analysis” performed by TriData. The study contains 38 specific recommendations to be 
considered for the improvement of Emergency Medical Services in Washoe County.  

The District Board of Health met concurrently with Washoe County Board of Commissioners, Reno City 
Council and Sparks City Council on October 18, 2012. At that meeting, action was taken to form an EMS 
Working Group to address the TriData recommendations and establish a mechanism for expanded 
oversight of Emergency Medical Services. 

During the EMS Executive Committee and EMS Working Group meetings it was acknowledged that the 
implementation of many of the TriData study’s recommendations required an Interlocal Agreement 
concerning the Washoe County Health District to amend, remand and establish certain authorities by and 
between Reno, Sparks, Washoe County and the Health District.  

On February 10, 2014 another concurrent meeting was held for presentation, discussion and approval of 
the Principles of Agreement and a Resolution directing the Washoe County Health District to establish 
and maintain a regional EMS Oversight Program. During this meeting a motion was made that there be a 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

1 of 10

mailto:bdayton@washoecounty.us
mailto:rtodd@washoecounty.us


Date: May 14, 2014 
Subject: Approval of EMS Interlocal Agreement   
Page 2 of 2  
 

full development of an updated Franchise agreement between the Washoe County District Board of 
Health and REMSA as well as a full development of an Interlocal Agreement concerning the duties and 
responsibilities of the entities participating in the EMS Oversight Program.   

The Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District, City of Reno, City of Sparks, 
Washoe County and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District was drafted based on the resolution 
presented at the February 10, 2014 concurrent meeting and will create a Regional Emergency Medical 
Services Oversight function for the management, measurement and improvement of Emergency Medical 
Services within the Washoe County Health District.  

Each participating jurisdiction received a copy of the Interlocal Agreement and has had opportunities to 
review and comment. The Interlocal Agreement will be presented to each jurisdiction separately for 
discussion and possible approval.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services Oversight will require the addition of 1.5 FTE 
staff to the EMS Program. Those positions were included in the FY15 proposed budget.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health review the proposed Interlocal Agreement for 
Emergency Medical Services Oversight; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute each 
document with an implementation date of July 1, 2014. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION  
 
Move to approve the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services Oversight; and authorize the 
Chairman to execute. 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

2 of 10



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR  

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES OVERSIGHT 

 

 

This Interlocal(“Agreement”) dated as of _____________, 2014, is entered into by and between 
the Washoe County Health District, a Special District created pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes, Chapter 439 (“DISTRICT”), Washoe County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Nevada (“WASHOE”), the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District through itself and the 
Sierra Fire Protection District, both which are Fire Districts created pursuant to Nevada Revised 
Statutes Chapter 474 (“FIRE”), the City of Reno, a municipal corporation in the State of Nevada 
(“RENO”), and the City of Sparks, a municipal corporation in the State of Nevada (“SPARKS”) 
to create a Regional Emergency Medical Services Oversight function within the DISTRICT for 
the management, measurement and improvement of Emergency Medical Services. 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on November 27, 1972, the governing bodies of RENO, SPARKS, and WASHOE 
formed the DISTRICT to provide a broad range of health services for the benefit of said agencies 
by said DISTRICT; and 

WHEREAS, on October 22, 1986, the DISTRICT acting on behalf of RENO, SPARKS and 
WASHOE did approve “A Resolution Authorizing the Regional Emergency Medical Services 
Authority (hereinafter referred to as “REMSA”) to operate Emergency Medical Ambulance 
Services on an exclusive basis in defined areas of Washoe County; and 

WHEREAS, in August of 2012 WASHOE was provided a report titled “Emergency Medical 
Services System Analysis” (hereinafter referred to as “STUDY”) performed by TRIDATA.  The 
STUDY contains specific recommendations to be considered for the improvement of Emergency 
Medical Services provided by RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, DISTRICT and REMSA for the 
purpose of improving the delivery of patient care and outcomes, and the delivery of Emergency 
Medical Services; and 

WHEREAS, RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE and DISTRICT together on October 18, 2012, 
February 11, 2013, and June 10, 2013, have continued to review and direct changes to the 
provision of Emergency Medical Services by and through the STUDY recommendations; and 

WHEREAS, the implementation of the STUDY’s recommendations require an Inter-Local 
Agreement concerning the Washoe County Health District to amend, remand and establish 
certain authorities by and between RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE and DISTRICT and 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

3 of 10



create a Regional Emergency Medical Services Oversight function for the management, 
measurement and improvement of Emergency Medical Services within the DISTRICT,  

 NOW, THEREFORE THE PARTIES AGREE as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 
Establishment of Oversight Program/Duties 

 
1.1  Establishment of Program:  The DISTRICT shall establish and maintain a Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Oversight Program (the “Program”) within the DISTRICT. 
 
1.2  Duties of Program:  The Program shall provide for Oversight of all Emergency Medical 
Services provided by RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE and REMSA and shall:  
 

a. Monitor the response and performance of each agency providing Emergency 
Medical Services and provide recommendations to each agency for the maintenance, 
improvement, and long-range success of the Emergency Medical Services; 
 
b. Coordinate and integrate provision of Medical Direction for RENO, SPARKS, 
WASHOE, FIRE and REMSA providing emergency medical services;  
 
c.  Recommend regional standards and, protocols for RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, 
FIRE and REMSA;  
 
d. Measure performance, analysis of system characteristics, data and outcomes of 
the Emergency Medical Services and provide performance measurement and 
recommendations to RENO, SPARKS WASHOE, FIRE and REMSA; 
 
e. Provide for the annual collaboration of REMSA, RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, 
FIRE and DISTRICT on determining compliance with modifications or changes to the 
regional response time or first response capabilities of each agency, leading to the 
adoption of the Regional Emergency Medical Response Map showing the zones of 
services including sub-regions as may be requested by RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, 
FIRE or the DISTRICT; boundaries of automatic and mutual Emergency Medical 
Services aid based on agreement between agencies; and levels of both first response and 
medical transport services.  
 
f. Provide an Annual Report on the State of Emergency Medical Services to RENO, 
SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE and REMSA over the preceding fiscal year (July 1st to June 
30th) containing measured performance in each agency including both ground and rotary 
wing air ambulance services provided by REMSA in Washoe County; the compliance 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

4 of 10



with performance measures established by the District Emergency Medical Services 
Oversight Program in each agency, and audited financial statements and an annual 
compliance report of REMSA as required in the exclusive Emergency Medical 
Ambulance Service Franchise.  
 
g. Maintain a Five Year Strategic Plan to ensure the continuous improvement of 
Emergency Medical Services in the area of standardized equipment, procedures, 
technology training, and capital investments to ensure that proper future operations 
continue to perform including Dispatching Systems, Automated Vehicle Locations 
Systems, Records Management Systems, Statistical Analysis, Regional Medical Supply 
and Equipment, and other matters related to strategic and ongoing Emergency Medical 
Services and approved by RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE and FIRE.  

1.3.  Term:  This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2014 for a period of one year ending 
June 30, 2015.  This Agreement shall automatically renew each year on July 1st unless 
terminated by the parties as set forth below. 

1.4.  Termination of Agreement:  This Agreement may be rescinded at any time by written 
agreement of termination executed by all the parties. 

1.5  Unilateral Party Termination:  A party may unilaterally terminate its participation in this 
agreement without cause by serving the other parties with written notice of termination.  That 
party’s termination shall take effect 90 days after service of notice. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

Advisory Board 

2.1  Creation:  The DISTRICT shall establish and maintain a Regional Emergency Medical 
Services Advisory Board.  
 
2.2  Composition:  The Regional Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board shall be 
composed of the following members: 
 

a. City Manager, Reno 
b. City Manager, Sparks 
c. County Manager, Washoe County 
d. District Health Officer 
e. Emergency Room Physician (DBOH Appointment) 
f. Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative (DBOH 
Appointment) 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

5 of 10



The Emergency Room Physician and Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement 
Representative members shall be appointed by the District Board of Health and shall 
serve a term of two (2) years from July 1st through June 30th. 
 
 

2.3  Administration:  The Advisory Board shall elect a chair and a vice-chair from among its 
membership to manage the meetings.  The election shall occur at the Board’s first meeting and 
thereafter at is first meeting at the beginning of each fiscal year.  The chair and vice-chair shall 
serve for one (1) year.  The Board shall be subject to the requirements of Nevada Revised 
Statutes Chapter 241, Open Meeting Laws.  A majority of the Board constitutes a quorum for the 
conduct of business and a majority of the quorum is necessary to act on any matter. 
 
2.5.  Bylaws:  The Board shall adopt bylaws or procedural rules necessary to carry out its 
functions and duties in an efficient and orderly manner. 
 
2.6.  Meetings:  The Board shall hold a minimum of one meeting per fiscal year. 
 
2.7.  Duties:  The Advisory Board shall review reports, evaluations, and recommendations of the 
Regional Emergency Medical Services Oversight Program, discuss issues related to regional 
emergency services, and make recommendations including:   
 

a. Make recommendations to the District Health Officer and/or the District Board of 
Health related to performance standards and attainment of those standards, medical 
protocols, communication, coordination, and other items of importance to a high 
performing Regional Emergency Medical Services System, and providing for concurrent 
review and approval by RENO, SPARKS and WASHOE; a uniform system shall be 
maintained for the region whenever possible. 

 
ARTICLE 3 
Fiscal Year 

 
3.1  Definition:  The fiscal year shall be July 1 through June 30. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
Duties of the Parties 

 
4.1.  Participation:  RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE and FIRE shall participate in the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Medical Oversight Program by: 
 

a. Providing information, records, and data on Emergency Medical Services 
dispatch and response from their respective Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) and 
Fire Services for review, study and evaluation by DISTRICT. 
 
b. Participating in working groups established by DISTRICT for coordination, 
review, evaluation, and continuous improvement of Emergency Medical Services.  
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

6 of 10



c. Participating in establishing and utilizing a Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) – to 
– CAD two-way interface with EMSA which provides for the instantaneous and 
simultaneous transmission of call-related information for unit status updates. 
 
d. Working cooperatively with DISTRICT to provide input to the development of 
the Five Year Strategic Plan and to ensure consistent two-way communication and 
coordination of the Emergency Medical Services System between RENO, SPARKS, 
WASHOE, FIRE, and REMSA in the future as technologies, equipment, systems, and 
protocols evolve. 
 
e. Participating on the Regional Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board. 
 
f. Implementing recommendations of DISTRICT, or submitting those 
recommendations to their governing bodies for consideration and possible action. 
 
g. Submitting recommendations regarding the Emergency Medical Services System 
to DISTRICT for implementation or for consideration and possible action by the District 
Board of Health. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
Concurrent Review 

 
5.1  Concurrent Review:  The DISTRICT shall coordinate a concurrent review of the status of 
the Regional Emergency Medical Services by REMSA with RENO, SPARKS WASHOE and 
FIRE prior to the approval of any modifications to the Franchise Agreement and prior to any 
extension of the franchise period.    

 
ARTICLE 6 

Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
6.1.  Governing Law/Jurisdiction:  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of Nevada.  The 
parties consent to the jurisdiction of Nevada district courts in Washoe County for the 
enforcement of this Agreement. 
 
6.2.  Assignment:  The parties shall not assign, sublet or transfer any interest or service in this 
Agreement, or which arises out of this Agreement, without the written consent of the other 
parties. 
 
6.3.  Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement or its application in held invalid by a court 
of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected. 
 
6.4.  Entire Agreement/Modification:  This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the 
parties.  No change termination or attempted waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be binding on the parties unless executed in writing by each of the parties. 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

7 of 10



6.5.  Benefits:  This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the parties hereto.  It shall 
confer no benefits, direct or indirect, on any third persons, including employees of the parties.  
No person or entity other than the parties themselves may rely upon or enforce any provision of 
this Agreement.  The decision to assert or waive any provision of this Agreement is solely that of 
each party. 
 
6.6.  Notice:  All notices and demands required under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed to have been duly given, made and received when delivered or deposited in the 
United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage pre-paid, addressed as follows: 
 
 
 Washoe County Health District 
 District Health Officer 
 P.O. Box 11130 
 Reno, NV  89520 
 
 City of Reno 
 City Manager 
 P.O. Box 1900 
 Reno, NV 89505 
 
 City of Sparks 
 City Manager 
 P.O. Box 857 
 Sparks, NV 89432 
 
 Truckee Meadows Fire District 
 Fire Chief 
 P.O. Box 11130 
 Reno, NV  89520 
 
 Washoe County 
 County Manager 
 P.O. Box 11130 
 Reno, NV  89520 
 
 
6.7.  Indemnification:  Each party agrees to indemnify and save and hold the other party 
harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising directly from such party’s 
negligence or wrongful misconduct during the performance of this Agreement.  The 
indemnifying party shall not be liable to hold harmless any attorney’s fees and costs for the 
indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel.   

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

8 of 10



6.8.  Limitation of Liability:  The parties will not waive and intend to assert any available 
remedy and liability limitation set forth in Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, and any 
and all applicable laws or case law. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement of the day and year below 
noted. 

 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

By______________________________  Date_________________________ 

 

Attest: 

By______________________________  Date___________________________ 

 

CITY OF RENO 

By______________________________  Date_________________________ 

 

Attest: 

By______________________________  Date___________________________ 

 

CITY OF SPARKS 

By______________________________  Date_________________________ 

 

Attest: 

By______________________________  Date___________________________ 

 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

9 of 10



 

 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

By______________________________  Date_________________________ 

 

Attest: 

By______________________________  Date___________________________ 

 

WASHOE COUNTY 

By______________________________  Date_________________________ 

 

Attest: 

By______________________________  Date___________________________ 

 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

10 of 10



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

1 of 17



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE - EXPENSE

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 54,711.00- 8,466.00- 87 51,500.00- 53,333.00- 1,833.00 104
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 85,428.00- 10,738.00 114 68,000.00- 57,385.00- 10,615.00- 84
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 9,679.00- 3,627.00- 73 10,500.00- 9,078.00- 1,422.00- 86
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 367,563.00- 124,618.00- 75 369,000.00- 333,139.00- 35,861.00- 90
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 22,509.00- 1,058.00- 96 20,000.00- 20,745.00- 745.00 104
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 7,998.00- 4,798.00 250 2,500.00- 4,002.00- 1,502.00 160
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 425,141.50- 158,870.50- 73 448,037.00- 380,562.25- 67,474.75- 85
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 75,287.00- 8,765.00 113 49,000.00- 46,731.00- 2,269.00- 95
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 61,177.00- 38,446.00- 61 79,000.00- 48,751.00- 30,249.00- 62
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 28,734.00- 6,492.00- 82 27,000.00- 24,472.00- 2,528.00- 91
*   Licenses and Permits 1,455,504.00- 1,138,227.50- 317,276.50- 78 1,124,537.00- 978,198.25- 146,338.75- 87
    431100  Federal Grants 5,301,515.05- 3,058,737.81- 2,242,777.24- 58 5,860,619.51- 3,662,155.26- 2,198,464.25- 62
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 243,178.41- 204,185.65- 38,992.76- 84 125,376.00- 81,130.96- 44,245.04- 65
    432100  State Grants 741,802.00- 260,917.47- 480,884.53- 35 281,857.00- 256,696.03- 25,160.97- 91
    432105  State Grants-Indirect 2,205.00- 3,469.05- 1,264.05 157     
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 314,136.09- 154,411.91- 67 418,766.00- 331,900.49- 86,865.51- 79
    432311  Pol Ctrl 445B.830 300,000.00- 552,770.83- 252,770.83 184 300,000.00- 234,745.00- 65,255.00- 78
*   Intergovernmental 7,057,248.46- 4,394,216.90- 2,663,031.56- 62 6,986,618.51- 4,566,627.74- 2,419,990.77- 65
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 41,611.07- 47,388.93- 47 89,000.00- 50,128.50- 38,871.50- 56
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 1,716.50- 6,483.50- 21 36,200.00- 13.26 36,213.26- 0-
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 13,004.75- 6,995.25- 65 30,000.00- 15,399.50- 14,600.50- 51
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 3,390.13- 709.87- 83 4,100.00- 3,940.46- 159.54- 96
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 30,226.00- 5,118.00- 86 113,400.00- 101,326.00- 12,074.00- 89
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 380,188.00- 69,812.00- 84 400,000.00- 400,706.00- 706.00 100
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  791.18- 791.18   304.88- 304.88  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  564.00- 564.00  2,700.00- 1,837.75- 862.25- 68
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 16,924.00- 3,060.00- 85 13,900.00- 14,822.00- 922.00 107
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 18,879.51- 17,129.51 1,079 2,250.00- 5,000.00- 2,750.00 222
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 4,860.75- 2,139.25- 69 7,000.00- 8,400.00- 1,400.00 120
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 14,784.35- 6,215.65- 70 23,000.00- 17,400.51- 5,599.49- 76
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 45,193.00- 5,514.00- 89 44,000.00- 28,283.00- 15,717.00- 64
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 4,724.00- 908.00 124 2,500.00- 2,695.00- 195.00 108
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 18,231.00- 534.00- 97 17,000.00- 25,871.00- 8,871.00 152
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 28,518.75- 1,518.75 106 44,000.00- 23,808.48- 20,191.52- 54
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 50,326.00- 14,305.00 140 30,000.00- 33,791.00- 3,791.00 113
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 24,755.00- 40,517.00- 38 40,000.00- 31,764.00- 8,236.00- 79
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 98,573.00- 15,361.00- 87 100,000.00- 76,831.00- 23,169.00- 77
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 63,736.00- 71,653.00- 47 84,000.00- 63,711.00- 20,289.00- 76
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 40,623.00- 17,265.00- 70 41,000.00- 39,581.00- 1,419.00- 97
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 2,547.00- 12,108.00- 17 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 121,262.00- 66,428.00- 65 95,000.00- 99,502.00- 4,502.00 105
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel  480.00- 480.00   322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start      87.00- 87.00  
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 6,453.00- 4,107.00- 61 8,500.00- 6,219.00- 2,281.00- 73
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 15,599.00- 6,941.00- 69 17,300.00- 13,795.00- 3,505.00- 80

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

2 of 17



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE - EXPENSE

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    460570  Education Revenue 2,900.00- 796.00- 2,104.00- 27 5,700.00- 1,235.00- 4,465.00- 22
*   Charges for Services 1,403,515.00- 1,048,756.99- 354,758.01- 75 1,253,150.00- 1,069,585.82- 183,564.18- 85
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 30,968.71- 6,581.29- 82 41,934.00- 33,092.56- 8,841.44- 79
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 88,263.36- 82,152.36- 6,111.00- 93 114,750.00- 60,013.00- 54,737.00- 52
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect 5,125.00- 5,125.00-  100     
    485100  Reimbursements  46,450.20- 46,450.20      
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb         
    485121  Jury Reimbursements  80.00- 80.00   315.00- 315.00  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 62,228.75- 2,515.00- 59,713.75- 4  5,167.45- 5,167.45  
*   Miscellaneous 193,167.11- 167,291.27- 25,875.84- 87 156,684.00- 98,588.01- 58,095.99- 63
**  Revenue 10,109,434.57- 6,748,492.66- 3,360,941.91- 67 9,520,989.51- 6,712,999.82- 2,807,989.69- 71
    701110  Base Salaries 9,191,189.90 7,014,268.51 2,176,921.39 76 9,442,227.37 7,153,597.40 2,288,629.97 76
    701120  Part Time 565,939.67 349,543.08 216,396.59 62 529,904.89 437,800.15 92,104.74 83
    701130  Pooled Positions 464,480.66 345,732.84 118,747.82 74 522,298.86 284,164.12 238,134.74 54
    701140  Holiday Work 2,818.65 3,144.59 325.94- 112 1,450.00 1,786.94 336.94- 123
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 165,425.50 83,144.03 82,281.47 50 158,292.00 85,224.97 73,067.03 54
    701300  Overtime 69,919.68 48,524.02 21,395.66 69 50,325.11 28,742.58 21,582.53 57
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00      
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00 93.52 906.48 9 1,000.00 182.10 817.90 18
    701412  Salary Adjustment 230,084.60-  230,084.60-  52,986.54  52,986.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  73,652.59 73,652.59-   64,356.37 64,356.37-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  9,750.50 9,750.50-   20,986.42 20,986.42-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  6,038.40 6,038.40-   9,723.83 9,723.83-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 10,230,689.46 7,933,792.08 2,296,897.38 78 10,758,484.77 8,086,564.88 2,671,919.89 75
    705110  Group Insurance 1,422,034.93 1,085,852.70 336,182.23 76 1,449,189.10 1,114,128.32 335,060.78 77
    705210  Retirement 2,515,666.69 1,907,083.88 608,582.81 76 2,410,125.05 1,817,062.44 593,062.61 75
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 136,701.49 107,146.82 29,554.67 78 139,962.64 109,080.35 30,882.29 78
    705320  Workmens Comp 66,992.03 55,115.10 11,876.93 82 64,187.41 53,277.20 10,910.21 83
    705330  Unemply Comp 15,375.22 15,179.40 195.82 99 15,533.45 15,533.45  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment     10,656.00  10,656.00  
    705510  Severance Pay         
*   Employee Benefits 4,156,770.36 3,170,377.90 986,392.46 76 4,089,653.65 3,109,081.76 980,571.89 76
    710100  Professional Services 1,211,769.83 318,389.96 893,379.87 26 1,091,804.38 316,193.94 775,610.44 29
    710105  Medical Services 9,173.00 6,279.00 2,894.00 68 9,264.00 2,407.00 6,857.00 26
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 44,000.00 2,950.00 94 46,900.00 36,225.00 10,675.00 77
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 53,500.03 42,268.38 11,231.65 79 71,051.00 55,023.48 16,027.52 77
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 103,593.00 48,895.98 54,697.02 47 105,243.00 38,421.50 66,821.50 37
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 11,470.00 11,215.05 254.95 98 20,549.91 7,460.77 13,089.14 36
    710210  Software Maintenance 15,636.00 22,318.00 6,682.00- 143 16,200.00 13,920.00 2,280.00 86
    710300  Operating Supplies 134,869.77 90,780.72 44,089.05 67 132,737.55 91,157.75 41,579.80 69
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 1,156.95 9,528.05 11 3,685.00 877.35 2,807.65 24
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 582.75 1,017.25 36 2,000.00 343.91 1,656.09 17
    710312  Special Dept Expense      100.00 100.00-  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

3 of 17



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE - EXPENSE

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 232,321.33 21.33- 100 231,950.00 232,131.87 181.87- 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 28,447.00 21,679.83 6,767.17 76 28,274.89 18,999.50 9,275.39 67
    710350  Office Supplies 41,073.50 28,920.72 12,152.78 70 44,171.01 31,826.21 12,344.80 72
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 7,594.00 6,200.35 1,393.65 82 8,413.00 5,740.23 2,672.77 68
    710360  Postage 24,435.00 12,595.40 11,839.60 52 21,954.00 22,036.15 82.15- 100
    710361  Express and Courier 735.00 99.36 635.64 14 610.75 675.62 64.87- 111
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00 78.52 21.48 79 100.00  100.00  
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 24,931.96 27,531.19 2,599.23- 110 45,973.51 27,501.98 18,471.53 60
    710502  Printing 33,970.00 10,869.41 23,100.59 32 31,499.00 11,235.52 20,263.48 36
    710503  Licenses & Permits 7,887.00 3,855.00 4,032.00 49 8,870.00 7,501.89 1,368.11 85
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment 1,900.00  1,900.00  5,178.00 1,427.00 3,751.00 28
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  333.86 333.86-   452.58 452.58-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 5,530.00 8,726.95 3,196.95- 158 6,486.00 9,321.72 2,835.72- 144
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 42,484.00 29,056.78 13,427.22 68 46,535.00 31,221.23 15,313.77 67
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 36,065.00 33,492.19 2,572.81 93 32,320.00 31,711.60 608.40 98
    710512  Auto Expense 19,102.20 9,161.93 9,940.27 48 19,784.00 11,394.70 8,389.30 58
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 5,960.00 5,960.00 50 11,920.00 11,920.00  100
    710519  Cellular Phone 15,660.00 10,893.77 4,766.23 70 18,447.00 10,821.33 7,625.67 59
    710524  Utility relocation         
    710529  Dues 10,756.01 4,693.00 6,063.01 44 11,926.00 10,069.00 1,857.00 84
    710535  Credit Card Fees 11,925.00 10,499.26 1,425.74 88 11,455.00 9,122.32 2,332.68 80
    710546  Advertising 47,600.00 10,628.00 36,972.00 22 44,728.86 57,786.71 13,057.85- 129
    710550  Small Differences         
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  36.23 36.23-      
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,500.00 4,569.88 20,930.12 18 3,000.00 2,297.83 702.17 77
    710585  Undesignated Budget 62,228.75  62,228.75  71,077.00  71,077.00  
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 109,115.00 66,009.56 43,105.44 60 113,439.00 87,901.42 25,537.58 77
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 246,790.79 173,222.40 73,568.39 70 249,583.98 157,500.70 92,083.28 63
    710714  Referral Services 6,328.00 1,808.00 4,520.00 29 9,040.00 3,164.00 5,876.00 35
    710721  Outpatient 93,092.55 64,497.11 28,595.44 69 110,399.15 48,449.49 61,949.66 44
    710872  Food Purchases 10,175.50 461.00 9,714.50 5 11,675.00 3,471.41 8,203.59 30
    711010  Utilities 180.00  180.00  2,700.00  2,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 47,436.00 40,870.00 6,566.00 86 17,040.00 14,088.00 2,952.00 83
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 27,084.14 22,583.28 4,500.86 83 25,938.64 22,744.54 3,194.10 88
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 46,868.56 33,241.19 13,627.37 71 42,163.13 32,439.65 9,723.48 77
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  18,346.00  18,346.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 55,492.05 33,748.86 21,743.19 61 51,253.35 41,529.28 9,724.07 81
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 74,502.09 62,085.30 12,416.79 83 80,283.41 66,902.80 13,380.61 83
    711210  Travel 269,811.03 71,356.27 198,454.76 26 251,954.25 51,683.20 200,271.05 21
    711300  Cash Over Short  40.00 40.00-      
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 2,415,028.30 483,005.70 83 2,553,372.00 1,276,686.00 1,276,686.00 50
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 135,712.36 114,748.55 20,963.81 85 155,955.08 112,268.68 43,686.40 72
*   Services and Supplies 6,328,754.12 4,157,789.57 2,170,964.55 66 5,897,250.85 3,026,154.86 2,871,095.99 51

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

4 of 17



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE - EXPENSE

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    781004  Equipment Capital 332,748.07 94,016.14 238,731.93 28 397,107.01 117,014.40 280,092.61 29
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 432,748.07 94,016.14 338,731.93 22 397,107.01 117,014.40 280,092.61 29
**  Expenses 21,148,962.01 15,355,975.69 5,792,986.32 73 21,142,496.28 14,338,815.90 6,803,680.38 68
    485193  Surplus Supplies Sales  652.80- 652.80      
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss      150.00- 150.00  
*   Other Fin. Sources  652.80- 652.80   150.00- 150.00  
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00- 6,452,918.28- 2,150,972.72- 75 8,623,891.00- 4,311,947.00- 4,311,944.00- 50
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00- 6,452,918.28- 2,150,972.72- 75 8,623,891.00- 4,311,947.00- 4,311,944.00- 50
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00- 6,453,571.08- 2,150,319.92- 75 8,623,891.00- 4,312,097.00- 4,311,794.00- 50
*** Total 2,435,636.44 2,153,911.95 281,724.49 88 2,997,615.77 3,313,719.08 316,103.31- 111

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

5 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Administraitive Health Serivces 

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,109,048.06- 767,389.85- 341,658.21- 69 1,109,658.25- 815,973.04- 293,685.21- 74
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 1,921.50- 15,302.71- 13,381.21 796     
*   Intergovernmental 1,110,969.56- 782,692.56- 328,277.00- 70 1,109,658.25- 815,973.04- 293,685.21- 74
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates         
    460512  Duplication Service Fees      5.00- 5.00  
*   Charges for Services      5.00- 5.00  
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 88,263.36- 82,152.36- 6,111.00- 93 114,750.00- 58,763.00- 55,987.00- 51
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect 5,125.00- 5,125.00-  100     
    485100  Reimbursements         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 62,228.75-  62,228.75-   5,125.00- 5,125.00  
*   Miscellaneous 155,617.11- 87,277.36- 68,339.75- 56 114,750.00- 63,888.00- 50,862.00- 56
**  Revenue 1,266,586.67- 869,969.92- 396,616.75- 69 1,224,408.25- 879,866.04- 344,542.21- 72
    701110  Base Salaries 1,610,653.89 1,244,473.80 366,180.09 77 1,620,335.85 1,284,708.81 335,627.04 79
    701120  Part Time      3,335.59 3,335.59-  
    701130  Pooled Positions 5,000.00 11,288.46 6,288.46- 226 5,000.00 11,769.76 6,769.76- 235
    701140  Holiday Work         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 33,265.00 15,493.52 17,771.48 47 30,755.00 15,107.67 15,647.33 49
    701300  Overtime 1,200.00 3,001.37 1,801.37- 250 1,200.00 1,754.41 554.41- 146
    701412  Salary Adjustment 3,642.80  3,642.80  10,554.54  10,554.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  2,035.12 2,035.12-   3,173.40 3,173.40-  
    701417  Comp Time  2,890.17 2,890.17-   18.92 18.92-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  1,885.60 1,885.60-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,653,761.69 1,281,068.04 372,693.65 77 1,667,845.39 1,319,868.56 347,976.83 79
    705110  Group Insurance 258,484.26 205,770.96 52,713.30 80 254,302.59 206,781.06 47,521.53 81
    705210  Retirement 421,998.67 323,039.61 98,959.06 77 384,397.43 309,387.89 75,009.54 80
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 22,856.87 17,571.24 5,285.63 77 22,639.74 18,226.55 4,413.19 81
    705320  Workmens Comp 11,691.26 9,742.80 1,948.46 83 11,339.00 9,449.20 1,889.80 83
    705330  Unemply Comp 2,683.24 2,683.24  100 2,755.00 2,755.00  100
    705510  Severance Pay         
*   Employee Benefits 717,714.30 558,807.85 158,906.45 78 675,433.76 546,599.70 128,834.06 81
    710100  Professional Services 36,743.00 32,972.50 3,770.50 90 45,500.00 58,938.98 13,438.98- 130
    710105  Medical Services 150.00 130.50 19.50 87 350.00 54.00 296.00 15
    710108  MD Consultants         
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services  2,896.70 2,896.70-      
    710200  Service Contract 500.00 4.47 495.53 1 1,500.00  1,500.00  
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 200.00 279.50 79.50- 140 400.00 540.69 140.69- 135
    710300  Operating Supplies 9,397.00 8,720.75 676.25 93 9,100.00 6,348.09 2,751.91 70
    710312  Special Dept Expense      100.00 100.00-  
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 3,500.00 6,310.42 2,810.42- 180 4,500.00 5,456.15 956.15- 121
    710350  Office Supplies 10,963.50 5,995.16 4,968.34 55 9,993.00 5,875.82 4,117.18 59
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 1,000.00 3,357.65 2,357.65- 336 1,000.00 791.44 208.56 79
    710360  Postage 1,680.00 596.60 1,083.40 36 1,625.00 4,249.52 2,624.52- 262
    710361  Express and Courier 100.00 15.00 85.00 15 100.00 40.84 59.16 41
    710500  Other Expense 1,600.00 951.45 648.55 59 1,600.00 1,209.49 390.51 76
    710502  Printing 4,480.00 807.36 3,672.64 18 4,780.00 451.63 4,328.37 9
    710503  Licenses & Permits 1,992.00 400.00 1,592.00 20 2,340.00 1,835.50 504.50 78
    710507  Network and Data Lines 630.00 438.84 191.16 70 630.00 544.65 85.35 86

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

6 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Administraitive Health Serivces 

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 9,580.00 6,061.01 3,518.99 63 10,080.00 6,752.38 3,327.62 67
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 2,800.00 1,681.50 1,118.50 60 5,300.00 2,215.50 3,084.50 42
    710512  Auto Expense 2,336.00 1,150.11 1,185.89 49 3,336.00 1,950.51 1,385.49 58
    710519  Cellular Phone 1,520.00 348.57 1,171.43 23 1,470.00 1,237.66 232.34 84
    710529  Dues 4,030.02 899.00 3,131.02 22 2,850.00 4,080.00 1,230.00- 143
    710546  Advertising 150.00  150.00  150.00 198.00 48.00- 132
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost         
    710585  Undesignated Budget         
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 67,464.00 31,709.56 35,754.44 47 71,788.00 54,201.42 17,586.58 76
    710872  Food Purchases 2,725.50  2,725.50  2,725.00  2,725.00  
    711010  Utilities     1,000.00  1,000.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management         
    711114  Equip Srv O & M         
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge         
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 13,169.78 10,974.80 2,194.98 83 14,239.00 11,865.90 2,373.10 83
    711210  Travel 36,428.55 6,847.89 29,580.66 19 41,165.00 6,907.68 34,257.32 17
    711300  Cash Over Short  40.00 40.00-      
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 3,456.01  3,456.01  4,275.00 3,297.81 977.19 77
*   Services and Supplies 216,595.36 123,589.34 93,006.02 57 241,796.00 179,143.66 62,652.34 74
**  Expenses 2,588,071.35 1,963,465.23 624,606.12 76 2,585,075.15 2,045,611.92 539,463.23 79
    485193  Surplus Supplies Sales  652.80- 652.80      
*   Other Fin. Sources  652.80- 652.80      
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use  652.80- 652.80      
*** Total 1,321,484.68 1,092,842.51 228,642.17 83 1,360,666.90 1,165,745.88 194,921.02 86

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

7 of 17



Washoe County Health District 
Air Quality Management

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 425,141.50- 158,870.50- 73 448,037.00- 380,562.25- 67,474.75- 85
*   Licenses and Permits 584,012.00- 425,141.50- 158,870.50- 73 448,037.00- 380,562.25- 67,474.75- 85
    431100  Federal Grants 756,090.00- 252,814.15- 503,275.85- 33 912,531.00- 434,878.96- 477,652.04- 48
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 29,372.00- 42,089.85- 12,717.85 143 30,224.00- 6,509.04- 23,714.96- 22
    432100  State Grants 496,381.00- 182,000.00- 314,381.00- 37 182,000.00- 182,000.00-  100
    432311  Pol Ctrl 445B.830 300,000.00- 552,770.83- 252,770.83 184 300,000.00- 234,745.00- 65,255.00- 78
*   Intergovernmental 1,581,843.00- 1,029,674.83- 552,168.17- 65 1,424,755.00- 858,133.00- 566,622.00- 60
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  206.00- 206.00      
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 24,755.00- 40,517.00- 38 40,000.00- 31,764.00- 8,236.00- 79
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 98,573.00- 15,361.00- 87 100,000.00- 76,831.00- 23,169.00- 77
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 63,736.00- 71,653.00- 47 84,000.00- 63,711.00- 20,289.00- 76
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 40,623.00- 17,265.00- 70 41,000.00- 39,581.00- 1,419.00- 97
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 2,547.00- 12,108.00- 17 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 121,262.00- 66,428.00- 65 95,000.00- 99,502.00- 4,502.00 105
*   Charges for Services 574,828.00- 351,702.00- 223,126.00- 61 362,600.00- 314,227.00- 48,373.00- 87
    485121  Jury Reimbursements  80.00- 80.00      
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev      14.56- 14.56  
*   Miscellaneous  80.00- 80.00   14.56- 14.56  
**  Revenue 2,740,683.00- 1,806,598.33- 934,084.67- 66 2,235,392.00- 1,552,936.81- 682,455.19- 69
    701110  Base Salaries 1,286,296.83 977,502.51 308,794.32 76 1,345,462.49 1,028,190.54 317,271.95 76
    701130  Pooled Positions 27,646.29 5,527.00 22,119.29 20 93,151.68 7,207.63 85,944.05 8
    701140  Holiday Work 418.65  418.65  250.00 140.18 109.82 56
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 20,530.00 10,141.08 10,388.92 49 19,210.00 9,449.98 9,760.02 49
    701300  Overtime 3,616.68 2,281.91 1,334.77 63 10,045.11 3,085.53 6,959.58 31
    701408  Call Back         
    701412  Salary Adjustment         
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  28,316.58 28,316.58-   2,023.44 2,023.44-  
    701417  Comp Time  5,838.68 5,838.68-   918.38 918.38-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  3,721.88 3,721.88-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,338,508.45 1,033,329.64 305,178.81 77 1,468,119.28 1,051,015.68 417,103.60 72
    705110  Group Insurance 178,506.32 143,545.06 34,961.26 80 172,127.11 135,183.54 36,943.57 79
    705210  Retirement 335,623.75 252,446.07 83,177.68 75 324,109.95 246,210.27 77,899.68 76
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,296.62 14,268.23 4,028.39 78 19,385.69 14,655.35 4,730.34 76
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,275.26 6,896.10 1,379.16 83 7,585.40 6,321.20 1,264.20 83
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,899.24 1,899.28 0.04- 100 1,843.00 1,843.00  100
*   Employee Benefits 542,601.19 419,054.74 123,546.45 77 525,051.15 404,213.36 120,837.79 77
    710100  Professional Services 590,571.26 62,184.39 528,386.87 11 385,103.78 70,908.25 314,195.53 18
    710105  Medical Services 1,525.00 1,265.50 259.50 83 1,416.00 1,112.00 304.00 79
    710200  Service Contract 1,600.00 196.25 1,403.75 12 500.00 171.33 328.67 34
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00 4,802.80 3,802.80- 480 10,741.91 2,739.10 8,002.81 25
    710210  Software Maintenance 3,386.00 3,530.00 144.00- 104 4,200.00 4,170.00 30.00 99
    710300  Operating Supplies 2,558.77 11,254.81 8,696.04- 440 11,079.55 15,458.36 4,378.81- 140
    710302  Small Tools & Allow  43.28 43.28-      
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 4,400.00 3,782.99 617.01 86 4,400.00 2,405.20 1,994.80 55
    710350  Office Supplies 3,500.00 3,436.91 63.09 98 4,000.00 3,281.03 718.97 82
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 100.00 288.03 188.03- 288 224.00 334.13 110.13- 149

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

8 of 17



Washoe County Health District 
Air Quality Management

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710360  Postage 3,000.00 2,158.47 841.53 72 2,900.00 3,174.57 274.57- 109
    710361  Express and Courier 75.00 16.47 58.53 22 80.75 480.17 399.42- 595
    710500  Other Expense 100.00 8,229.52 8,129.52- 8,230 100.00 118.85 18.85- 119
    710502  Printing 800.00 924.35 124.35- 116 800.00 1,255.82 455.82- 157
    710503  Licenses & Permits     135.00 232.39 97.39- 172
    710505  Rental Equipment 1,800.00  1,800.00  1,800.00  1,800.00  
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  33.86 33.86-      
    710507  Network and Data Lines  4,800.00 4,800.00-   4,675.00 4,675.00-  
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,500.00 2,926.16 2,573.84 53 6,500.00 3,574.71 2,925.29 55
    710509  Seminars and Meetings  4,329.99 4,329.99-  3,005.00 2,799.00 206.00 93
    710512  Auto Expense 500.00 114.15 385.85 23 1,000.00 253.36 746.64 25
    710519  Cellular Phone 4,700.00 3,218.34 1,481.66 68 4,700.00 2,952.10 1,747.90 63
    710529  Dues 3,250.00 1,133.00 2,117.00 35 4,435.00 3,950.00 485.00 89
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,300.00 2,656.17 356.17- 115 1,600.00 2,109.00 509.00- 132
    710546  Advertising 1,650.00 1,893.00 243.00- 115 1,000.00 11,688.00 10,688.00- 1,169
    710550  Small Differences         
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 100.00 2,979.21 2,879.21- 2,979 1,100.00 1,247.97 147.97- 113
    710585  Undesignated Budget 25,879.62  25,879.62      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space         
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 6,700.00 268.00- 104 2,592.00 2,232.00 360.00 86
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 9,523.78 7,937.80 1,585.98 83 8,499.58 7,937.02 562.56 93
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 11,981.33 9,402.26 2,579.07 78 10,384.74 7,109.17 3,275.57 68
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 12,156.58 7,390.15 4,766.43 61 10,687.05 8,808.83 1,878.22 82
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,321.78 7,768.20 1,553.58 83 9,525.40 7,937.80 1,587.60 83
    711210  Travel 54,419.48 12,579.92 41,839.56 23 36,088.25 11,276.14 24,812.11 31
    711300  Cash Over Short         
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 34,300.35 19,965.74 14,334.61 58 37,117.08 46,849.83 9,732.75- 126
*   Services and Supplies 796,430.95 197,941.72 598,489.23 25 565,715.09 231,241.13 334,473.96 41
    781004  Equipment Capital 249,176.82 85,384.89 163,791.93 34 342,770.01 115,664.40 227,105.61 34
*   Capital Outlay 249,176.82 85,384.89 163,791.93 34 342,770.01 115,664.40 227,105.61 34
**  Expenses 2,926,717.41 1,735,710.99 1,191,006.42 59 2,901,655.53 1,802,134.57 1,099,520.96 62
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 186,034.41 70,887.34- 256,921.75 38- 666,263.53 249,197.76 417,065.77 37

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

9 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Community and Clinical Health Services

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,890,000.86- 970,297.93- 919,702.93- 51 2,131,855.53- 1,407,595.98- 724,259.55- 66
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 92,460.00- 54,222.08- 38,237.92- 59 15,300.00- 20,316.63- 5,016.63 133
    432100  State Grants 195,421.00- 41,167.47- 154,253.53- 21 24,857.00- 17,696.03- 7,160.97- 71
    432105  State Grants-Indirect 2,205.00- 3,469.05- 1,264.05 157     
*   Intergovernmental 2,180,086.86- 1,069,156.53- 1,110,930.33- 49 2,172,012.53- 1,445,608.64- 726,403.89- 67
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 41,611.07- 47,388.93- 47 89,000.00- 50,128.50- 38,871.50- 56
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 1,716.50- 6,483.50- 21 36,200.00- 13.26 36,213.26- 0-
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 13,004.75- 6,995.25- 65 30,000.00- 15,399.50- 14,600.50- 51
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 3,390.13- 709.87- 83 4,100.00- 3,940.46- 159.54- 96
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  60.00- 60.00      
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 18,879.51- 17,129.51 1,079 2,250.00- 5,000.00- 2,750.00 222
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 4,860.75- 2,139.25- 69 7,000.00- 8,400.00- 1,400.00 120
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 14,784.35- 6,215.65- 70 23,000.00- 17,400.51- 5,599.49- 76
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 28,518.75- 1,518.75 106 44,000.00- 23,808.48- 20,191.52- 54
    460570  Education Revenue 2,400.00- 540.00- 1,860.00- 23 4,500.00- 965.00- 3,535.00- 21
*   Charges for Services 180,450.00- 127,365.81- 53,084.19- 71 240,050.00- 125,029.19- 115,020.81- 52
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 30,968.71- 6,581.29- 82 41,934.00- 33,092.56- 8,841.44- 79
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants      1,250.00- 1,250.00  
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev  15.00- 15.00   27.89- 27.89  
*   Miscellaneous 37,550.00- 30,983.71- 6,566.29- 83 41,934.00- 34,370.45- 7,563.55- 82
**  Revenue 2,398,086.86- 1,227,506.05- 1,170,580.81- 51 2,453,996.53- 1,605,008.28- 848,988.25- 65
    701110  Base Salaries 2,046,242.25 1,580,556.91 465,685.34 77 2,237,201.94 1,629,020.12 608,181.82 73
    701120  Part Time 541,787.10 343,212.62 198,574.48 63 505,752.32 415,501.77 90,250.55 82
    701130  Pooled Positions 233,706.33 229,175.49 4,530.84 98 175,944.41 168,910.42 7,033.99 96
    701140  Holiday Work  366.60 366.60-   477.11 477.11-  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 47,486.00 27,263.48 20,222.52 57 48,012.00 30,503.07 17,508.93 64
    701300  Overtime 1,280.00 2,826.73 1,546.73- 221 1,280.00 373.46 906.54 29
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00      
    701412  Salary Adjustment 34,459.06-  34,459.06-  75.00-  75.00-  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  30,367.66 30,367.66-   32,009.03 32,009.03-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  209.82 209.82-   7,718.60 7,718.60-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  430.92 430.92-   9,723.83 9,723.83-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 2,836,042.62 2,214,310.23 621,732.39 78 2,968,115.67 2,294,237.41 673,878.26 77
    705110  Group Insurance 414,555.78 294,621.85 119,933.93 71 433,968.28 325,149.56 108,818.72 75
    705210  Retirement 651,180.47 499,742.27 151,438.20 77 658,011.56 492,519.65 165,491.91 75
    705230  Medicare April 1986 35,230.23 28,850.33 6,379.90 82 36,909.75 29,953.44 6,956.31 81
    705320  Workmens Comp 19,765.83 15,759.80 4,006.03 80 18,435.65 15,363.00 3,072.65 83
    705330  Unemply Comp 4,536.42 4,340.52 195.90 96 4,479.25 4,479.25  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,125,268.73 843,314.77 281,953.96 75 1,151,804.49 867,464.90 284,339.59 75
    710100  Professional Services 204,547.00 97,369.24 107,177.76 48 75,150.71 64,882.98 10,267.73 86
    710105  Medical Services 850.00 578.50 271.50 68 850.00 594.00 256.00 70
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 35,000.00 11,950.00 75 46,900.00 36,225.00 10,675.00 77
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 1,000.00 16,819.32 15,819.32- 1,682 1,000.00 8,056.20 7,056.20- 806

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

10 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Community and Clinical Health Services

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 3,798.00 2,741.90 1,056.10 72 6,048.00 2,978.95 3,069.05 49
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 3,770.00 4,500.57 730.57- 119 3,800.00 1,514.25 2,285.75 40
    710210  Software Maintenance  6,788.00 6,788.00-      
    710300  Operating Supplies 75,502.00 36,448.01 39,053.99 48 76,719.00 51,136.69 25,582.31 67
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 14,797.00 8,527.46 6,269.54 58 13,847.00 8,442.92 5,404.08 61
    710350  Office Supplies 12,760.00 6,979.02 5,780.98 55 13,520.01 9,357.41 4,162.60 69
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,250.00 826.15 1,423.85 37 2,060.00 3,862.76 1,802.76- 188
    710360  Postage 3,675.00 3,560.43 114.57 97 4,490.00 2,084.14 2,405.86 46
    710361  Express and Courier 335.00 47.88 287.12 14 245.00 119.80 125.20 49
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 15,595.96 12,016.00 3,579.96 77 30,602.51 20,426.09 10,176.42 67
    710502  Printing 13,700.00 4,732.59 8,967.41 35 9,675.00 6,533.17 3,141.83 68
    710503  Licenses & Permits 3,055.00 1,105.00 1,950.00 36 3,555.00 3,354.00 201.00 94
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible      152.58 152.58-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,080.00 1,506.09 573.91 72 2,560.00 2,157.99 402.01 84
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 13,354.00 9,668.84 3,685.16 72 13,975.00 9,915.59 4,059.41 71
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 5,650.00 5,434.70 215.30 96 4,750.00 3,525.00 1,225.00 74
    710512  Auto Expense 13,966.20 6,999.29 6,966.91 50 13,318.00 7,913.00 5,405.00 59
    710519  Cellular Phone 360.00 1,090.85 730.85- 303 540.00 508.04 31.96 94
    710524  Utility relocation         
    710529  Dues 800.00 1,250.00 450.00- 156 1,350.00 824.00 526.00 61
    710535  Credit Card Fees 3,215.00 1,533.78 1,681.22 48 3,245.00 1,803.93 1,441.07 56
    710546  Advertising 30,145.00 8,735.00 21,410.00 29 34,903.86 45,300.71 10,396.85- 130
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  9.58 9.58-      
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 200.00  200.00  200.00  200.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     15,300.00  15,300.00  
    710703  Biologicals 243,370.00 172,227.32 71,142.68 71 246,163.19 157,500.70 88,662.49 64
    710714  Referral Services 6,328.00 1,808.00 4,520.00 29 9,040.00 3,164.00 5,876.00 35
    710721  Outpatient 90,957.55 63,436.75 27,520.80 70 108,264.15 46,949.05 61,315.10 43
    710872  Food Purchases 6,450.00 461.00 5,989.00 7 6,550.00 3,248.73 3,301.27 50
    711010  Utilities     1,700.00  1,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 1,608.00 670.00 938.00 42 288.00 240.00 48.00 83
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 546.37 501.02 45.35 92 550.44 519.28 31.16 94
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 711.35 654.16 57.19 92 711.35 602.68 108.67 85
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 21,303.49 17,753.00 3,550.49 83 23,150.65 19,292.10 3,858.55 83
    711210  Travel 33,713.00 14,255.86 19,457.14 42 28,184.00 6,423.71 21,760.29 23
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 5,950.00 43,428.33 37,478.33- 730 6,530.00 4,715.73 1,814.27 72
*   Services and Supplies 883,292.92 589,463.64 293,829.28 67 809,735.87 534,325.18 275,410.69 66
    781004  Equipment Capital 30,378.00 8,631.25 21,746.75 28 17,000.00 1,350.00 15,650.00 8
*   Capital Outlay 30,378.00 8,631.25 21,746.75 28 17,000.00 1,350.00 15,650.00 8
**  Expenses 4,874,982.27 3,655,719.89 1,219,262.38 75 4,946,656.03 3,697,377.49 1,249,278.54 75
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 2,476,895.41 2,428,213.84 48,681.57 98 2,492,659.50 2,092,369.21 400,290.29 84

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

11 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Evnironmental Health Serivces

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 54,711.00- 8,466.00- 87 51,500.00- 53,333.00- 1,833.00 104
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 85,428.00- 10,738.00 114 68,000.00- 57,385.00- 10,615.00- 84
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 9,679.00- 3,627.00- 73 10,500.00- 9,078.00- 1,422.00- 86
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 367,563.00- 124,618.00- 75 369,000.00- 333,139.00- 35,861.00- 90
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 22,509.00- 1,058.00- 96 20,000.00- 20,745.00- 745.00 104
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 7,998.00- 4,798.00 250 2,500.00- 4,002.00- 1,502.00 160
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 75,287.00- 8,765.00 113 49,000.00- 46,731.00- 2,269.00- 95
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 61,177.00- 38,446.00- 61 79,000.00- 48,751.00- 30,249.00- 62
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 28,734.00- 6,492.00- 82 27,000.00- 24,472.00- 2,528.00- 91
*   Licenses and Permits 871,492.00- 713,086.00- 158,406.00- 82 676,500.00- 597,636.00- 78,864.00- 88
    431100  Federal Grants 412,818.04- 232,765.60- 180,052.44- 56 340,000.00- 212,784.94- 127,215.06- 63
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 27,470.00- 17,279.62- 10,190.38- 63     
    432100  State Grants 50,000.00- 37,750.00- 12,250.00- 76 75,000.00- 57,000.00- 18,000.00- 76
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 314,136.09- 154,411.91- 67 418,766.00- 331,900.49- 86,865.51- 79
*   Intergovernmental 958,836.04- 601,931.31- 356,904.73- 63 833,766.00- 601,685.43- 232,080.57- 72
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 30,226.00- 5,118.00- 86 113,400.00- 101,326.00- 12,074.00- 89
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  696.18- 696.18   299.88- 299.88  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  358.00- 358.00  2,700.00- 1,837.75- 862.25- 68
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 16,924.00- 3,060.00- 85 13,900.00- 14,822.00- 922.00 107
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 45,193.00- 5,514.00- 89 44,000.00- 28,283.00- 15,717.00- 64
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 4,724.00- 908.00 124 2,500.00- 2,695.00- 195.00 108
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 18,231.00- 534.00- 97 17,000.00- 25,871.00- 8,871.00 152
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 50,326.00- 14,305.00 140 30,000.00- 33,791.00- 3,791.00 113
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel  480.00- 480.00   322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start      87.00- 87.00  
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 6,453.00- 4,107.00- 61 8,500.00- 6,219.00- 2,281.00- 73
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 15,599.00- 6,941.00- 69 17,300.00- 13,795.00- 3,505.00- 80
    460570  Education Revenue 500.00- 256.00- 244.00- 51 1,200.00- 270.00- 930.00- 23
*   Charges for Services 198,237.00- 189,466.18- 8,770.82- 96 250,500.00- 229,618.63- 20,881.37- 92
    485100  Reimbursements  46,450.20- 46,450.20      
    485121  Jury Reimbursements      315.00- 315.00  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev  2,500.00- 2,500.00      
*   Miscellaneous  48,950.20- 48,950.20   315.00- 315.00  
**  Revenue 2,028,565.04- 1,553,433.69- 475,131.35- 77 1,760,766.00- 1,429,255.06- 331,510.94- 81
    701110  Base Salaries 2,961,482.51 2,256,924.88 704,557.63 76 3,018,372.82 2,301,582.79 716,790.03 76
    701130  Pooled Positions 195,228.04 83,359.39 111,868.65 43 236,872.77 76,623.26 160,249.51 32
    701140  Holiday Work 2,400.00 2,660.05 260.05- 111 1,200.00 1,123.27 76.73 94
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 50,522.50 24,028.86 26,493.64 48 50,800.00 23,903.84 26,896.16 47
    701300  Overtime 62,123.00 32,019.78 30,103.22 52 36,600.00 22,194.84 14,405.16 61
    701406  Standby Pay         
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00 93.52 906.48 9 1,000.00 182.10 817.90 18
    701412  Salary Adjustment 199,268.34-  199,268.34-      
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  3,522.66 3,522.66-   24,260.54 24,260.54-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  644.69 644.69-   10,144.53 10,144.53-  
    701500  Merit Awards         

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

12 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Evnironmental Health Serivces

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
*   Salaries and Wages 3,073,487.71 2,403,253.83 670,233.88 78 3,344,845.59 2,460,015.17 884,830.42 74
    705110  Group Insurance 412,145.94 323,274.13 88,871.81 78 434,110.13 328,875.03 105,235.10 76
    705210  Retirement 773,216.95 585,475.14 187,741.81 76 728,879.94 551,380.57 177,499.37 76
    705230  Medicare April 1986 41,494.29 32,475.58 9,018.71 78 41,940.99 33,003.11 8,937.88 79
    705320  Workmens Comp 19,168.03 15,973.40 3,194.63 83 18,838.38 15,698.70 3,139.68 83
    705330  Unemply Comp 4,399.22 4,399.24 0.02- 100 4,577.10 4,577.10  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,250,424.43 961,597.49 288,826.94 77 1,228,346.54 933,534.51 294,812.03 76
    710100  Professional Services 247,318.30 30,108.75 217,209.55 12 325,401.67 7,626.31 317,775.36 2
    710105  Medical Services 6,548.00 4,251.00 2,297.00 65 6,548.00 443.00 6,105.00 7
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 35,000.03 5,056.42 29,943.61 14 65,000.00 6,943.09 58,056.91 11
    710200  Service Contract 95,300.00 42,779.86 52,520.14 45 95,300.00 32,511.14 62,788.86 34
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 5,500.00 1,028.38 4,471.62 19 4,600.00 2,666.73 1,933.27 58
    710210  Software Maintenance 250.00  250.00      
    710300  Operating Supplies 31,900.00 23,789.84 8,110.16 75 20,100.00 6,649.49 13,450.51 33
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 1,113.67 9,571.33 10 3,685.00 877.35 2,807.65 24
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 582.75 1,017.25 36 2,000.00 343.91 1,656.09 17
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 232,321.33 21.33- 100 231,950.00 232,131.87 181.87- 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 2,800.00 850.04 1,949.96 30 2,250.00 877.09 1,372.91 39
    710350  Office Supplies 7,250.00 6,663.28 586.72 92 9,100.00 6,479.97 2,620.03 71
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,100.00 731.85 1,368.15 35 2,400.00 342.00 2,058.00 14
    710360  Postage 13,130.00 4,895.31 8,234.69 37 9,775.00 10,628.03 853.03- 109
    710361  Express and Courier 175.00 5.68 169.32 3 175.00  175.00  
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00 78.52 21.48 79 100.00  100.00  
    710500  Other Expense 200.00 209.47 9.47- 105 8,300.00 192.80 8,107.20 2
    710502  Printing 12,600.00 1,312.37 11,287.63 10 11,525.00 1,245.51 10,279.49 11
    710503  Licenses & Permits 2,690.00 2,350.00 340.00 87 2,690.00 2,080.00 610.00 77
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  300.00 300.00-   300.00 300.00-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,220.00 1,144.74 1,075.26 52 2,500.00 1,157.70 1,342.30 46
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 8,960.00 6,645.33 2,314.67 74 9,710.00 7,248.63 2,461.37 75
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 21,315.00 14,522.00 6,793.00 68 13,415.00 11,702.10 1,712.90 87
    710512  Auto Expense 50.00  50.00  100.00 29.69 70.31 30
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 5,960.00 5,960.00 50 11,920.00 11,920.00  100
    710519  Cellular Phone 6,600.00 3,400.69 3,199.31 52 6,600.00 3,873.38 2,726.62 59
    710529  Dues 1,565.99 691.00 874.99 44 1,661.00 605.00 1,056.00 36
    710535  Credit Card Fees 4,410.00 4,685.52 275.52- 106 4,610.00 3,559.30 1,050.70 77
    710546  Advertising 13,030.00  13,030.00  6,050.00 600.00 5,450.00 10
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  26.65 26.65-      
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,200.00 1,590.67 23,609.33 6 1,700.00 1,049.86 650.14 62
    710585  Undesignated Budget 36,349.13  36,349.13      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 41,651.00 34,300.00 7,351.00 82 41,651.00 33,700.00 7,951.00 81
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 32,964.00 25,460.00 7,504.00 77 11,856.00 9,696.00 2,160.00 82
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 17,182.42 14,330.48 2,851.94 83 17,061.11 14,492.52 2,568.59 85
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 32,731.24 23,176.61 9,554.63 71 30,573.49 23,693.44 6,880.05 77
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  16,741.00  16,741.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 42,624.12 25,704.55 16,919.57 60 39,776.37 32,103.21 7,673.16 81

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

13 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Evnironmental Health Serivces

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 21,592.09 17,993.40 3,598.69 83 23,656.38 19,713.70 3,942.68 83
    711210  Travel 94,000.00 27,909.08 66,090.92 30 81,150.00 10,013.28 71,136.72 12
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 89,242.00 42,626.97 46,615.03 48 62,544.00 3,764.87 58,779.13 6
*   Services and Supplies 1,227,794.32 608,596.21 619,198.11 50 1,184,175.02 501,260.97 682,914.05 42
    781004  Equipment Capital 53,193.25  53,193.25  25,000.00  25,000.00  
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 153,193.25  153,193.25  25,000.00  25,000.00  
**  Expenses 5,704,899.71 3,973,447.53 1,731,452.18 70 5,782,367.15 3,894,810.65 1,887,556.50 67
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss      150.00- 150.00  
*   Other Fin. Sources      150.00- 150.00  
    621001  Transfer From General         
*   Transfers In         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use      150.00- 150.00  
*** Total 3,676,334.67 2,420,013.84 1,256,320.83 66 4,021,601.15 2,465,405.59 1,556,195.56 61

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

14 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,133,558.09- 835,470.28- 298,087.81- 74 1,366,574.73- 790,922.34- 575,652.39- 58
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 91,954.91- 75,291.39- 16,663.52- 82 79,852.00- 54,305.29- 25,546.71- 68
*   Intergovernmental 1,225,513.00- 910,761.67- 314,751.33- 74 1,446,426.73- 845,227.63- 601,199.10- 58
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 380,188.00- 69,812.00- 84 400,000.00- 400,706.00- 706.00 100
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  35.00- 35.00      
*   Charges for Services 450,000.00- 380,223.00- 69,777.00- 84 400,000.00- 400,706.00- 706.00 100
**  Revenue 1,675,513.00- 1,290,984.67- 384,528.33- 77 1,846,426.73- 1,245,933.63- 600,493.10- 67
    701110  Base Salaries 1,286,514.42 954,810.41 331,704.01 74 1,220,854.27 910,095.14 310,759.13 75
    701120  Part Time 24,152.57 6,330.46 17,822.11 26 24,152.57 18,962.79 5,189.78 79
    701130  Pooled Positions 2,900.00 16,382.50 13,482.50- 565 11,330.00 19,653.05 8,323.05- 173
    701140  Holiday Work  117.94 117.94-   46.38 46.38-  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 13,622.00 6,217.09 7,404.91 46 9,515.00 6,260.41 3,254.59 66
    701300  Overtime 1,700.00 8,394.23 6,694.23- 494 1,200.00 1,334.34 134.34- 111
    701412  Salary Adjustment     42,507.00  42,507.00  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  9,410.57 9,410.57-   2,889.96 2,889.96-  
    701417  Comp Time  167.14 167.14-   2,185.99 2,185.99-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,328,888.99 1,001,830.34 327,058.65 75 1,309,558.84 961,428.06 348,130.78 73
    705110  Group Insurance 158,342.63 118,640.70 39,701.93 75 154,680.99 118,139.13 36,541.86 76
    705210  Retirement 333,646.85 246,380.79 87,266.06 74 314,726.17 217,564.06 97,162.11 69
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,823.48 13,981.44 4,842.04 74 19,086.47 13,241.90 5,844.57 69
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,091.65 6,743.00 1,348.65 83 7,988.98 6,445.10 1,543.88 81
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,857.10 1,857.12 0.02- 100 1,879.10 1,879.10  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment     10,656.00  10,656.00  
*   Employee Benefits 520,761.71 387,603.05 133,158.66 74 509,017.71 357,269.29 151,748.42 70
    710100  Professional Services 132,590.27 95,755.08 36,835.19 72 260,648.22 113,837.42 146,810.80 44
    710105  Medical Services 100.00 53.50 46.50 54 100.00 204.00 104.00- 204
    710108  MD Consultants  9,000.00 9,000.00-      
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 17,500.00 17,495.94 4.06 100 5,051.00 40,024.19 34,973.19- 792
    710200  Service Contract 2,395.00 3,173.50 778.50- 133 1,895.00 2,760.08 865.08- 146
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00 603.80 396.20 60 1,008.00  1,008.00  
    710210  Software Maintenance 12,000.00 12,000.00  100 12,000.00 9,750.00 2,250.00 81
    710300  Operating Supplies 15,512.00 10,567.31 4,944.69 68 15,739.00 11,565.12 4,173.88 73
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 2,950.00 2,208.92 741.08 75 3,277.89 1,818.14 1,459.75 55
    710350  Office Supplies 6,600.00 5,846.35 753.65 89 7,558.00 6,831.98 726.02 90
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,144.00 996.67 1,147.33 46 2,729.00 409.90 2,319.10 15
    710360  Postage 2,950.00 1,384.59 1,565.41 47 3,164.00 1,899.89 1,264.11 60
    710361  Express and Courier 50.00 14.33 35.67 29 10.00 34.81 24.81- 348
    710500  Other Expense 7,436.00 6,124.75 1,311.25 82 5,371.00 5,554.75 183.75- 103
    710502  Printing 2,390.00 3,092.74 702.74- 129 4,719.00 1,749.39 2,969.61 37
    710503  Licenses & Permits 150.00  150.00  150.00  150.00  
    710505  Rental Equipment 100.00  100.00  3,378.00 1,427.00 1,951.00 42
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible         
    710507  Network and Data Lines 600.00 837.28 237.28- 140 796.00 786.38 9.62 99
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,090.00 3,755.44 1,334.56 74 6,270.00 3,729.92 2,540.08 59
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 6,300.00 7,524.00 1,224.00- 119 5,850.00 11,470.00 5,620.00- 196
    710512  Auto Expense 2,250.00 898.38 1,351.62 40 2,030.00 1,248.14 781.86 61

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

15 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710519  Cellular Phone 2,480.00 2,835.32 355.32- 114 5,137.00 2,250.15 2,886.85 44
    710529  Dues 1,110.00 720.00 390.00 65 1,630.00 610.00 1,020.00 37
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,000.00 1,623.79 376.21 81 2,000.00 1,650.09 349.91 83
    710546  Advertising 2,625.00  2,625.00  2,625.00  2,625.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     55,777.00  55,777.00  
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 3,420.79 995.08 2,425.71 29 3,420.79  3,420.79  
    710721  Outpatient 2,135.00 1,060.36 1,074.64 50 2,135.00 1,500.44 634.56 70
    710872  Food Purchases 1,000.00  1,000.00  2,400.00 222.68 2,177.32 9
    711010  Utilities 180.00  180.00      
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 8,040.00 1,608.00- 125 2,304.00 1,920.00 384.00 83
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 377.94 315.00 62.94 83 377.95 315.00 62.95 83
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 1,609.62 161.30 1,448.32 10 654.46 1,117.76 463.30- 171
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool     1,605.00  1,605.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge     78.58 14.56 64.02 19
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,114.95 7,595.90 1,519.05 83 9,711.98 8,093.30 1,618.68 83
    711210  Travel 51,250.00 9,763.52 41,486.48 19 65,367.00 17,062.39 48,304.61 26
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 2,764.00 8,727.51 5,963.51- 316 45,489.00 53,640.44 8,151.44- 118
*   Services and Supplies 306,606.57 223,170.36 83,436.21 73 542,456.87 303,497.92 238,958.95 56
    781004  Equipment Capital     12,337.00  12,337.00  
*   Capital Outlay     12,337.00  12,337.00  
**  Expenses 2,156,257.27 1,612,603.75 543,653.52 75 2,373,370.42 1,622,195.27 751,175.15 68
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 480,744.27 321,619.08 159,125.19 67 526,943.69 376,261.64 150,682.05 71

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

16 of 17



Washoe County Health District
Undesignated
Pd 1-10, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 2,415,028.30 483,005.70 83 2,553,372.00 1,276,686.00 1,276,686.00 50
**  Expenses 2,898,034.00 2,415,028.30 483,005.70 83 2,553,372.00 1,276,686.00 1,276,686.00 50
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00- 6,452,918.28- 2,150,972.72- 75 8,623,891.00- 4,311,947.00- 4,311,944.00- 50
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00- 6,452,918.28- 2,150,972.72- 75 8,623,891.00- 4,311,947.00- 4,311,944.00- 50
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00- 6,452,918.28- 2,150,972.72- 75 8,623,891.00- 4,311,947.00- 4,311,944.00- 50
*** Total 5,705,857.00- 4,037,889.98- 1,667,967.02- 71 6,070,519.00- 3,035,261.00- 3,035,258.00- 50

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

17 of 17



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES  

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

 
 
May 13, 2014 
 
To:  Members District Board of Health 
 
From:  Eileen Stickney 
 
Subject Fiscal Year 15 Budget Update with possible direction to staff. 
 
Summary 
 
The purpose of this item is to provide a status report and possible direction to staff on the Washoe 
County Manager’s recommended Fiscal Year Budget adopted by the Board of County 
Commissioners on May 13, 2014. 
  
Previous Action 
 
March 6 2014  Approved proposed FY 15 Budget 
 
March 27, 2014 Acknowledged receipt of status report on FY 15 Budget 
 
April 24, 2014  Acknowledged receipt of status report on FY 15 Budget 
 
Background 
 
The Health District will received continued support from the General Fund in the amount of 
$10,000,192 for Fiscal Year 15.  Included is an increase of $1,190,684 due to increased labor costs 
and unrecoverable overhead charges. 
 
Position Control changes are as follows: 
` 
Position Classification Position 

Number 
Position FTE Budget 

Impact 
Office Assistant II New 1.00 1.00 $49,171 
EMS Coordinator New 1.00 .53 $43,393 
EMS Program Manager New 1.00 1.00 $98.052 
Registered Nurse 70002189 (1.00) (0.40) ($22,073) 
Licensed Practical Nurse 70002188  (0.40) ($29,356) 
Public Health Nurse II 70002207  0.10 $11,192 
Public Health Nurse II 70002212  0.25 $18,164 
Total  2.00 2.08 $168,543 
 
The Capital Improvement Project (CIP) for the Employee Entrance Safety Improvement Project has 
been identified for funding in FY 18 in the amount of $150,000. 
 
I would be happy to answer any questions of the Board during the meeting or you may contact me 
directly at 328-2417.  Thank you. 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12



EnviroFlash 
 
In an ongoing effort to improve the delivery of information to the public, Air Quality 
Management is pleased to announce our latest project involving the delivery of the 
daily air quality index.  EnviroFlash is a delivery system that is available through a 
partnership between the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and local air quality 
agencies.  Up-to-date air quality information is provided by email or text message to 
allow people to make decisions regarding outdoor activities based on air quality 
forecasts.  The notifications are customizable so individual participants can select at 
what level they wish to be notified, anywhere from good to unhealthy to 
hazardous.  The Know the Code, Burn Codes during the winter months and health 
alerts, like wildfire smoke impacts, will also be sent using this service.  The 
notifications contain the same air quality information that we have always delivered, 
however, EnviroFlash is an automated system that will also update our Facebook 
and Twitter pages.  This will increase the efficiency of the distribution of information 
allowing staff to continue to focus on the quality and accuracy of the data.  We are 
encouraging everyone to sign up for EnviroFlash by following the link on our website 
at www.OurCleanAir.com . 

 
.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Director’s Report        APRIL 2014 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t D
iv

is
io

n 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

  

 
 

AIR QUALITY COMPARISON FOR APRIL 
 

Air Quality Index Range # OF DAYS       
APRIL  2014 

# OF DAYS      
APRIL 2013 

 GOOD                                                                    0 to 50 21 28 

 MODERATE                                                        51 to 100 9 2 

 UNHEALTHY FOR SENSITIVE GROUPS       101 to 150 0 0 

 UNHEALTHY                                                    151 to 200                                                   0 0 

 VERY UNHEALTHY                                         201 to 300                                                   0 0 

 TOTAL 30 30 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.B.

1 of 6

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


  
RTC Electric Buses 
 
On April 14th, Air Quality staff attended the RTC celebration to welcome the addition 
of four new battery-electric buses to its fleet.  The ceremony was attended by 
Senator Harry Reid along with elected officials from Reno, Sparks, and Washoe 
County.  The acquisition of the buses was made possible by a Federal Grant from the 
U.S. Department of Transportation/Federal Transit Authority.  The RTC is the first 
public transportation agency in the state of Nevada to use all electric buses in 
service.  The new Proterra battery-electric buses recharge at the downtown Reno 
transit center’s FastFill charging station in 5 – 10 minutes while passengers load and 
unload.  The benefits of the electric buses include reduced fuel cost, lower 
maintenance cost, quieter vehicles, and, our personal favorite - lower emissions.  The 
electric buses are a perfect example of our community partners contributing to our 
mission to Keep It Clean.  
 
 
Earth Day Celebrations 
 
Air Quality Management staff continued a long tradition of celebrating Earth Day once 
again this year.  On April 23rd, staff participated in the University of Nevada, Reno 
Earth Day event supporting alternative transportation.  The Air Quality Management 
Nissan Leaf was on display in addition to other electric vehicles, including one of the 
new RTC buses.  On Sunday, April 26th, staff participated in the Reno Earth Day 
Event at Idlewild Park.  Between the two events, approximately 75 people signed up 
to be new participants in EnviroFlash. 
 
 
 
Charlene Albee 
Division Director  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

AUG 2012 

 

Director’s Report continued        APRIL 2014 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t D
iv

is
io

n 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.B.

2 of 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Washoe County Health District                                  APRIL 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

A
c

ti
vi

ty
 

Planning and Monitoring Branches 
 
The annual data certification was completed on April 30, 2014.  This requirement certifies the 
ambient air monitoring data submitted to AQS has been quality assured and meets federal data 
quality standards.  EPA uses data in AQS to determine if areas meet National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards for pollutants such as ozone and particulate matter.   
 
The draft annual air quality trends report has been completed and is included as a consent 
agenda item for this month’s DBOH meeting.  It provides a 10-year trend of air quality in Washoe 
County as well as more detailed information about 2013.  Below is a summary of last year’s air 
quality levels.  Elevated fine particulate matter (PM2.5) concentrations from the Rim Fire and 
strong temperature inversions in December pushed AQI levels to the Unhealthy for Sensitive 
Groups (USG) range or higher 17 times in 2013.  This is the most number of days since 2008 
when it reached USG or higher on 8 days.  The entire draft report is available at 
www.OurCleanAir.com.   
 

2013 Air Quality Index by Month and AQI Ranges 

 
 
 
 
 

    
   

A
ir

 Q
u

a
lit

y 

 

HIGHEST AQI NUMBER BY POLLUTANT 
 

POLLUTANT APRIL 2014 YTD 
for 2014 APRIL 2013 Highest 

for 2013 

OZONE 8 hour                   (O3) 80 80 50 93 

PARTICULATES                (PM2.5) 52 112 49 174 
PARTICULATES                (PM10) 62 82 51 97 

 
For the month of April 2014, the highest Air Quality Index (AQI) value reported was eighty (80) for 
Ozone.  There were no exceedances of Carbon Monoxide, Ozone, PM10 or PM2.5.  There were 
twenty-one (21) days the air quality was in the good range, and nine (9) days the air quality was 
in the moderate range.  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.B.

3 of 6

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TYPE OF PERMIT 
2014 2013 

APRIL YTD APRIL ANNUAL 
TOTAL 

 Renewal of Existing Air Permits 129 440 135 1339 

 New Authorities to Construct 15 36 20 88 

 Dust Control Permits 12                     
(162 acres) 

49                    
(575 acres) 

6                      
(41 acres) 

105                       
(1420 acres) 

     

 Wood Stove Certificates 37 
 

116 
 

27 329 

 WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 7 
  (6 replacements) 

41                     
(24 replacements) 

5                    
(3 replacements) 

134                      
(83 replacements) 

 WS Notice of Exemptions 724 
 (7 stoves removed) 

2254 
(22 stoves removed)                      

 
250 

 (3 stoves removed) 
 

 
7346 

 (83 stoves removed) 
 

     

Combined Total for both:  
Asbestos Assessments and Asbestos 
Demo and Removal (NESHAP) 

102 
 

356 
 

100 1027 

 Asbestos Assessments 90 233 74 828 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 12 51 26 199 

     

 Washoe County Health District                            APRIL 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

Staff reviewed twenty-five (25) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe 
County Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality 
requirements. 

 
Staff conducted fifty-four (54) stationary source renewal inspections and fifty-three (53) 
gas station inspections in April 2014. Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos 
removal and construction/dust projects. 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 &
 

In
sp

e
c

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

vi
ty

 
P

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

 A
c

ti
vi

ty
 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.B.

4 of 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Washoe County Health District                           APRIL 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

P
e

rm
it

ti
n

g
 &

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ty

 Permitting & Enforcement 
 
 
 
The Permitting Section is experiencing a significant increase in activity, not only new 
sources but existing facilities are expanding and investing in new equipment.  In the 
third quarter of FY14, Permitting has received more applications than almost all of 
Calendar Year 2013.  In addition to this increase in applications, staff is preparing for 
the new Medical Marijuana Establishments.  Research into emissions factors from 
cultivation facilities has proven to be difficult.  Experience from other states has 
identified the cultivation activities as significant sources of odors but information on 
quantifying the emissions is limited.  During the research process, Staff was able to 
make contact with a government regulator in the Netherlands.  They did not have 
emission factors for cannabis but advised they use factors from tomato plants which 
apparently have similar emissions and serve as an effective surrogate.   Based on this 
information, staff is now prepared to complete the engineering reviews and draft permit 
language to comply with the Nevada Revised Statutes. 
 
The Enforcement Staff is also experiencing an increase in construction activities in the 
area.  Several housing developments that have been idle for the past three or four 
years are now actually starting to build homes.  Staff is working with the builders to 
establish phased development in an attempt to avoid the compliance issues that 
resulted from the building boom when several hundred acres were cleared all at 
once.  This conservative approach has been very well received and everyone is moving 
forward with a cautious optimism.  Staff is also working on a major condominium 
development on Lakeside Drive at the southeast end of Virginia Lake.  Fifteen 
apartment buildings will undergo a complete asbestos abatement in preparation for 
demolition in order to prepare the site for the construction of the new condominiums. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Charlene Albee, Branch Chief  
Permitting & Enforcement  
 
 
 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.B.

5 of 6



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

COMPLAINTS 
   2014* 2013 

APRIL YTD APRIL YTD Annual 
Total 

Asbestos 2 6 2 6 18 

Burning  0 3 1 3 8 

Construction Dust 2 4 0 10 30 
Dust Control Permit 0 5 0 4 7 

General Dust 6 15 4 14 46 

Diesel Idling 2 1 0 1 8 
Odor 0 6 1 1 16 
Spray Painting 2 1 0 1 5 
Permit to Operate 0 9 6 16 55 
Woodstove 0 8 0 9 16 

TOTAL 17 58 14 58 209 

NOV’S APRIL  YTD APRIL YTD Annual 
Total 

Warnings 5 12 5 19 46 

Citations 3 9 1 8 40 

TOTAL 8 17 6 27 86 

 Washoe County Health District                            APRIL 2014  
 Air Quality Management Division Report 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ty

 
 

* Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur because of data entry delays. 
 

Notices of Violation (NOVs): 

There were eight (8) Notice of Violations (NOV’s) issued in the month of April, 
2014. There were five (5) NOV Warnings and three (3) NOV Citations.   

  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.B.

6 of 6



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

Staff Report 
 
 
DATE:  May 22, 2014 
 
TO:  District Board of Health Members 
 
FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH, Division Director 

Community and Clinical Health Services 
(775) 328-6159 skutz@washoecounty.us 

 
SUBJECT: Community and Clinical Health Services (CCHS) Division Report,  
  May 2014 District Board of Health Meeting 
 

1. Divisional Update 
a. Insight 
b. Affordable Care Act 
c. Data/Metrics  

2. Program Reports 
  
1. Divisional Update 

a. Insight – Staff have provided initial information to Netsmart for Revenue Cycle 
Management (RCM). A time line and scope of work of the Family Planning 
module is under development, with a tentative timeframe of late summer for 
implementation. Work has been initiated on connecting Netsmart with Selectron, 
a vendor the County is working with to create automated phone and internet 
appointments for clinical services.  
 

b. Affordable Care Act (ACA) – The Washoe County Social Services certified 
application counselor (CAC) has been at the Health District weekly to assist 
clients with signing up for health insurance through the Nevada Silver State 
Health Insurance Exchange since mid-April. She is very helpful answering 
questions surrounding the complexities of ACA and Nevada Health Link for both 
clients and staff.   
 
The Division Director has secured one the CCHS consulting physician’s to be the 
“physician of record” for credentialing of CCHS, a process that is necessary in 
order to execute contracts with health plans, and receive reimbursement for 
services provided to respective plan members.   

 
 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.C.

1 of 6

mailto:skutz@washoecounty.us


May 22, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 2 of 6 

c. Data/Metrics –  
 

 
 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community 
demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, resulting in a 
reduction of direct services available.  
 
2. Program  Reports – Outcomes and Activities 

a. Sexual Health – Nothing significant to report for this reporting period. 
 

b. Immunizations – On April 16, 2014, a Childcare Provider Immunization Training 
was held, with 19 attendees (see flyer, page 5). On April 26, 2014, a Community 
Baby Shower Celebration was held at Meadowood Mall in partnership with 
Immunize Nevada. Twenty people were immunized, and total of 65 doses of 
vaccine were provided.  
 
On April 30, 2014, the Division Director was interviewed by KTVN regarding the 
“Invisible Threat” immunization documentary to be held at UNR. He discussed 
the importance of timely immunizations, risks of vaccines compared to 
consequences of contracting a vaccine preventable disease, and encouraged 
viewers to obtain information from science based articles, as opposed to taking 
advice from celebrities and popular media. He was also on a discussion panel of 
experts following the viewing of the documentary at UNR.  
 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – TB team completed case 
reports for the two large investigations in 2013.  There has been one case of 
active TB disease reported to date this year and the team has conducted multiple 
evaluations on other clients to rule out active disease.   
 

485 
164 174 

515 
59 

1397 

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500

IZ TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
April 2013 and April 2014 

April 2013 April 2014

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.C.

2 of 6



May 22, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 3 of 6 

d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – Our recently hired APRN attended grant 
sponsored training, the Women’s Health Update 2014, to obtain IUD insertion 
training in order to complete her orientation to the clinic.   

 
New Title X Program Guidelines were released. Providing Quality Family 
Planning Services (QFP) Recommendations from the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention and the U.S. Office of Population Affairs were released 
as an MMWR on April 24, 2014. The new Program Requirements for Title X 
Funded Family Planning Programs (Title X Requirements) were also released. 
Together, the two documents comprise the new Title X Program Guidelines. OPA 
and the Family Planning National Training Centers will be developing resources 
to support Title X providers in implementation.  

 
e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program – Kelli Seals was recognized by UNR 

with the Presidential Award for Excellence in Engagement for her work with UNR 
bio-chemistry student interns. The interns’ project used GIS to map burden of 
chronic disease and access to grocery stores, parks, and tobacco retailers. 

 
CDPP staff is participating in the Nevada School Wellness Policy Taskforce. This 
group is working on revising the Statewide School Wellness Policy to meet new 
minimum requirements set forth by USDA for all foods sold in school. Additionally 
the taskforce is updating policy in areas of nutrition that exceed USDA 
requirements, as well as physical activity. 

  
CDPP staff met with the Nevada State Apartment Association to forge a partnership 
in an effort to decrease secondhand smoke exposure in multi-unit housing 
residences and increase the number of multi-unit communities that are smoke free. 

 
UNR student interns in the program completed their projects this month. Projects 
included outreach to multi-unit housing owners and managers to gather 
information to help determine current smoke free living options and gauge 
interest in adopting smoke free policies, and updating the 
GetHealthyWashoe.com Spanish section of the website. 

 
CDPP staff partnered with AQM in the planning of Bike to Work activities, 
including contributing to the Bike to Work, School and Fun insert in the Northern 
Nevada Business Weekly publication (see page 6).  

 
f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – The MCAH team attended 

the MCH Spring Symposium, which included presentations on domestic violence, 
maternal mental health disorders and Tdap during pregnancy.  The home 
visitation team continues to close cases and collaborate with community partners 
in preparation for the closure of the program on June 30, 2014. MCAH team 
members are working in partnership with WIC and the Immunization program to 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.C.

3 of 6

http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/pdf/rr/rr6304.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/pdf/rr/rr6304.pdf
http://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/pdf/rr/rr6304.pdf
http://www.hhs.gov/opa/program-guidelines/program-requirements/
http://www.hhs.gov/opa/program-guidelines/program-requirements/


May 22, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 4 of 6 

develop a clinic based MCAH program. The FIMR team met with the state Child 
Death Review team on May 7, 2014, to discuss FIMR implementation.     
  

g. WIC – WIC staff have been meeting with other CCHS staff to brainstorm ways to 
meet the Immunizations and Maternal Child Adolescent Health needs of WIC 
clients. This is a result of Fundamental Review recommendations to restructure 
the Home Visiting Program, and expanded days and hours for the Immunization 
clinic.  
 
Number of WIC Participants Served* - March 2014: 

Women 
Prenatal  

Women 
Postpartum  
Non-breastfeeding  

Women 
Postpartum 
Breastfeeding 

Infants  
0-12 Months 

Children  
1-5 Years  

 
TOTAL 
 

509 342 419 1,218 3,020 5,508 
*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC clinics operate to the end of the month and 
participants have 30 days after that to purchase their WIC foods. 
 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.C.

4 of 6



May 22, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 5 of 6 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.C.

5 of 6



May 22, 2014 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 6 of 6 

 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.C.

6 of 6



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

 
DATE:  May 9, 2014 
 
TO:  District Board of Health Members 
 
FROM:  Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
 
SUBJECT: Environmental Health Services Division Report for May 2014 
 
 
Food Program 
 
• Food-Borne Illness (FBI) staff investigated a confirmed norovirus outbreak associated with a 

local restaurant.  Staff also investigated, in conjunction with the Communicable Diseases 
(CD) Program, a suspect norovirus outbreak associated with a childcare. 
 

Institutions Program 
 

• IBD staff covered the SilverState Tattoo & Arts Festival on May 2-4 at the Peppermill with 37 
businesses and 80 artists. 
 

Land Development Program 
 
• Plan review submittals continue to increase month over month. 

 
• Received 5 water projects for review. 

 
UST/LUST Program 
 
• Staff completed another comprehensive training class on underground storage tank 

compliance inspections with their counterparts from the Nevada Division of Environmental 
Protection (NDEP) and the Southern Nevada Health District (SNHD). 
 

• Staff closed a remediation case for the Bi-Rite Market in Sun Valley, Nevada. 
 
Vector-Borne Disease Program 

 
• Effective April 21, the public health interns returned to the Vector Borne Diseases Program.  

They are repairing the chicken coops prior to receiving the annual sentinel chickens, testing 
the New Jersey light traps and making sure the portable CDC traps are operational for our 
Disease Surveillance Program.  In addition, the interns are becoming familiarized with the 
small bodies of water that staff integrated into the GIS geo database to upload for inspection 
and have already started inspection and treatment of these bodies of water. 
 

• The first helicopter application of our mosquito season was on May 7 for the Truckee 
Meadows Community.  A total of 350 acres were treated with the product Altosid for 
Rosewood Lakes, Butler Ranch and Red Hawk (see attached). 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.D. DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.D.

1 of 3



Division Director’s Report – Environmental Health Services  
May 9, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
• Staff took both Health District Administration Fiscal Control Officers on a field trip to show 

the Program’s design in infrastructure for detention basins and catch basins.  They toured 
some of the larger bodies of water; Swan Lake, Damonte Ranch wetlands, and Butler 
Ranch (Bella Vista); that are aerial (helicopter) treated and some of the difficult areas that 
staff and interns access for inspections.  Staff also gave a tour of our facilities in Panther 
Valley including the lab where staff identifies mosquitoes to specie, ticks, etc. and the 
warehouse. 

 
• In the upcoming weeks staff will be dusting to reduce the flea load on ground squirrels in the 

city and county parks in the Truckee Meadows Community including those in Washoe 
Valley, along Mt. Rose Highway and Sand Harbor in Incline Village.  The purpose is to 
prevent transmission of plague that is endemic to our community. 
 

Waste Management Program 
 
• Staff is working with the Sheriff’s Office (SO) and Community Development on a Community 

Wide Clean-Up Project as a result of a funding request/idea by the SO to the County 
Manager. 

 
General Environmental 
 
• Staff completed the change of ownership inspection of the Windsor Hotel on 214 West 

Street in Reno.  The hotel has since reopened to the public. 
 

EHS 2014 Inspections/Permits/Plan Review 
 JAN FEB MAR APR YTD Mo. 

Avg 
Child Care 6 3 7 13 29 7 
Complaints 70 74 68 96 308 77 
Food 499 312 452 388 1,651 413 
General 63 67 118 62 310 78 
Plan Review (Commercial 
Food/Pools/Spas) 14 3 4 3 24 6 
Plan Review (Residential Septic) 21 29 32 39 121 30 
Residential Septic Inspections   37 45 82 41 
Well Permits 11 0 5 6 22 6 
Waste Management 12 20 29 9 70 18 

  TOTAL 696 508 752 661 2,617 675 
*General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public 
Accommodations; Pools; Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 
 

 

 

Robert O. Sack, Division Director 
Environmental Health Services Division 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.D. DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.D.

2 of 3



Washoe County Mosquito Abatement Program Starts Wednesday 
Posted: May 05, 2014 12:09 PM PDT 
Updated: May 06, 2014 9:14 AM PDT 

 
From the Washoe County Health District: 
 
With the mild winter and spring conditions, the Truckee Meadows Community may experience biting mosquitoes 
earlier than normal. To protect the community and prevent the important public health threat of mosquitoes, the 
Vector-Borne Diseases Program (Program) of the Washoe County Health District will be larviciding May 7 with aerial 
helicopter treatments. The Altosid product used are pellets that disrupt the normal growth pattern of immature 
mosquitoes in water and prevents them from becoming biting adults. Altosid naturally degrades in the environment 
and will not adversely affects humans, fish, waterfowl or beneficial insects and can be used in sensitive areas. This 
larvaciding activity reduces the need for fogging for adult mosquitoes.  
 
The Program will be applying the product to Rosewood Lakes, Red Hawk, and the Butler Ranch to prevent the 
emergence of disease carrying mosquitoes. 
 
Report any stagnant water sources to the Vector-Borne Diseases Program. Mosquito fish are available to the public 
for back yard ponds by calling 785-4599. 
 
If you are outdoors and mosquitoes are biting, wear long pants and long-sleeved shirts and apply insect repellent 
such as DEET, Picaridn, oil of lemon eucalyptus or other natural products. 
 
The Program will continue to monitor mosquitoes during the spring and summer months that carry West Nile virus as 
well as other mosquito transmitted diseases through our disease surveillance program. 
 
For more information on the Vector-Borne Diseases Program go to: 
 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/vbdp.html 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.D. DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.D.

3 of 3



 
 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION 

 
 
 
May 9, 2014 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Members, Washoe County District Board of Health 
 
From:  Randall L. Todd, DrPH 
  Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Director 
 
Subject: Report to the District Board of Health, May 2014 
 
 
Communicable Disease -  
Influenza 
For the week ending May 3, 2014 (CDC Week 18) eleven of the twelve participating healthcare providers 
reported a total of 74 patients with influenza-like illness (ILI) out of a total of 5,833 patients seen for an 
ILI percentage of 1.3%.  This is below the regional baseline of 2.9%.  During the previous week (17) the 
national ILI percentage was 1.5%.  On a regional level the ILI percentage ranged from 0.7% to 2.5%.   
 
Also, during week 17 one death certificates were received listing pneumonia (P) or influenza (I) as a 
factor contributing to death.  The total number of death certificates submitted for week 17 was 18.  This 
reflects a P&I ratio of 5.6% which is below the epidemic threshold set by CDC for week 17 at 7.1%.  
Nationally the P&I was 6.8%.  There have been a total of 224 P&I deaths registered in Washoe County 
since the beginning of this influenza season.  The CDC estimates that about 8% of P&I deaths may be 
truly caused by influenza.  This would equate to about 18 deaths and may include individuals who were 
not Washoe County residents but died in Washoe County.  The number of deaths among Washoe County 
residents with laboratory-confirmed influenza is currently holding at 9. 
 
Middle East Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus (MERS-CoV) 
Board members may recall that in the August 2013 staff report MERS was mentioned as a disease of 
interest that staff were monitoring through CDC reports and updates, but which had not yet emerged 
within the United States.  On May 2, 2014 the first confirmed case was reported in a traveler to the United 
States. 
 
MERS was first reported in 2012 in Saudi Arabia.  It is different from any other coronavirus previously 
found in people.  It is unknown where the virus came from or exactly how it spreads.  It is thought to be 
likely that it came from an animal source.  All reported cases to date have been linked to the Arabian 
Peninsula.  Countries in the Arabian Peninsula with laboratory-confirmed cases now include: 

• Saudi Arabia 
• United Arab Emirates (UAE) 

  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.E.

1 of 3

http://www.washoecounty.us/health


 
 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

• Qatar 
• Oman 
• Jordan 
• Kuwait 

 
Countries with laboratory confirmed cases that are travel-associated now include: 

• United Kingdom (UK) 
• France 
• Tunisia 
• Italy 
• Malaysia 
• United States (US) 

 
People infected with MERS develop severe respiratory illness with symptoms of fever, cough, and 
shortness of breath.  About 30% of people with MERS have died.  Most of the people who died had an 
underlying medical condition.  It is possible to have a MERS infection with mild symptoms or no 
symptoms at all. 
 
Communicable disease staff have alerted local healthcare providers through the EpiNews.  Should any 
suspected cases of MERS be reported locally; testing can be arranged through the Southern Nevada Public 
Health Laboratory.   
 
Public Health Preparedness (PHP) –  
Three additional Continuity of Operation Plan (COOP) training and tabletop exercises for WCHD staff 
took place at the beginning of May. In total, 111 staff participated in this series of COOP trainings. This 
training opportunity came out of the recommendations provided at the last management COOP training 
and tabletop exercise, and supports PHP’s program’s efforts to accomplish CDC’s Public Health 
Preparedness Capability #2 - Community Recovery.    
 
The Medical Reserve Corps Volunteer Program is implementing a new volunteer management software 
system statewide called Intermedix.  As of April 30, Intermedix officially replaced the previous system, E-
Coordinator.  Intermedix was selected by the State because it is believed that it will be a more effective 
and intuitive system, particularly, as it relates to handing the State as well as the other three local MRC 
units technical requirements. 
 
PHP staff attended a CHEMPACK Training and Tabletop Exercise in Truckee, California in which border 
counties trained together to ensure an effective and coordinated response to a potential emergency 
requiring the deployment of CHEMPACK assets in the Northern California and Nevada State border 
communities.  Further coordination took place between the State of Nevada Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health and the Washoe County Health District at the time of this training.  CHEMPACK is 
part of the Strategic National Stockpile (SNS) and is a forward placement of sustainable repositories of 
nerve agent antidotes so they can be immediately accessible for the treatment of affected persons.  
Normally SNS assets would arrive, if requested, within a maximum 12-hour response time.  However, in 
the event of a nerve agent event this response time would be inadequate. 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.E.

2 of 3

http://www.washoecounty.us/health


 
 
 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

PHP staff conducted a required quarterly emergency notification drill that included all Health District 
staff.  This drill utilized a software system called NXT Communicator that notifies staff via work and cell 
phone as well as through email. These drills are conducted to keep staff familiar with the emergency 
notification system and to ensure staff could be notified during normal working hours or after hours to 
respond to an emergency. 
 
EPHP staff continues to participate as part of the triennial exercise planning team.  EPHP staff will be 
participating in the exercise and testing the newly revised and approved Multi-Casualty Incident Plan as 
well as the new triage system.   
 
PHP staff trained all regional hospitals on the revised Statewide Healthcare Requesting Procedures.  These 
procedures provide hospitals and all healthcare organizations the tool to request resources during an 
incident.  The procedures would be utilized for both supplies and personnel. 
 
EPHP staff participated in a reunification exercise with a local school.  Their role was to observe the 
process and provide feedback to the school emergency planning team on how they can improve their 
operations.  The drill went very well and staff had limited recommendations for them to consider.   
 
PHP staff is working with regional hospitals to draft a Public Warning-Public Information plan as it 
relates to health and medical information sharing.  All regional hospitals, as well as some surrounding 
hospitals, have been participating.  Additionally, the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health is 
involved.   
 
PHP staff attended the 2014 Preparedness, Emergency Response and Recovery Consortium.  The 
conference targets Public Health and healthcare organizations and the workshops provided directly 
support the grant objectives of the ASPR grant, which funds part of the PHP program. 
 
PHP staff organized and participated in a Call Center workshop with twenty regional and statewide 
partners.  The purpose of the workshop was to discuss a grant project relating to an emergency call center 
capability within our region.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Randall L. Todd, DrPH, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness Director 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.E.

3 of 3

http://www.washoecounty.us/health


WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER  
STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: May 22, 2014 
 
 

DATE: May 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health  

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer  
(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report - REMSA/EMS, Fundamental Review, Budget, 
Permit Software Project, Community Needs Assessment, Quality 
Improvement Initiative, Staffing, Other Events & Activities and Health 
District Media Contacts. 

 
REMSA / EMS 
An Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Services, was developed based on 
the Principles of Agreement approved at the February 10, 2014 concurrent meeting.  The draft 
agreement was distributed to the City and County Managers for review, discussed, and provided to the 
EMS Working Group on May 2, 2014. (Fundamental Review Item 16) 
 
Ms. Admirand, Assistant District Attorney,  drafted an Interlocal Agreement based on the Resolution 
presented at the February 10, 2014 Concurrent Meeting and the direction to proceed with 
development of an Interlocal Agreement for a Regional Emergency Medical Services Oversight 
Program. 
 
Fundamental Review 
Work to implement the Fundamental Review recommendations continues.   Of note, an initial Land 
Development Users Group meeting was held at the Builders Association of Northern Nevada on May 
8th to identify issues or areas of concern.   An updated dashboard of the Fundamental Review 
recommendations implementation is attached. 
 
Budget 
On May 19th the Board of County Commissioners is scheduled to adopted the FY 15 budget which 
includes the General Fund Transfer for the Health District. 
 
Permit Software Project 
Staff and I continue to work with the local jurisdictions to draft an interlocal agreement to support a 
Regional Business License and Permit Software Platform.  I attended a meeting with the City 
Managers of Reno and Sparks, and the Washoe County Manager to finalize the approach on April 
17th.   The Interlocal Agreement is anticipated to be presented for Board consideration during the May 
22, 2014 meeting. (Fundamental Review Item 7) 
 
 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.F.

1 of 6



Date – May 14, 2014 
Subject: - DHO Staff Report 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Community Needs Assessment 
The Health District, Renown Health, and the Nevada Public Health Foundation (NPHF) have worked 
to develop a contract for NPHF to serve as a fiscal agent for the project, which will allow them to 
utilize funds provided by collaborating partners to support the Community Health Needs Assessment 
(CHNA) through an independent contractor.  I signed a contract in the amount of $20,000 to provide 
Health District funding support for the project.  The independent contractor working for NPHF began 
work at the Health District on May 12th.  The CHNA is expected to be completed by the end of 
December 2014. (Fundamental Review Item 14) 
 
Quality Improvement Initiative  
Q-Team (2 representatives from each division) continues to facilitate division QI Teams to address 
their initial “training” projects. The projects vary in complexity, however all division teams are 
beginning to pilot/test their solutions on a small scale. Based on the outcome(s) of these tests, they 
hope to make a decision to modify and/or implement the solutions fully by July.    
 
The team has completed training on the Plan-Do-Check-Act cycle and basic QI tools frequently used 
in Public Health.  Facilitation skills and Change Management skills have also been introduced to the 
team.  
 
The Q-team will continue to meet to support the division projects.  In addition, the Q-team will 
provide feedback and make recommendations regarding next steps in achieving a Culture of Quality 
at the Health District. (Fundamental Review Item 23) 
 
Staffing 
The Health District is actively recruiting for five (5) full time positions; the majority of these positions 
will start in FY15. 
 
Other Events and Activities 
Division Director Meetings were held on April 28th and May 12th   I conduct individual meetings with 
the Division Directors on a bi-weekly schedule. 
 
On May 9th I participated on a panel for the 2014 Leadership Reno-Sparks Health and Wellness 
Workshop held at Renown. 
 
On May 16th I attended the REMSA Board meeting. 
 
I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada / EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit Home 
Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada.   
 
Health District Media Contacts 
Health District Media Contacts: April 16 - May 11, 2014 

 DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY 

    5/13/2014 KTVN CH2 - ABC Reno Mike Rogers CD Investigation - Ulibarri 

5/12/2014 Sparks Tribune Chante Owens Bike to Work - Hunter 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.F.

2 of 6



Date – May 14, 2014 
Subject: - DHO Staff Report 
Page 3 of 3 
 

5/12/2014 UNIVISION Geraldine Deavila Bike to Work - Hunter 

5/7/2014 KKOH 780 AM Radio - ABC Reno Ross Mitchell/Monica Jaye MERS - Dick 

5/7/2014 KTVN CH2 - ABC Reno Rebecca Kitchen Mosquitoes - Shaffer/Ulibarri 

5/7/2014 KTVN CH2 - ABC Reno Brad Horn Mosquitoes - Shaffer/Ulibarri 

5/6/2014 UNIVISION Geraldine Deavila Mosquitoes - Shaffer 

5/5/2014 KRNV CH 4 - NBC Reno Jaime Hayden Mosquitoes - Shaffer 

5/2/2014 UNIVISION Yvette Contreras Immunizations - Kutz 

4/30/2014 KTVN CH2 - ABC Reno Andi Guevara Immunizations - Kutz 

4/30/2014 KTVN CH2 - ABC Reno Chloe Beardsley Enviroflash notifications - Inouye/Wright 

4/25/2014 KKOH 780 AM Radio - ABC Reno Jim Fannon Measles - Paulson 

4/24/2014 KRNV CH 4 - NBC Reno Sara McCarty E-cigarettes regulations - Ulibarri 

4/22/2014 Sparks Tribune Garrett Valenzuela Idle Free Zones - Hunter 

    Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials 
  

    5/12/2014 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Rack Em Up Contest in School District 

5/9/2014 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Bike to Work, School Fun Week - General 

4/5/2014 Press Release Health Educator Alberti Mosquito abatement 

4/23/2014 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Air Quality Awareness Week 

4/21/2014 Feature Story PIO Ulibarri Art Spotlights Bike Week for NNBW 

4/16/2014 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Bike to Work, School Fun Week for NNBW 
 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.F.

3 of 6



05/14/2014

Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective 1/21/14
2

a. Design an orientation program and compile a draft manual for possible approval 8/28/14
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Establish a Land Development and Construction User Group and a Food Service User Group
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ and Vital Statistics five days a week, accept IZ walk ins
b. Consider opportunities and costs for extended hours/weekend clinical services
c. Explore opportunity to utilize Interactive Voice Response software

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Improve clinical billing through utilization of a third-party billing service by 8/1/14
b. Identify costs for permits and services that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
c. Identify costs for regulatory programs that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
d. Identify community and clinical services for which reimbursement is available/bill

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections
a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context

7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county
a. Continue to implement this recommendation through DBOH approval of an ILA

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary
Parking Lot

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.F.

4 of 6



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

05/14/2014 2

8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer
a. The Office of the District Health Officer is established in the FY15 budget

9
a. Time coding in EHS has been expanded, assess expanding enhanced time coding in other programs

10
a. Develop a schedule and methodology for conducting cost analysis of programs

11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies
a. Assess need for fiscal staffing and administrative staffing as program cost analysis is conducted

12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs
a. Continue to work with County Manager and Finance

13
a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. Discussions are underway for a collaborative effort

15
a. In FY15, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Guiding documentation approved.  Update franchise agreement and ILA, implement

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to repeat

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. Conduct a strategic planning initiative following the completion of the CHA and a CHIP

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis and SP to develop and implement performance mgmt. system

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a.
b. Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shift home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services

Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria

Health District efforts to focus on internal and local issues

Implement a performance management system

Consider alternative governance structures

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.F.

5 of 6



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

05/14/2014 3

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. Training & discussion sessions provided to develop management support and invest in QI

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

DBOH - District Board of Health
NALBOH - National Association of Local Boards of Health

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.F.

6 of 6


	Agenda
	5. Approval/Additions/Deletions to Minutes
	April 24, 2014

	7. Consent Agenda
	A. Air Quality Management Cases
	a. Nevada Recycling & Salvage
	b. Reno Buick GMC Cadillac
	c. Roger Baylocq Case

	B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements
	1. US EPA
	2. DMV Excess Reserve 
	3. Divison of Public and Behavioral Health Subgrant
	4. Division of Public and Behavioral Health Amend #4
	5. Nevada Air Quality Trends (2004-2013)


	8. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority
	Report

	9. Ambulance Service Franchise Agreement
	Report
	TriData Recommendations
	Franchise Agreement
	Maps

	10. Interlocal Agreement Emergency Medical ServicesOversight
	Report
	Interlocal Agreement

	11.  Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report
	Recommendation

	12. Fiscal Year 15 Budget
	Report

	13. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A,. Administrative Health Services
	B. Air Quality Management
	Report

	C. Community and Clinical Health Services
	Report

	D. Environmental Health Services
	Report

	E. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness
	Report

	F. District Health Officer
	Report
	Fundamental Review Status


	#9.a  EMS Staff Rpt-Franchisew-tridata-Agmt.pdf
	#9 EMS Staff Rpt-Franchise Agmt
	Move to approve the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service; and authorize the Chairman to execute.

	TriData Summary of Recommendations
	REMSA Franchise 050214




